Comhairle Coantair
an Iuir, Mharn
agus an Duin

Newry. Mourne
and Down

District Council

July 5th, 2021

Notice Of Meeting

You are requested to attend the Audit Committee Meeting to be held on Monday, 5th July
2021 at 2:00 pm in Mourne Room Downshire Offices Downpatrick and via Microsoft
Teams.

Committee Membership:

Ms Brona Slevin Independent Chairperson
Councillor P Byrne

Councillor C Casey

Councillor C Enright

Councillor L Devlin

Councillor M Gibbons

Councillor O Hanlon

Councillor A Lewis

Councillor D Murphy

Councillor D McAteer

Councillor K Owen



1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Agenda

Apologies and Chairpersons remarks.

Ms M Ward Chief Executive
Mr J Mc Bride Director Neighbourhood Services
Councillor C Casey

Councillor L Devlin

Declarations of Interest.

Action Sheet: Audit Committee Meeting - Thursday 22 April
2021. (AttachedO

1 3- Action Sheet - Audit Cmte April 2021.pdf

Annual Report from Independent Chairperson of Audit
Committee 2020/21. (Attached)

1 4 - Rptre B Slevin Annual Report 2020-21.pdf

[ 4 - Appendix 1 - Chairpersons Annual Report 2020-21.pdf

Members' Register of Interests
[4 Register of Interests.pdf

Page 1

Page 10

Page 13

Page 22

Corporate Services - (OPEN SESSION)

6.0

7.0

Corporate Risk Register - for noting. (Attached)
[1 6 - Corporate Risk Register July 2021.pdf

1 6-Appendix 1 CRR Overview.xIsx

[ 6-Appendix 2 - CRR July 2021.pdf

a) NMDDC Assurance Statement and Code of Governance -

For noting b) Annual Governance Statement - for approval.

(Attached)

1 7 - Assurance Framework and Annual Governace Statement.pdf

Page 25

Page 28

Page 35

Page 61



1 7-Appendix 1- Assurance Framework and Code of Goverance 2021-22.pdf Page 64

8.0 Presentation re: Unaudited Financial Statements - for noting.
(To follow)
[4 8- 2020-21 Accounts Presentation.pdf Page 81
1 8-Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf Page 95
Corporate Services (CLOSED SESSION)
9.0 Update re: Audit Recommendations (Risk Profile) (including
update on 2017/18 planning). - for noting. (Attached)
This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business
[1 EXEMPT 9 - Rpt re Update on Audit Recommendations.pdf Not included
10.0 Update re: Fraud and Whistleblowing - for noting
This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business
1 EXEMPT 10 - Fraud and Raising Concerns update.pdf Not included
1 EXEMPT 10 - Appendix 1 - Fraud and Raising Concerns Register.pdf Not included
11.0 Quarterly update re: Single Tender Actions - for noting.
(Attached)
This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business
1 EXEMPT 11 - Single Tender Actions Report Q1 2021-22.pdf Not included
[ EXEMPT 11 - Appendix 1- STA 2021-22 - Q1.pdf Not included
12.0 Update re: a) Procurement Action Plan b) ASM investigation

into the Council's use of Single Tender Actions - for noting.
(Attached)



This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business

1 EXEMPT 12 - Procurement Action Plans - STA recommendation update.pdf Not included

13.0 NMDDC Risk Strategy and Policy - for approval. (Attached)
This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business
1 EXEMPT 13- Risk Policy and Strategy.pdf Not included
14.0 Fleet Operators Licence Update and Action Plan
This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business
1 EXEMPT 14 - Fleet Operators Licence Update Action Plan.pdf Not included
1 EXEMPT 14 - Appendix 1 - Copy of NS Committee - Operators Licence Update Not included
Action Plan.pdf
Internal Audit (CLOSED SESSION)
15.0 ASM Summary Report. (Attached)
This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business.
1 EXEMPT 15- NMDDC Summary report - July 2021 to Audit Committee.pdf Not included
16.0 Governance Review — Newry City Centre Regeneration

Programme

This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may by resolution, be
excluded during this item of business.

1 EXEMPT 16 - ASM TOR NCCR.pdf Not included



1 EXEMTP 16 - 202122 NMDDC Governance review - Newry City Centre Regeneration Not included
Programme - Draft TOR to Audit Committee.pdf

Performance (OPEN SESSION)

17.0 Performance Improvement Plan 2021/22 (published 30 June
2021) - for noting. (Attached)

1 17- Rpt AC Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22.pdf Page 205

1 17 - Appendix 1 Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22.pdf Page 208

1 17 - Appendix 2 Consultation and Engagement Report.pdf Page 245

1 17 - Appendix 3 Objective Delivery Plans.pdf Page 260
Circulars

18.0 Local Government Circular LG 13/2021 - District Council
(Northern Ireland) Rate Statistics 2021/2022 - for noting.

(Attached)
[ 18- Ig-13-21-rates-statistics.pdf Page 272
1 18- Appendix 1 - Rate Statisitcs 2021-22.pdf Page 273

19.0 Record of Councillors' and Committee Members' Allowances
Funded by Council 2020/2021 - for noting. (Attached)

[ 19- lg-15-21-covering-letter-record-of-councillors-committee-members-allowances Page 277
20-21.pdf
1 19 - Appendix 1 -template-for-councillor-return.pdf Page 279

20.0 LG/08/21 Update re NI District Councils Accounts Directions
2020/21 - for noting. (Attached)

[1 20 - Accounts Direction to District Councils 2020-21 Additional Clarification.pdf Page 284



Clir Terry Andrews

Invitees



Clir Roisin Mulgrew
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Report to: Audit Committeea
Date of Meeting: Monday 05 July 2021
Subject: Audit Committee Annual Report 2020-21
Reporting Officer Brona Slevin
{(Including Job Title): Independent Chair of Audit Committee
Contact Officer Brona Slevin

__(Including Job Title): Independent Chair of Audit Committee

‘Confirm how this Repaort should h&treatadh'.r pﬁa::ing an x in either:-

| For decision | v | For noting only | |

Members are asked to consider and approve the contents of this report prior to Reporting to
Council,

Back to Agenda

1.0

Purpose and Background

The Annual Report summarises the key activities and highlights any key issues
arising throughout the year. This Report will inform the Governance Statement
contained within the Coundil's Annual Accounts,

Key Issues

The Annual Report of the Mewry Mourmne and Down Audit Committee for 2020-21
is attached.

3.0

Recommendations

Members are asked to consider and approve the Annual Report of the Audit
Committee 2020-21,

The approved Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2020-21 to be reported to
Council.

Resource implications

Mone.

2.0

51

Due regard to equality of opportunity and regard to good relations (complete
the relevant sections)

| General proposal with no clearly defined impact upon, or connection to,

specific equality and good relations outcomes




Back to Agenda

It is not anticipated the proposal will have an adverse impact upon aquality of B
apportunity or good relations =

0.2 Proposal relates to the introduction of a strategy, policy initiative or practice
and / or sensitive or contentious decision
Yes D No 124
If yes, please complete the following:
The policy (strategy, policy initiative or practice and [ or decision) has been ]
equality screened
The palicy (strategy, policy initiative or practice and / or decision) will be O]
subject o equality screening prior o implementation
5.3 Proposal initiating consultation
Consultation will seek the views of those directly affected by the proposal,
address barriers for particular Section 75 equality categories to participate and
allow adequate time for groups to consull amongst themselves
Consultation period will be 12 weeks ]
Consultation period will be less than 12 weeks (rationale to be provided)
Rationale:
6.0 | Due regard to Rural Needs (please tick all that apply)
6.1 Proposal relates to developing, adopting, implementing or revising a policy |
strategy [/ plan [ designing andfor delivenng a public service
Yes |:| Mo
If yes, please complete the following:
Rural Needs Impact Assessment completed |
7.0 Appendices
Appendix 1 — Audit Committee Annual Report for 2020-21
B.O Background Documents




Agenda 4.0 / 4 - Rpt re B Slevin Annual Report 2020-21.pdf Back to Agenda




Back to Agenda

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council

Audit Committee

Annual Report for 2020/2021



Back to Agenda

1. Overview

This Annual Report provides an overview of the Audit Committee activities for the Financial
Year 2020/21 and demonstrates how the Committes has met its key responsibilities.

The Audit Committeg met on six occasions during the year; on 06 July 2020, 24 September
2020, 24 November 2020 (5pecial Audit Committee), 07 December 2020 (Special Audit
Committee} 12 January 2021 and 22 April 2021. A programme of work had been agreed by
the Audit Committee and was allocated over a schedule of four meetings during the year.
The two Special Audit Committees took place to deal with specific matters of a Single
Tender Action investigation and the approval of the Financal Statements for the year
2019/20.

The role of the Audit Committee is to support the Chief Executive (Accounting Officer} and
Council by reviewing the comprehensiveness and reliability of assurances on governance,
risk management, the control environment and the integrity of the financial statements.

2. Attendance

2.1 Members’ attendance at committee meatings were as follows:



Agenda 4.0/ 4 - Appendix 1 - Chairpersons Annual Report 2020-21.pdf

Back to Agenda

ATTENDANCE NARRATIVE — AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
[July 2020 - April 2021)

COUNCILLOR AUDIT AUDIT SPECIAL SPECIAL AUDIT AUDIT TOTAL
L COMMITTEE | COMMITTEE AUDIT AUDIT COMMITTEE | COMMITTEE | Meetings
06 July 2020 24 COMMITTEE | COMMITTEE | 12 January 22 April Attended
September 24 07 2021 2021
2020 Movember December
2020 2020
Indp Chair Y W i W o v 6/6
Ms B
Slevin
Clir P Y ) v W W v 6/6
Byrne
ClirC W W W L) af6
Casey
ClirtL ¥ ¥ y v v 5/6
Dewlin
ciirc W ¥ 2/6
Enright
Clir M v v v 3/6
Gibbans
Cliro i i W W W 56
Harnlon
Clir & W v ) v W ) 6/6
Lewis
Clir K W v 2/6
Owen
Clir G Y v v v W v 6/6
Sharvin
clirD W W ¥ 36
Murphy

2.2 Ms Brona Slevin was appointed as an Independent Member of the Audit Committee in
March 2019 and in accordance with the Committee’s terms of reference took up the role of
Chairperson in July 2019 after the previous Chairperson Mr Joe Campbell, stepped down.

2.3 The Audit Committee meetings requires the attendance of the Chief Executive, the
Director of Corporate Services and the Internal Auditors, The Audit Services Manager,




Back to Agenda

Aszistant Director of Finance and MIAD representatives also usually attend and the Senior
Management Team and other Senior Officers attend by invitation.

3. Performance Evaluation

3.1 In accordance with best practice, the Audit Committee self-asseszed its performance
against the National Audit Office Checklist for Audit Committees during the year and the
results were presented to the meeting on 22 April 2021. The Committee agreed the
following actions/recommendations to build effectiveness:

Principle 2: Skills

(a] political parties to be asked to give consideration to appointing Elected Members for a
term greater than one year where possible which will enable knowledge and skills to be
built up in this area. Generally there is little change in the Audit Committee make up
which shows the Council is committed to keeping the experience and knowledge of
Members on the Audit Committee.

(b) training for all Members on the Audit Committee to be progressed.

Principle 3 and 4: The role and scope of the Committes

It should be noted that under this heading, that due to the Corana Virus pandemic there
were unavoidable delays in presenting some items to the Audit Committee,

(¢} the Audit Committee's Terms of Reference is approved by the Audit
Committee annually. This was completed in July 2020,

(d) another report on Cyber Security was presented to the Audit Committee in April 2021,

Principle 5: Communication and Reporting

(e} Officers to strive to ensure internal audit reports are completed and reported on a
tirmely basis to the Audit Committes.

(f] Officers to strive to ensure that all papers are provided on a timely basis to Democratic
Services so that papers are issued in compliance with Standing Orders so that Members
have sufficient time to review them.

Members can take reassurance from the number of pood practice questions that have been
answered "yes' demonstrating that the Audit Committes is following best practice and
pperating effectively.



Back to Agenda

3.2 An appraisal of the Chairperson performance was alzo completed by the Chief Executive
and Councillor Byrne and was deemed satisfactory.

4. Terms of Reference

A review of the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference was undertaken and approved by
Council an 5 March 2019 as part of the review of the terms of references of all Committees
of Council. The Audit Committee noted the approved Terms of Reference at its meeting on
15 April 2019, The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference was again approved at the Audit
Committee Meeting in July 2020 and in April 2021,

5. 2019/20 Financial Statements and External Audit

The Council’s Audited Financial Statements for 2018/20 including the Annual Governance
Statement were reviewed by the Special Audit Committee on 07 December 2020. The
Committes also reviewead the draft Report to Those Charged With Governance,

The Audit Committee was pleased to note that the Northern Ireland Audit Office (NIAQ) had
certified the financial Statements with an ungualified audit Opinian and the Audit
Committee approved the Accounts for signing.

The Audit Committee noted the contents of final Report To Those Charged With
Governance with management responses and the Annual Audit Letter at its meeting on 12

January 2021,

6. Risk Management

The Committee welcomed the continued good progress made by Officers on Risk
Management and the structure put in place to ensure ownership and management of risk at
all levels of the organisation.

The Council has a Corporate Risk Register which identifies the key corporate level risks
faced, and to be managed. Each corporate risk is linked to specific priarities set out by the
Council in its Corporate Plan. The Corporate Risk Register and mitigating actions are
scrutinised at each Audit Committee meeting. Risk management is also a standing agenda
item at monthly meetings of the 5MT.

There were 14 corporate risks on the Corporate Risk Register at April 2021 and the
corporate risks with the highest residual scores (shown in brackets) were as follows:
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CR. 02 Breach of legislation in relation to the procurement of goods and services and works
(209

CR. 04 Failure to effectively manage waste (20)

CR. 05 = Failure to provide timely planning decisions {20)

CR. 0B — Failure to implement an economic development programme to regenerate the
District and attract inward investment due te financial uncertainties caused by the current
economic and political climate [1&)

CR. 11 — Failure to adequately manage sickness absence resulting in delays and inability to
deliver Council services (15)

CR. 12 — Risk that Council does not assist the COVID 19 recovery of the District. (16)

CR. 13 = Impact of BREXIT on the local economy, organisation, effective service provision
and achievermnent of strategic objectives (16)

CR. 14 — Cyber Security event (16)

7. Internal Audit

7.1 ASM Limited were reappointed on 01 April 201% as Internal Auditors for a period of 4
years.

7.2 From the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21, B Internal Audit Reports were reported to the
Audit Committee during the year, 6 of which received a satisfactory assurance rating, Two
sarvice araas, Fleet Management and Fuel Management, both received a limited assurance
rating.

Despite ongoing restrictions arising from the Covid 19 pandemic, all of the Internal Audit
assurance work as detailed in the final Internal Audit Plan 2020/21, as approved by the
Audit Committes, was completed.

7.3 Inaddition, during the Pre Meeting of 06 July 2020 Audit Committee, the Chief
Executive informed Elected Members that given the high values of cost involved in the use
of 5TA [Single Tender Actions) arrangements in Council that she had commissioned the
Council's internal Auditors to undertake an investigation into the Council’s approach to, and
explanations for, the use of Single Tender Actions, The scope of this review also extended
to considering the contract mapping exercise being completed by the Council’s Procuremant
Team. The final report on this matter was issued on 01 December 2020 and 21
recommendations were agreed by management. The Northern Ireland Audit Office [NIAQ)
also have these issues as a priority 1 item in their report for the last 2 years. Management
have prioritised these recommendations, are continuing to progress them and reporting
through to every Audit Committee with an update to enable appropriate monitoring and
challenge.

7.4 ASM, the Council's Internal Auditors, raised significant issues in their Annual Report
dated 16 April 2021, ASM stated that the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards ["P51AS")
reguires that they bring to the Council’s attention those significant control issues which
rmay be relevant to the preparation of the Governance Statement for the year ended 31
Parch 2021, On this basis, they highlighted the limited assurance provided in the reviews of
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Fleet Management and Fuel Management procedures. They also highlighted the significant
findings in the investigation inta the Council’s use of Single Tender Actions (5TAs]. It was
noted the key failings in governance and control in these reviews primarily rest in the
Council’s Neighbourhood Services Directorate. It was also noted that many of the issues
ralsed were legacy matters that have not been corrected in the course of the new Council
due mainly to staffing or policy matters.

7.5 Internal Audit Annual Assurance Opinion

The Committee reviewed the Annual Internal Audit Assurance Report for 2020/21 at its
meeting on 22 April 2021 and noted the Auditor's overall opinion that notwithstanding the
significant issues identified abowve, the Council's systems in relation to internal control, risk
management and governance were, in general, adequate and operated effectively and they
were able to provide satisfactory assurance in relation to the effective and efficient
achievement of the Council’s objectives.

The Audit Committee welcomed the overall opinion of Satisfactory Assurance and
commended Officers for their good work. The Committee also requested regular progress
updates on the actions taken to address the significant issues referred to the Internal Audit
Annual Assurance Repaort,

7.6 Follow up Review of internal Audit Recommendations

The Committee also reviewed on 22 April 2021 a follow up report from Internal Audit on the
Implementation of Prior Year Internal Audit Recommendations for 2019/20 including the
advisory review in respect of Health & Safety (Facility review). The review idemtified that,
out of the 84 accepted recommendations, 24 recommendations were fully implemented, 24
recommendations were partially implemented, 20 recommendations were not
implemented, 2 recommendations were no longer accepted and the remaining 14
recommendations were unable to be tested due to access restrictions from the Covid 19
pandemic,

The Audit Services Manager alzo reported during the year the progress on the
implementation of the Internal Audit Recommendations in the years prior to 20159/20. This
included an update an the risk facing the Council when these recommendations were not
implemented on a timely basis which enabled the Audit Committee to have a fuller
understanding of the implications of these recommendations not being in place. The risk to
the Council for those outstanding internal audit recommendations up to 2019,/20 which
have not yvet been fully implemented is assessed as low.

The Audit Committee is committed to ensuring the prior year Internal Audit
recommendations are completed and reported to the Audit Committee at each meeting.

1.7 Tender for Internal Audit Services

Mewry Mourne and Down District Council procured the services of ASM again as its Internal
Audit Services provider from 01 April 2019, The contract was for two years with the options
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of two one-year extensions. The Audit Committee agreed to the first one year extension
period which will be utilised to work on the third year of the four yvear Internal Audit Plan,
ie, 2021,/22,

7.8 Approval of Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 and Internal Audit Strategy

The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 was brought to the Audit Committes Meeting in
April 2021 and approved.

This Internal Audit Plan will be kept under review throughout the year and will be
considered against any emerging risks identified as part of the Council's wider risk
management processes and response to the COVID-19 recovery plans. Any future proposed
changes will be brought to the Audit Committee for consideration.

B. External Audit Strategy

The MIAD presented their Annual Audit Strategy for the Year Ending 31 March 2021 1o the
Audit Committee on 22 April 2021.

The Audit certification deadline for certifying local government bodies’ accounts is 30
September 2021 and to ensure compliance a meeting has been scheduled for 23 September
2021 to review and approve the audited accounts so they can be signed by the deadline.

MIAD have identified an ongoing significant risk namely Weaknesses in Procurement and
Contract Management and which they will review as part of their audit plan.

5. Performance Improvement Arrangements

In response to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Department for Communities
(DFC) confirmed that Councils were:

s Not required to publish 2 Performance Improvement Plan for the 2020-21 financial year.

¢ FRequired to produce the Assessment of Performance 2019-20. The Assessment of
Performance 2019-20 for Newry, Mourne and Down was completed and published on
the Council’s website in line with the statutory timescale.

» Required to facilitate the Performance Audit and Assessment, focusing primarily on the
Aszessment of Performance 2019-20 The timescales for completing the audit and
Assessment were extended and feedback reports were published by 31 March 2021.

Strengthening existing performance management arrangements and embedding a culture of
performance and improvement has gained momentum within Newry Maurne and Down
District Council. It is vital that performance is used as a key driver to identify improvements
and facilitate the delivery of effective, efficient and value for money services in the current
and post COVID-19 environments.
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Report to: Audit Commuttee

Date of Meeting: 5 July 2021

Subject: Register af Interasts

Reporting Officer Corinnia Camville, Director of Corporate Services
(Including Job Title):

Contact Officer Sarah Taggart, Democratic Services Manager (Acting)
(Including Job Title):

Confirm how this Report should be reated by placing an x in either: -

_For decision | | For noting only | x |
1.0 Purpose and Background
= Far Elected Members it is likely that from time to time private matters will impinge on

public duties. In such circumstances Members should be aware that it is not appropriate to
use public position or resources to deal with private matters or to pursue private interests.
The Council has established a Register of [nterests and by recording interests openly, any

actual or potential conflicts of interest can be identified more aasily.

20 Key issues

21 Councillors have a responsibility to regularly review their circumstances and determine if
ary change has occurred which should rightly result in a change to their declaration or
faciitate the nead for a new declaration. If this is the case, they should contact Democratic
Services to have their form updated.

2.2 Al the Audit Committes maeting in Jancary 2021, it was agread that Members should
regularly review their Register of Interest Farms and that a six-monthly report be brought
forward to the Audit Committee to ensure compliance.

23 An email has been sent to Members asking them to review and, if required, update their
Register of Interest forms via Democralic Services.

2.4 A al 30 June 2021, 13 Members have replied stating there has been no change to their
forms and & have advised of amendments. The remainder of the Members are processing
their farms.

3.0 Recommendations

31 That Members:

a. Mote the sik-month review report.

4.0 Resource implications

4.1 Mone identified

50 Due regard to equality of opportunity and regard to good relations {(complete the

relevant sections)
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5.1 General proposal with no clearly defined impact upon, or connection to, specific
equality and good relations outcomes
It is not anticipated the proposal will have an adverse impact upon equality of =
opportunity or good relations
5.2 Proposal relates to the introduction of a strategy, policy initiative or practice and / or
sensitive or contentious decision
Yes[d MoE
If ves, please complete the followineg:
The palicy (strategy, policy initiative or pracoce and / or decision) has been equality [
soreened
The policy (strategy, policy initiative or praciice and / or decision) will be subject to O
equality screening prior to implementation
53 Proposal initiating consultation
Consultation will seek the views of those directly affected by the proposal, address O
barriers for particular Section 75 equality categones o paricipate and allow
adequate time for groups o consult amongs! themselves
Consultation period will be 12 weeks 0]
Consuliation period will be less than 12 weelks (rationale to be provided) -
Rationale:
6.0 Due regard to Rural Needs (please tick all that apply)
6.1 Proposal relates 1o developing, adopting, implementing or revising a policy /
strateqy / plan / designing and/or delivering a public senice
YesE NoO
If ves, please complete the following:
Fural Needs Impact Assessment completed O
If no, please complete the following:
The policy [ strategy / plan { public service is not influenced by rural needs =
T.0 Appendices
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Report to: Audit Committes
Date of Meeting: 5% July 2021
Subject: ‘Corporate Risk Register

 Reporting Officer Dorinnia Carville — Director: Corporate Services,
(Including Job Title):
Contact Officer Gerard Byrne — Audit Services Manager
(Including Job Title):

Confirm how this Report should be treated by placing an x in either:-

| For decision | | For noting only | X |

1.0 Purpose and Background

1.1 The Corporate Risk Register was reviewed and updatad by the SMT on 22 June 2021,
Year-end Assurance Statements for 2020-21 have been used to inform and update the
content of the Corporate Risk Register, Where relevant, Officers have also provided
updates in relation to specific controls and action plans.

2.0 Key issues

2.1 Corporate Risk Register

The Council has identified 12 corporate risks, 1 of which is a red risk and 11 of which are
amber. Appendix 1 provides an overview of each risk, risk owner(s), gross and residual
risk scores, as well as a summary of changes and updates which have been made to the
Corporate Risk Reqister since April 2021.

The SMT has revised the residual scores for a number of corporate risks to take into
account the progress made by the Council in reacting to major incidents and delivering the
economic development programme to support the recovery of the District.

Other significant ameandments include:
=« Corporate Risk 1 (Fallure to deliver the capital investment programme for the
District) has been updated to reflect a paper brought to the SPER Committas in
June 2021 highlighting material shortages and the rise in Construction costs. & new
action has been included.

» The previous Corporate risk 12 (Impact of BREXIT on the local economy,
organisation, effective service provision and achievement of strategic objectives)
has been merged into Corporate Risk 8 (Failure to implement an economic
development programme to regenerate the district and attract inward investment
due to finandial uncertainties caused by the current economic and political climate,
including the NI Protocol), This is due to Brexit materialising and the challenge is
now s managing any uncertainties around the NI protocol -this is consistent with
the contrals and actions within Corporate Risk 8.

The updated Corporate Risk Register is attached at Appendix 2.
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2.2 Diractorate Risk Registers

Directorate Risk Registers were reviewed and updated during Q3/Q4 2020-21. Directorate
Risk Registers are reviewed to strengthen the alignment with the Corporate Risk Register
and ensure they take account of key, emerging issues, including COVID-19 and Brexit.
The alignment between Directorate Risk Registers and Directorate Business Plans will also
be strengthened during 2021-22.

2.3 Internal Audit — Risk Management

ASM carmied out an internal audit of risk management in February 2021 and provided a
satisfactory assurance rating. A number of recommendations have been agreed, which
focus on:

» LUpdating the Risk Management Policy and articulating the risk appetite of the
organisation;
Providing risk management training for Elacted Members and Officers;
Reviewing and updating Directorate Risk Registers on a quarterly basis and
summarising the key findings for SMT and Electad Members; and

« Strengthening the alignment betweean Directorate Risk Registers and Directorate
Business Plans.

The revisad ‘draft’ Risk Management Policy/Strategy and risk appetite of Coundil is
presented to Members at Agenda ftem number 13 for approval. Once approved, training
for Members will be organised prior to the September 2021 meeting.

3.0 Recommendations

31 To note the Corporate Risk Register summary as outlined in Appendix 2 and the
Corporate Risk Register at Appendix 3.

4.0 Resource implications

4.1 There are no resource implications.

5.0 Due regard to equality of opportunity and regard to good relations (complete
the relevant sections)

5.1 General proposal with no clearly defined impact upen, or connection to, specific
eguality and good refations oultcomes

It is not anticipated the proposal will have an adverse impact upon equality of E
oppartunity or good relations

5.2 Proposal relates to the introduction of a strategy,. policy initiative or practice
and / or sensitive or contentious decision

ves (] o

If yes, please complete the following:




The palicy (strategy, palicy initiative or practice and [/ or decision) has bean aquality D

screenad

The policy (strategy, policy initiative or practice and [/ or decdision) will be subject to |:|

equality screening prior to implementation

Back to Agenda

5.3

Proposal initiatimg consulftation

Consultabon will seek the views of those directly affected by the proposal, address

barriers for particular Section 75 equality categories to participate and allow
adequate time for groups to consult amongst themselhes

Consultation period will be 12 weeks

Consultation period will be less than 12 weeks (rationale to be provided)

L]

il R

Rationale:
Consultation not required.

6.0

Due regard to Rural Needs (please tick all that apply)

6.1

Proposal relates to developing, adepting, iImplementing or revising 2 policy [
strategy / plan / designing and/or delivering a public sarvice

"r’e5|:| hlﬂ

If yes, please complete the following:

Rural Meeds Impact Assessment completed

Appendices

Appendix 1: Cover Sheet — Corporate Risk Register
Appendix 2: Corporate Risk Register — July 2021

8.0

Background Documents

Mane




panepdn sunnoy cEs sE s palie
A (Fes Susnou sEd) [ Suapaog ) I 1R axuediory snowvald

“paepdn susgog

TEinR 0S8 N [BRDEDy SjeaniEle O udEE
i SOCEEIGUS PUE S35 S5O0 UOENGEE00 DUt Dafigolil udd e Mk

LA LU

Bpusby O] 3oBg

ST Tt
HEIY Jenpsay
pras |

PR a0 YEU pUe pRqepdn sUonoy) at 1
TR O FRLSYSLED, 4S5 MG B WEL
JP TR EOTNL] TN #A TEIOUID MO 3 YR - SO0 i petuaus s o
e
ok SR BUL O Lo U1 PRI O AU B P peaepdn suons 7L T
‘e Sudijg Sk 51
nG_._._E_._ SUHHI £ 21
pamRpdn uaan DHE SRy SUOGSY D030 [ YL PR
[ FEIPUSHUIE LS ST HSL S 40 L - ¥ S og pafiEi wou 710 -1 a1
SO TUTS GUULL
Aol [pg OF LOFTRIE Ul PO B3E MBU PUE REBMKIN SUH)S b § 4l
o Sunoy fa s
Payab Wil GDDY rU Deiay Sk iU
Wl BT/ TOE Bl U0 § |8 5B padrg miu ySy [BnpEiy - pRgemdn sy 2l
“ELDHIN
SR ) A SuassEncsn oy uy prasiv) sou e Juawaficueyy pue passed
MROU ERL UA0SE [ELINELY 1 5T DSORpS I EnpEry pegepdn suonsyl -1

anass
WU PENpSIE NEY SSoun  (Slanmg ¥ee
.

STAIET LI

ald
Aurogs 1aqia v ieumn pug 0y uad AEapaga HHJ&

#Fn.ﬂ.ﬁﬁupﬂiﬁﬂ PUR Lo RAR S

fiun) Fp U AR RS SR ULy A D) DU e ATjE

Ui HOUGS
MBS el
AR D B

2IOFG

[TR-=1 S 08 NP FAUEp susdsud @ pEng pue Sikiaua
pawalieue | o Ssanoeloo spoun Bugep SusEaag RS0 g oodsama
e BT (A 1500 L[ I5155E 10U 5900 |DUNTD) W4 §51 TTHH
W]
T uaBeuE "EROIRIEE [T DA O APMIEU) L DR SIS U
HLERS Buiprens Sounsds seoun RS abeutw fEqenbape oy urjje s
LI Bt | JURARS UG To0dU PGS HUE S0 WU O B
i B Bt 0 Bupped) sl oplin 1 5791 PSEURPUEY 20 0 iy
o
TN A funnpo “ageup EEgEed ous uF.n__.__uuu_r._u.:_._
WAL POSTE SUIEIROUN [ROURUY OF N JUSILTRIA
U ER R (IR P USSR sy aqRiaustag 0g Suues
SO PUEAS, T JUHLACEA ARSI HWDLIOCRr U JuaLapdiwg ap g IR
=i S S R T Tt TR KR Kkt
SAETy B ._..___.__.”__.m.n._u... I u:n_— e fgenbane Oy 2urjjey F0EH
BB BN T RERUBACIT U SEDUBTH ]
al SR RG] PO il By gk a0 uitid Agenbbpe Op iy Gl ™
UG JOUDT SuHanep Geuiepd Aaun apaad of Junjey Sy
_apugal Mauyar 2 aficuow Apersas of sunje g BT
PRI AR
AR R
SPAIET FEXIO spsspannbal asgembe) U, SouRiuICD- U0y ENaH
) SN PUR S=omiDs puR Spoal jo prsaranoand N
SHAET) ERAILCY | ) 03 UCHRRL o afuageya angeps oy Ao ooy jo g My

sy
Loni[D il oebd i D] Jirpsanh L e B ESwi e Ok DU

unjidjrasmg

TTOT ey - weeys smaed sepsiBey g speacdan 3 200NN



XS|X"M3INIBAQ HYD | Xipuaddy - 9/ 09 epuaby



e 1

epusby o1 oBg i T | = g - XS|X"MBIAIBAQ YYD | XIpuaddy - 9 / 0°9 epuaby




Agenda 6.0 / 6 - Appendix 1 CRR Overview.xlsx

Risk Assessment Matrix
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31

PROBABILITY
Rare Unilikely Possible Likely V Likely
Score 1 2 3 4 5
Fundamental 5
Major 4
@
]
]
= Moderate 3
1]
]
8
o Minor 2
Mot significant 1
IM&WI ‘
Impact on individual{s) = : Buildings/ i
e Statutory Duty. [Business / Operational  [Budmas!  Engineeriogllg pe, of service |
Fundamental + Death » MUSIpiE breach of SLEUlry | [+ LDgacon » CEOON expecied. [+ Critcal EnvEonmenta ImpacL |+ Severe Impact on csomer s
ISgEREE0N AND ProSeCulion. Jramtacton :
» National Media Mierest v Senyice cloged Tor v G706S Tallure 1D mest [
unacoectabie perod Jerofessional | national siEandands
« Savers 1068 of configence and
|repumten
IMajor « Weajor injury il heam » Wultipie Dreach of stauiory e >E250M 10 <ES0TH v MCCRIGRICANT envifonmenta J» Maor impact on cukomer P
resoniatie) |egmiston ang merovement |opecta. [imgact |sanstacson (
netice isusa. ;
» M2JOr CINICH Inierverton » Adversa pupicry « Seyare SENEOON 10 SENVIcE [ FAIUE T MeS! DrOfBsEonal | |
rationa standards i
e FerTanent Incapacy = Wrpact on repuision
IModerate » Temparary Ncagacty s Sifgie Dreach of sutory  [» LDGaton »E50K - <C2E0K | |+ WoGerate envionmental IMpad [+ FOITa COMpiant expected.  |»
legisiaton and mprovement  |possinie. I
|Hotce souea. :
+ Short term moniionng T + POIENT for 2dverse pubicly, |s Mocerate SISRESN 1D Banvices | Fature 1 mes! nemal P
Fvoisatie win caretul Ranging Jstargara i
+ ASTTIONE MAda TRaTTent up « Potertal o Impact on
o1 yexr repumtion.
IMinor 2 |- First MG sef reament |+ Sfeach of Gaiutony legisation. |+ Ltigaton ~L50k [+ localieed envronmenal | [+ Possbie compiaint. |
s 1
« MInoe injury + ITpact on rRpuLation - NIETiAl |+ DEsrupbon io Sarvice perceived [ SNge fawre 1o meel mema |
Bhareness. 28 Inconvenisnt |stancara. -
» Winor il heath up o 1 monin
» Nt miss (emall cussen)
Hat signifizant » NE3r TiSS (ungle) » Near breach of sanory « Possie IBgaton Oue 1o + Manimal impact 10 envronment. [+ Customes nsially Ahappy.
Ihm sememant s €5k
- N acversE oulcome. mummw + Mnmal dsnupten. - Minof non-comprance wim
JirtEmal standard.
 Nonjury or i-heath.




AT, Endliirerieis | |
Back to Agenda
» NEAT TI5S (Al CIUSET)
Ihot significant 1 |+ Near miss (single) o Wear breach of statutory + Possibe Ibgaton due to o Winimal impact to environment. [+ Customes nEially wih
Iugu.um_ semement I ~E5L
K atverss UlCome MNGH DREaCh Of quiganse o « MR disrupbon. s Mingr non-compiancs with
lEgisi0n |rtemal stangarg.

Likelihood Score | Probability ! Likelihood (of event or incident
Descriptor occumng over lifelime of Corporale Plan).
Almost Certain 6 » The event 15 more likely than not to occur
Likely 4 » The event is likely to occur
Possible 3 » There is a reasonable chance of the event
DCCUITIng
Unlikely 2 » The event is unlikely to occur
Rare 1 » The event will occur only in exceplional
circumstances

No Injury of ii-hasdn. | - i

Likelihood of Event or Incident occurring
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of Service Finance
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Back to Agenda

Report to: Audit Committes

Date of Meeting: 5% July 2021

Subject: Assurance Framework and Annual Governance Statement
~ Reporting Officer Gerard Byrne — Audit Services Manager

(Including Job Title):

Contact Officer Gerard Byrne — Audit Services Manager

(Including Job Title):

Confirm how this Report should be treated by placing an x in either:-

| For decision | | For noting only | X |
1.0 Purpose and Background
1.1 The purpose of this paper is twofold;

1.2

1.3

« o explain to Members the key elements of the “year-end’ process and the
‘assurance framework’ that the Council developed to help ensure that the Coundcil
complies with statutory requirements and Members and senior officers can have
effective, ongoing oversight of the Council’s governance and assurance
arrangements.

« to present the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement, for consideration and
Inclusion in the unaudited statement of accounts. The Statement has been
considered by SMT on the 22™ June 2021.

The Annual Governance Statement is an important document and it is important that the
Committes is fully aware of its contents. The disclosures in the statement are based
upon the Council's corporate risk register and take into consideration the disclosures
made within the Directors year end Assurance Statements.

2.0

Key issues

2.1

Assurance Framework

The Council's Assurance Framework is summarised at Appendix 1. It demonstrates how
different sources of assurance and related key elements [ control measures combine to
enable the Councl to monitar its governance arrangements and produce the evidence to
support its Annual Governance Statement.

The diagram shows how the Council’s Audit Committee, the Strategic Policy and Resources
Committee and Coundil provide oversight of these governance arrangements.

One significant amendment has been made to the Assurance Framework and Code of
Governance this year, On completion of the NIAQ'S self-appraisal checklist in relation to
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) which was presented to the April 2021 Audit Committee,
The Council Assurance Framawork has been updatad to ensure it adequately reflects the bi
annual matching exercise as part of our ongoing controls to halp prevent and detect fraud
and errar.




Back to Agenda

2.2

nrual Im

The Council has a statutory responsibility to annually prepare and publizh an Annual
Governance Statement as part of the Financial Statements. Many different processes
inform the preparation of the Statement as can be seen from the Assurance Framework at
Appendix 1.

The Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21 is presented at item number 8. It will be
incorporated into the unaudited statement of accounts and will be subject to review by tha
MI&0 as part of their annual audit.

Recommendations

Members are asked to:
+ Note the Council's Assurance Framework (and also the Code of Governance),
illustrated and described at Appendix 1.
» Review and approve the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2020,/21, See item
number 8.
+ Following review, the statement will be incorporated into the Council’s unaudited
financial statements for 2020721,

4.0

Resource implications

4.1

51

There are no resource implications.

Due regard to equality of opportunity and regard to good relations {complete
the relevant sections)

General proposal with no clearly defined impact upon, or connection to, specific
eguality and good relations outcomes

It is not anticipated the proposal will have an adverse impact upon aquality of E
opportunity or good relations

52

Froposal relates to the introduction of a strategy,. policy initiative or practice
and / or sensitive or contentious decision

ves ] no X

If yas, please complate the following:

The policy (strategy, policy initiative or practice and / or decision) has been equality ]
screenad

The policy (strategy, policy initiative or practice and [/ or decision) will be subject to D
eguality screening prior to implementation
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53

Proposal inftfating consuftation

Consultation will seek the views of those directly affected by the proposal, address
barriers for particular Section 75 equality categories to participate and allow 0
adequate time for groups to consult amongst themselves

Consultation period will be 12 weeks [T

Consultation period will be less than 12 weeks (rationale to be provided) o

Rationaie:
Consultation not required.

6.0

Due regard to Rural Needs {please tick all that apply)

6.1

Proposal relates to developing, adopting, implementing or revising a palicy /
strategy / plan [ designing andfor delivering a public service

"r’ESD FH]E

If yes, please complete the following:

Rural Meeds Impact Assessment completed D

Appendices

Appendix 1: Appendix 1 — NMDDC Assurance Framework (including Code of Governance)
Agenda Number 8 = Annual Governance Statement
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Description of Key Elements the Council's Assurance Framework

The diagram shows how different sources of assurance and related key elements | control measures
combine to enable the Council to monitor its governance arrangements and produce the infarmation
which enables the Council 1o prepare their Annual Governance Statement. The diagram also shows
how the Council’s Audit Committee, the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee [SPE&R) and
Council provide oversight of these governance arrangements. The key elements of the framework are
described below.

Financial Control

& Financial Report for the vear ended 31 March is prepared annually and submitted o the Department
lfor Communities by 30 June. The report is then audited by the Northern Ireland Aodit Office (NIAD)
and published by 30 September each vear (after approval by Committee). There is a budgetary control
process including budget setting, budget monitaring and budget reporting. Senior Management Team
(SMT), Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Strategic Policy and Resources (SP&R) Committee
challenge the process corporately when budgets are approved annually and performance is repoited
quarterhy.

Standing Committees are also responsible for challenging and approving therr annual budget and
subsequenthy scrutinizing their budget performance at the end of each quarter in the following financial
year.
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Performance Management

The Council's performance management framework supports the implementation of the corporate and
directorate plans through regular monitoring, reporting and review and, in future, will support
monitoring / reporting an Community Planning outcomes. These plans set out what the Council
intends to deliver over the course of the year and through the performance framework regular
performance reports are produced detailing progress against key milestones and targets.,

These reports are considered by Directorate Management Teams and the CWMT and aclions for
improvement are agreed. These arrangements are also designed to ensure that the Council meets it
statutory duties in relation to performance improvement and our performance and related plans are
subject to annual MIAQ audit.

Internal Audit

Internal auditing is an independent and objective assurance designed to add value and improve an the
Councils operations. The Council has an Audtt Services Manager, who liaises with the fulby
independent specialist Auditing contractor who prepares an annual Strategy and Plan of work
designed to ensure that:
= there is a robust system of internal avdit of key Council activiies and processes through a plan
of work which affards suitable priority to the Council's objectives and risks
# lhereis a process of ensuring improvements to the Council's control environment, by providing
management with advice, training and recommendations 10 improve risk management,
governance and control arrangeaments, including the formal monitoring of the implementation of
audit recommendations
+ the specialist Auditing Contractor will be in a position to provide, at the end of each year, a
professional, evidence-based opinion on the adequacy of the Council's risk management,
contral and governance arrangements which, in turn, will support the preparation of the
Council's Annual Governance Statement
« 1he Council meets its legislative responsibilities for internal cantral, risk management and
internal audit.

External Audit

Each year, the Local Government Auditor (LGA), the NIAD, completes an audit of the Council's
accounts in accordance with legistation and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice issued by
the Chief LGA, The LGA Annual Report sets out their opinion on the Council's financial statements
and iz included within the annual Financial Report.

The MIAD also examines annually whether the Council has proper arrangements in place to secure
econamy, efficiency and effectivenass in the use of resources and that public money is properly
accounted for and undertakes an annual audit and assessment of the Council’s performance
improvement arrangements Their findings are summarised in an Annual Audit Letter, a Performance
audit report and a Report to those Charged with Governance.

Assurances from Management & Governance Statement

Each quarter, Assistant Directors provide their Director with a Quarterly Assurance Statement. The
Directors in turn then prepare a quarterly assurance statements for the Chief Executive. The
Assurance Statements confirms:
= Their responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound risk management and internal control
system which supports the achievement of the corporate and directorate objectives.
« Compliance with the risk review process and outlining progress to manage key risks and
highlight any significant governance issues that should be considered by SMT for inclusion
within the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.
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Risk Management

There is an agreed nsk management strategy which sets out the processes the Council has put in
place to manage risk, Risk registers and risk action plans are in place at corporate, directorate and
project level and are recorded on the corporate risk management system, GRACE Governance
Solutions, There is reporning to CMT, SMT and the Audit Commitiee on risk managemeant.

Mational Fraud Initiative [NFI)

MWFI is a UK-wide counter-fraud exercise, In Northemn Ireland, the exercise is undertaken by the
Comptroller and Auditor General for Northern Ireland ({C&AG) under his statutory data matching
powers set out in Article 4 of the Audit and Accountability (Morthern Ireland) Order 2003, The C&AG
works i collaboration with the Cabinet Office, Audit Scotland and Audit Wales, which undertake the
MFI exercise in England, Scotfand and \Wales respectively.

The NFI uses computerised technigues to compare information about individuals, held by different
public badies and on different financial systems, which might suggest the existence of fraud or error. It
means that public bodies can take action if amy fraud or error has aken place, and it allows auditors (o
assess the fraud prevention arrangements which those organisations have in place.

The Audit Services Manager coordinates this bi annual exercise to ensure Council complies with its
statutory duties and to ensure Council controls are effective to assist in preventing and detecting fraud
and error.

Health and Safety (H&S)

The Council has an H&ES Policy in place with an associated Organisation Structure and Arrangements
to deliver on the Policy. The Corporate Health and Safety Unit reports on a guarterly basis to a senior
management H&S Assurance Board and then on to the Audit Assurance Board and Audit & Risk
Panel on compliance and strategic malters regarding the Council's health and safety management
system. Operational matters are dealt with through the guarterly H&ES Committee structure. Routine
reparts include information on perffarmance against health and salety targets, accident statistics, palicy
changes, legislative changes and emerging health and safety issues. The Corporate H&S Unit deliver
an annual programme of health and safety inspections, audits and training to monitor and support the
management system. Risk assessments are in place at an operational level to identify and manage
health and safetly risks.

Code of Governance

Underlying our Assurance Framework is our Code of Governance. The Council is committed to the
principles of good governance and aur Code of Governance is & public statement of that commitment,
Our Code has been prepared in line with best practice and a summary is contained in the Annual
Governance Slatement, see appendix 1 for further detail.

Policies, procedures and processes

Policies, procedures and processes are designed to underpin day-to-day operations. All policies are
controlled centrally by the Head of Corporate Policy.

Audit Committes

Its purpose is to provide an independent assurance on the adeguacy of the Council’s risk
management framework and associated control environment.

Strategic Policy & Resources Committee (SP&R)

The ZPER Committee also oversees directly the financial management [ stewardship of the Council,
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Code of Governance Appendix 1

Introduction

Governance armangements in the public sector are keenly observed and sometimes criticised. We
need to ensure that we meet the highest standards and that our governance arrangements are not
anly sound but are seen to be sound.

Governance is about how Mewry, Moume and Down District Council (MMDDC) ensures that it is doing
the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and
accountable manner. It comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values, by which
Council is directed and controlled and through which it accounts to, engages with and, where
appropriate, leads its community.

The CIPFA Solace "Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: & Framework’ was issued in
April 2016 and represents best practice for developing and maintaining a local code of governance
and applies to annual governance statements prepared for the 201819 financial year onwards.

MMDDC iz committed to the principles of Good Governance and has developed this Code of
Sovernance o demonstrate this commitment. This Code will be updated and approved by the Audit
Committee on an annual basis.

The 7 Principles of Good Governance

Achieving the Intended Outcomes
While Acting in the Public Interest at all Times

G. o arnénting qood
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Behaving with integrity

b G e A

YWY WYY

Shared values communicated via community plan, corporate plan and key strategies
Mandatory Code of Conduct for Councillors

M1 charter for Elected Member Development

Staff Code of conduct

Council Constitution  including Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Scheme of
Delegation

Council Anti-Fraud Policies and Fraud Response Plan

Council participate in the National Fraud Initiative — Bi annual data matching exercise
Council Whistleblowing Policy

Gifts and Hospitality Policy

Declarations of interast

Conflicts of Interest Policy

Ensuring Openness

b U e R R R

Council and Committee meetings open to the public

Council and Committee agendas and minutas displayed on the Council web site
Consultation and engagement with staff and trade unions

Annual financial report published on the Council's web site

Access to Information Policy and Procedure

Council Magazineg, 'NMD Connect” published annually

Community Plan and Local Development Plan

Defining Outcomes

YN Y YY

Community Plan Living well together’

Corporate and Directorale Plans

Leisure Transformation - Mewry Leisure Centre and Down Leisure Centre Provision
Organisational Davelopment

Tourism Development and Marketing Strategy

Performance Improvement Plans

Local Development Plan

Optimising the achievement of cutcomes

b G e

Corporate and Directorate plans
Constitution

Strategic financial planning
Risk Manageament Policy

Developing Capacity and Capability

=
-
o
e

orrganisational Development

Harmanisation of policies

Development of a joint Employee Relations consultation and negotiating policy
Elected Members Development Charter/Member Leadership Programme

Finance, Performance and Risk Management

b G o A

Financial Regulations

Risk Management Policy

Audit Committee

Audit Services Manager wha liaises with a fulky independent outsourced Internal Audit firm
Annual Internal Audit Strateqy and Plan
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» Data Protection policy and procedures
= Director and Assistant Director quarnerly Assurance reporting
= Independent Audit Committee Chairperson

G. Transparency, Reporting and Effective Accountability

# NMDDC website

= Publication of key reports including Annual Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and
Performance Improvement Report

» Committee support framework

= Monitoring of all Internal and External Audil recommendations and guarterly updates to the
Audit Committee.

Compliance with the Code

This Code of Governance is supported by Policies, Procedures and Systems that determine and
control how the Council manages its affairs. Appendix B provides more detail, demonstrating how the
Council currently complies with the Code.

Maonitoring and Review

Our governance arrangements are reviewed annually (o ensure that they are adeguate and operating
effectively in practice. The results of these reviews are repored to the Audit Committee and inform the
preparation of our Annual Govemnance Staterment which forms part of our published financial report.

Internal Audit will undertake reviews of the Councils govermnance arrangemeants to ensure they are
adequate and operating effectively in practice,
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Narrative Report

ti | overvi nd external envircnment

With an estimated population of 181,368, a coastline of approximately 150 kilometres, and
encompassing an area of 1,634 square kilometres, we have three Areas of Qutstanding
Natural Beauty: Mourne, Ring of Gullion, and Strangford and Lecale.

With approximately 1,030 employees and an annual budget of circa £59M made up from
rates income, grants from central government and income generated from specific
services, we are the third largest of the eleven local government districts in Northern Ireland.
Qur 4] elected members from our seven district electoral areas serve a diverse population,
23% of which is aged 15 years and below, and 16% being 45 years and older.

T

Atandto:d

During our first five years we established a new governance and crganisational structure,
delivered major new facilities and projects for the benefit of residents and visitors, facilitated
agreement with partners on the Community Plan, secured major City Deal investment for
the future and began work on publishing a new Local Development Plan Preferred Options
Paper to shape planning across the district for the years ahead.
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While we acknowledge the COVID19 pandemic may be a continuing feature and have an
impact upon Council services, our new Corpeorate Plan (2021-2023) will continue to guide
Council’s activities and how we allocate our resources over the next two years. In doing so
we will work closely with all our partners in government and with the private, voluntary and
community sectors and strive to provide our staff with the development support and
resources needed fo provide better outcomes and high-quality services for all.

Governance

The figure below illustrates the assurance framework in place within the Council {approved
annually by the Audit Committee), that provides information on compliance with various
elements of the Council's Governance arrangements.

Council

/ f
Strategic Policy &

Audit Commiltee i : e —
Resources Committee

Annual Governance
Statement

e

Back to Agenda
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Our Code of Governance - how the Councii manages its affairs

[

Policies, Procedures and Processes

Council's Assurance Mapping and Code of Governance was revised and approved by the
Audit Committee on é July 2020, This was a best practice recommendation coming from the
Audit Committee self-assessment carried out by the independent chair of the Audit
Curmimillee in January 2019. The Annual Governance Statement on page 21 details the
Council's Code of Governance and significant Govermnance issues facing the Council. The
Annual Govermance Statement also details the special governance arrangements which
were in place due to COVID19.

Operational model

Each year, the Council must ensure it has the resources it needs to deliver services to the
standard expected by its ratepayers. Budget plans are submitted to the relevant commitiees
for approval regarding what the Council hopes to do and how much it will cost. This helps
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Council understand how much is required, and taking account of other sources of income,
what ‘rate’ needs to set for the district to raise the required money.

The budgeted income went towards the delivery of the following services, in the year ended
31 March 2021-

How we spend your money in 2020/21

Sevvices % of Cost par
total £'000
I 5 Recreation and sport 13% £7,640
. Community services 4% £2,141
. @ rouism 5% £3,102
@ Culture and heritage x £1,693
Waste wollection & disposal 21% £12,114
Other cleaning 4% £2 660
K public conweniences
. Environmental health Ix £2021
Cerneteries, minar works 1% £580
& bcensing
1 Buikding control 1% £543
&  Communily planming 1% £335
& Economle development 2% £1.218
@ Fuanning polcy 2% £1,005
.. Demacfatic representation 2% £1,215
L management
Dther services 8% €15 564
TOtal b Ud EEt . Loan interest and financing 12% £7,362

| £59,302,000

Risks and opportunities

The Council has an embedded process to manage risks and assist the achievement of its
objectives and performance targets. The Corporate Risk Register plays an integral role in
supporting production of the Corporate Plan and is subject fo a quarterly review by the
Audit Committee and the Senior Management Team (SMT). The Council's Risk
Management Policy was revised in July 2021 to reflect best practice. The key changes to
the best practice and our policy include:
« The introduction of five main principles of risk management and a number of
supporting principles;
« The introduction of the "three lines of defence" model which provides a simple and
effective way to delegate risk management roles and responsibilities;
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« The provision of clear roles and responsibilifies for those involved in; and
« A risk appetite statement for Council.

The key elements of the risk management process are highlighted below:

e | tegration i

Continual
Improvement

Communication

In order to assist the Chief Financial Officer in fulfilling her responsibilities, the Council have
put in place a process for assurance / stewardship reporting. The assurance statements
should reflect any significant internal control issues in the relevant Directorate or Service
Area and are timed to support the Accounting Officer in her preparation of the Annual
Governance Statement. Directors and Assistant Directors provide Assurance Statements to
the Chief Executive and Audit Services Manager on a guarterly basis.

The Council had 13 Corporate Risks at 22 April 2021, which included:

1. Failure to deliver the capital investment programme for the District;

Breach of legisiation/legisiative challenge in relation to the procurement of goods

and services and works;

Non-compliance with legislative requirements, including Health and Safety;

Failure o effectively manage waste;

Failure to provide timely planning decisions;

Failure to adequately plan for the future and deliver efficiencies and improvement

Failure to adequately react fo a major incident which would minimise any negative

consequences/impact;

Failure to implement an economic development programme to regenerate the

district and attract inward investment due to financial uncerfainties caused by the

current economic and political climate;

9. Lack of standardised T&Cs of employment leading to the failure to transform services
and could impact on current service delivery;

10. Eailure to adeguately manage sickness absence resulting in delays and an inability
to deliver Council services;

ohoniingld:  ho

L
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11. Risk that Council does not assist the post COVID 19 recovery of the district, therefore
failing in its objectives to regenerate and build a prosperous district due to the
inability of Council to be financially sustainable in the long term;

12. Impact of BREXIT on the local economy, organisation, effective service provision and

achievement of strategic objectives; and
13. Failure to adequately manage the Cyber Security threat.

Controls are in place to manage the risks were possible, and where actions have been
identified to further mitigate the risk, these are being progressed by members of SMT and the
Corporate Management Teams [CMT).

Council currently has three risks with a red residual score rating. These risks are highlighted
above (bold ltalics). Intemal Audit completed areview of Risk Management in March 2021.
The review received a satisfactory assurance rating.
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Financial Statements

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2021 is as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and it's financial position is as set out in
the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2021 (the Code)
and the Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 08/2021. It is the
purpose of this foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in
relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Newry, Mourne and Down District Council's finances
during the financial year 2020/21 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows
approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts.

The purpose of the Narrative Report is to provide information on the authority, its main
objectives and strategies and the principal risks it faces.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of
group financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures. The Council does not have material interests in such bodies and accordingly
is not required to prepare group financial statements,

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 48, shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by Council, analysed into 'usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied fo
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on
the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Summary (CIES).

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 47, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from rates income. Council's raise rates income to cover expenditure
in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost, The rates
income paosition is shown in the Movement in Reserves Stafement.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 49, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of
the Council's gssets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are
matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The
first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Council may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those
that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses [for example the Revaluation Reserve), where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assels are sold; and
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reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Stalement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating. investing and financing
activities, The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of rates income and
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash cutflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of
capital {i.e. borowing) to the Council.

Basis of Preparation

The Council's Statement of Accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended
to present to readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2020/21 year. There
are strict controls governing the accounting standards that must be complied with,
accounting policies must be applied on a consistent basis and officers must follow relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements.

There are alsc materiality thresholds to be adhered fo and officers are obliged to make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have endeavours to
ensure that as much information as possible has been presented to make the accounts as
user friendly as possible within these limitations.

Revaluation of Assets

A valuation exercise was carried out by Land and Property Services [LPS] as af 31 March
2021 on the Council's land and buildings. As a result, the value of land and buildings have
decreased from £177.7 million at 31 March 2020 to £174.3 million at 31 March 2021. In light
of COVID19, LPS has included a disclaimer in their report. The fallowing disclosure has been
added to the accounts and we are satisfied that appropriate values have been applied to
the revaluation of assets in accordance with the relevant guidance:

“Valuations of Land and Buildings are camied cut externally by Land and Property Services
(LPS), in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). As at the
valuation date, LPS considers that due to the COVID19 pandemic, there is a shortage of
reliable market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. Therefore,
the valuations provided by LPS were reported on the basis of 'material valuation
uncertainty' as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Global Standards. Consequently, less
certainty, and a higher degree of caution, should be attached to the valuations than would
normally be the case. However, LPS advised tha! their material uncertainty clause serves as
a precavution and docs not invalidate the valuation.”
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Performance Report

It has been a challenging period of change during which the Council has confinued to
define its new role and purpose, develop new policies and strategies, renew its key
infrastructure, integrate and modernise its services and meet ever increasing statutory
obligations whilst managing expectations and competing demands.

The Council's community planning vision is “Newry, Mourne and Down is a place with strong,
safe and vibrant communities where everyone has a good quality of life and access to
opportunities, choices and high-quality services which are sustainable, accessible and meet
people's needs." 'Living well together' is published on the Council's website and outlines the
Council's ambitions for the District until 2030.

Since launching the Living Well Together Community Flan, community planning partners and
local communities have come together to deliver high quality services and opportunities. This
ensures that local people have a say in what programmes and policies are implemented
and is built on the understanding that more can be achieved when we all work together in
partnership.

Council are concentrating on what we can do together to achieve our goals. We have now
more focused priorities including mental health, physical activity, tourism, access to quality
housing. and implementing new initiatives such as Participatory Budgeting and the
Community Support Partnership,

As part of our statutory responsibilities under the Local Government Act (NI) 2014, we are
required to monitor progress against the objectives of the Community Plan. Every two years
we are also required to publish a statement of the progress we have made. The surmmary
document 'Our Journey' can be accessed on the Council website. This outlines what we
have accomplished from 2015 to the present. A brochure outlining last year's inifiatives can
be accessed here https://www.newrymournedown.org/communities-leading-change. A further
statement of progress will be published in November 2021, with a review of the Community
Plan scheduled to be published during 2022.

Some of Council's main achievements are:

e Seven District Electoral Area [DEA)Forums have been established;

« The Communities Leading Change Participatory Budgeting initiative has been rolled
out. A total of £30,000 has been dllocated to community groups across the district,
with 2000 people participating and 70 groups funded. Nine partners have
contributed support or funding to this initiative;

» Development of a Housing Needs Action Plan to be implemented by the Housing
Needs Subgroup;

¢ Undertaken an Asset Mapping Project to identify surplus land and buildings that can
be used more effectively;

« FEstablishment of a Community Support Partnership which ensures that key public
services work together to respond to the needs of vulnerable people:;

+ Development of a project to better coordinate the refemral of individuals to Council
leisure facilities;

Successful completion of an online citizen engagements pilot project; and
Creation of the Strategic Stakeholders Forum's post COVID19 Recovery and Renewal
document.

Part 12 of the Local Government (NI} Act 2014 sets out a General Duty of Improvement for
local government, whereby all District Councils are required to put in place

arrangements fo secure confinuous improvement in the exercise of their functions. Each
financial year, Councils are reguired to set performance improvement objectives for the
services they provide. The guidance states that perfermance improvement is more than
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quantifiable gains in service output or efficiency, or in the internal effectiveness of an
organisation. Improvement should focus on activity that enhances the sustainable guality
of life and environment for communities.

In 2017-18, the Council set five performance improvement objectives which were directly
aligned to community planning outcomes and corporate priorities and were carried forward
to 2018-19 and 2019-20. These objectives have now been reviewed and updated within the
context of the Corporate Plan 2021-23 and following 'propasals for improvement' which
were put forward by the NI Audit Office in 2019.

In response to the impact of the COVID19 pandemic, the Department for Communities (DfC)
confirmed that Councils were not required to publish a Performance improvement Plan for

the 2020-21 financial year.

Below highlights what the Council's five key performance objectives were, and the key
achievements Council have made during the past three years.

Performance Status
Improvement Key achievements 2017-20
Objective Trend

Encourage healthy Newry and Down Leisure Centres open and
lifestyles through operational

increased
participation in
leisure, sport and
recreational activities |73 504 customer satisfaction rating with indoor
leisure facilities

12.7% increase in attendances at indoor leisure A
facilities / Target exceeded £

3,516 children and young people took part in
Community Play and other leisure initiatives

25,761 enrollments on Everybody Active 2020

Implementation of Play Strategy and Sports
Facility Strategy well underway

Plans to develop the Albert Basin Park, Newry
are progressing

The majority of residents are physically active for
30 minutes per week and are in good health

Improve economic 574 new businesses and 535 jobs promoted
growth by creating through the NI Business Start Programme
new business starts,
supporting the
growth of existing

31 social enterprise start ups created and 43
social enterprise jobs created

10




businesses and
promoting Newry,
Mourne and Down as
a premier tourist
destination
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| 198 business supported through ‘NMD Growth’

Employment rate increased from 65.6% to
73.6%

29 businesses supported and 133 jobs created
through the Rural Business Investment Scheme

£2.3m secured to invest in the fishing dependent
communities of Kilkeel, Annalong and Ardglass

Newry, Mourne and Down Economic
Development Strategy 2020-25 adopted

Planning application for phase 2 of the
Carlingford Lough Greenway submitted

113,357 pedestrians and cyclists used the
Greenway since September 2018

The Giant Adventure Festivals attracted over
360,000 visitors with an average satisfaction
rating of 96%

Decrease in tourist visitor numbers and spend

Deliver urban and
rural regeneration
initiatives that will
create a District
where people want to
live, work and invest
in

Warrenpoint Municipal Park restored and re-
opened, attracting 205,126 visitors in 2019-20

Newry/Warrenpoint Revitalisation Schemes and
Downpatrick/Newry Hill Street Environmental
Improvement Schemes complete

Forkhill Greenspace Project and Derrynore
Demesne complete

45 Village Plans updated/created and 7
environmental improvement schemes complete

£15m awarded to FFNI Consortium to improve
digital infrastructure*

Increased processing times for planning
applications and enforcement cases

LEAMS score of 64, which is below the regional
average of 68

i1
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Create a cleaner,
greener, more
attractive District

16 community groups participated in the Cleaner,
Greener Communities initiative

294 community clean ups supported

347 visits to schools and community groups to
deliver environmental awareness sessions

Arrangements to monitor the refuse collection
completion rate delayed

Glass collection standardised across the District

Downpatrick Household Recycling Centre open

Increase in blue and brown bin recyclable waste

7.6% increase in the rate of recycling, to 53.7%

86% of residents state that recycling is important
to them

18.3% increase in the amount of waste going to
landfill

Encourage and
empower local
communities to
participate in Council
engagement
structures and
initiatives

Significant representation from the community,
voluntary and business sectors on Council
engagement structures

1,310 meetings, events and programmes took
place through Community Engagement
Structures

Reduction in the number of Neighbourhood
Watch Schemes, from 177 to 95

94% of residents feel safe during the day and
87% feel safe after dark

1,838 homes secured and 15,573 devices fitted
through the Home Secure Scheme

277 service users received 45,391 calls through
the ‘Good Morning Good Neighbour Scheme’ in
2019-20

12
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£4.2m awarded to 1,385 applications through
the Financial Assistance Scheme

47 community projects funded through four
participatory budgeting schemes

4,924 recorded visits to the Ethnic Minority
Support Centre

Even though there was no Performance Improvement Plan for the 2020/21, Council still
monitored performance and statutory indicators. Below is a snap shot of some of the
successes from each Department for the 2020/21 year:

Enterprise, R neration and Tourism Directorafe

e B84% of visitors are satisfied with Warrenpoint Park and 89% agree the park enhances
their local quality of life;
Up to 1,000 businesses engaged in the #re:Launch Leadership Summit and 400
participants took part in NMD Enterprise Week;
181 new business starts supported and 164 new jobs promoted through business start
activity;
40 social enterprise businesses supported and 13 new social enterprise jobs created:
327 businesses supported and 47.5 jobs created through ‘NMD Growth', 'Digital
Growth' and 'Tender for Growth';
lssued 807 letters of offer, with a combined value of approximately £1.1m to assist
local businesses as they navigate the impact of COVID19;
Regeneration and Economic Development Strategy 2020-25 launched;
A total of 12 artisan markets took place in Downpatrick, Newcastle and Warrenpoint;
Improved processing times for local and major planning applications;
New tourism website launched;
Online Christmas and St Patrick's concerts reached 194,00 online viewers;
Webinar series delivered to around 160 tourism and hospitality businesses and
mentoring support provided to 13 tourism and hospitality businesses; and
25 tourism and hospitality businesses engaged in the development of new and
existing tourism businesses.

Aclive and Healthy Communities Directorate

s 87854 recorded visits at four community trails;

» Flectronic Grants Management System launched and £731k awarded to 377 projects
through the Financial Assisfance Scheme;

s 507 clients directly benefitted from the services provided through the Ethnic Minority
Support Centre;

« Newry, Down and Kilkeel Leisure Centres temporarily converted fo food distribution
hubs between March-August 2020;

+ 18,407 food parcels delivered to vulnerable households and 144 communify
organisations enlisted as volunteers;

e Worked in partnership with DAERA to establish import confrols at Warrenpoint Harbour
ahead of the transition period for EU Exit;

e 2,279 attendances recorded on the Everybody Active programme: and

» Broad range of physical activity and wellbeing programmes delivered virtually.

Neighbourhood Service Directorate

« Refuse collection services continued, as normal, throughout the pandemic;

® ® & & @ @

13




Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf Back to Agenda

« Achieved an average recycling rate of 53.3% befween Q1-3 2020-21 - slightly
reduced when compared to 2019-20 but 50% target by 2020 achieved;

¢ 50 schools participated in the calendar poster competition and 6,000 copies of the
calendor were printed;

e 15 schools attended the virtual teachers Eco-5chocls Information event in December;
and

¢ Phase 2 extension compete for Monkshill cemetery and Phase 2 extension of
Warrenpoint Cemetery 50% complete.

Corporate Services and Chief Executives Department

84% of invoices paid within 30 calendar days;

Decrease in the number of days lost due to sickness absence;

49 social media campaigns delivered with an overall reach of 2.4m;

Arrangements for virtual Cornmitiee meetings in place;

Chairperson supported in carrying out 66 virtual and in person engagements; and
Continued delivery of Capital Programme - Derrymore House Regeneration Scheme
complete, Newry Lower Hill Street complete, rural El scheme complete,

The 2021/22 Performance Improvement Plan was approved by the Strategy, Policy and
Resources Committee on 17 June 2021 and was published on the Council's website ahead
of the statutory deadline of 30 June 2021.

The performance improvement objectives do not describe every improvement the Council
plans to make during 2021-22. Alternatively, they provide an overview of how the Council
will address the issues which matter most to local communities. The Perfoarmance
Improvement Plan outlines the Council's objectives for improvement, how performance will
be measured and what positive outcomes stakeholders can expect as a result of
improvement activity. It represents the Council's commitment to achieving continuous
improvement in the delivery of key services. The Performance Improvement Objectives for
2021-22 are
1. We will encourage local people to lead healthy and active lives by improving the
quality of our parks and open spaces;
2. We will grow the economy by supporting local businesses and creating new jobs;
3. We willimprove the cleanliness of our District by addressing littering, fly tipping and
dog fouling incidents;
4. We will build the capacity of local communities through the Financial Assistance
Scherne; and
5. We willimprove the processing times of planning applications and enforcement
cases by implementing the Planning Service Improvement Programme.
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The resourcing of the Council's acftivities is outiined in the Annual Report, demonstrating the
funding available and what services this funding provided in 2020/21. There have been
changes to the way we report our financial performance since 2019/20, on the delivery on
these services in our financial statements. This change is mainly due to the requirement for
Councils to now report financial performance in line with their decision-making structure and
the introduction of the Expenditure and Funding analysis, as set out in note 2.

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how
the funding available to the Council {i.e. government grants, rates and business rates) for the
year has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The
Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes between the Council's directorates. Income and expenditure accounted
for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Financial Peformance

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Council's General fund increased by £7,519k fo
£19,228k. The budget plans formed part of the annual estimates for 2020/21. The total gross
income budget for the Council was set at £69,523k at June 2020. This was a revised budget
which was reprofiled at the request of SMT due to COVID19.

The Council reported a £9.440k underspend on service delivery at year end. Performance
against budget for each of the Committees is confinuously monitored throughout the year.
Management Accounts are presented and scrutinised quarterly at the Strategic Policy and
Resources Committee (SP&R). The year-end Management Accounts position was presented
to Committee on 17 June 2021. The overall favourable position for the year ended 31 March
2021 can be attributed to:

« COVID19 Funding Support from the Department of Communities of £3.15m has been
included. A further payment of £2.4m was received in March 2021 relating to the
2021/22 Financial year and will be treated as a reserve in the accounts as at 31st
March 2021. In addition, DEARA grant aid of £1.35 has been included;

Wages and salaries were £1.6m favourable against budget;

The Department provided an additional Rates Support Grant of £515k during 2020/21;
At year end there was a positive Rates Finalisation of £1.26m which is reflected within
the management accounts;

¢ Income from the HMRC COVID1? Job Retention Scheme of £1.8%k has been
included;

s Overall income |excluding grants) is showing £741k favourable based on the revised
figures, mainly due to posilive variances in planning, Building Control, Trade Waste
and Leisure income.

The Cost of Services on Continuing Operations of £64.1m (2019/20 - £62.6m), as reported in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also includes the accounting cost
of providing services in addition fo the amount funded from taxation. The total net
expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is £1.4m.

Borrowings

For the 2020/21 year the Council has an authorised borrowing limit of £114.2m, This is based
on the Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium fo long term. In
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conjunction with the Council's capital financing requirement of £27.8m, this ensure the
Council only borrows for capital purposes.

The Council currently holds £74.2m of loans, a decrease of £600k on the previous financial
year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years' capital programmes. The balance
sheet forecast shows that the Council expects to borrow up to £28.1m by the end of 2021/22.
The Authority may also borrow additional sums to pre-fund future years' requirements,
providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing of £114.2m.

During the year the Council repaid external loans of £4.9m. The Council borrowed £4m fo
fund ongoing capital projects. At 31 March 2020, the total amount outstanding on external

loans was £74.8m.
Capital Expenditure

The Council has an ambitious four-year capital programme of £58.6 million (February 2020).
The four-year capital programme is updated and approved annudlly by Council in February
each year. The investment will help Council meet the strategic objectives which are set out
in the Corparate Plan. The capital plan is continually reviewed by the Strategic Finance
Working Group.

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement includes allocations of £5.8m to fund capital expenditure.

The most significant capital projects which were completed during the year included;

. Bann Road Pavilion at a £295k due to COVIDI9 restrictions this has not yet opened.
. Newry Tennis Court bubble at a cost of £275k.

. Demymore Playpark opened in March 2021 at a cost of £273k

. Car -park at Strangford Road Depot completed at a cost of £180k

. Ballykinlar Community Centre completed at a cost of £128k.

Strategy and resource allocation

The Medium Term Financial Plan was approved by the Council in February 2020. In
accordance with the Local Government Finance Act (NI) 2011, the Chief Executive, as Chief
Financial Officer is required to provide assurance to members on the robustness of the
revenue estimates and the adequacy of the Council's reserves position as part of the rate
setting process. Detailed estimates were formulated, presented and scrutinised by members.
They took into account past outturn, current spending plans and likely future demand and

pressures.

When setting the district rate for 2020/21 (3 February 2020) consideration was given to the
following key financial factors and uncertainties for the Council:

e Various uncertainties remained as to the impact of Brexit on the NI Economy and
NMDDC rate base and funding streams, and no provision had been made in the
estimates for any financial implications arising. Furthermare, included within our 2020-
21 estimates were various areas of funding received from the European Union under
programmes which we have been advised will continue during the 2020-21 year,

« There was no agreed budget by the NI Executive at February 2020. The absence of
an agreed budget had the potential to impact on the ability of the Department for
Communities (DfC) to issue rates support grant fo Councils. Whilst the Local
Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011, Section 27 states that “"the
Department shall for each financial year make a grant under this section to Councils”

16



Back to Agenda

Councils were yet to be advised of the total amount of Rates Support Grant being
made available by the DIC for 2020-21.

Other factors leading to the 2020/21 rate increase included;

* A 2% pay increase for Local Government employees has been negofiated and
agreed with the trade unions at a Northern Ireland level.

» The increased costs of woste and recycling contracts across the district,

e In Autumn 2018, a successful Judicial Review challenge to the Rates Support Grant
allocation resulted in a significant reduction to the calculated proportion of RSG to
be paid to NMDDC. DfC have advised that NMDDC will receive a considerable
reduction to its RSG allocation in the 2020-21 yvear.

= A revaluation of non-domestic rateable values was undertaken by Land and Property
Services during 2019 "Reval 2020", the impact of which has been included in
NMDDC's medium term financial plan.

Council officers provided a budget for that 2020/21 financial year, based on best estimates
of expenditure and income at that time. The COVID19 global pandemic could not have
been foreseen and therefore was not factored into the budgets agreed by Council.
COVID1? has impocted significantly on Council's finances.

As a result of the impact of COVID19, Senior Management commenced a review and
revision of the 2020-21 budget. The objective of this review was to take account of the
impacts of COVID19 in our budgets; to reflect the significant losses of income anticipated but
also to review areas where expenditure can be reduced due to the impact of COVIDI? on
our working practices and locations. SMT anticipated that budgets will require continual
monitoring and review as government changes to lockdown rastrictions ease. Non-payroll
budgets were reduced by £1.6m and payroll budgets by £1.1m in June 2020.

A detailed cashflow was prepared by management and reviewed with the Chief Executive
to provide her with assurance as to Council's ability fo continue as a going concern. This was
reviewed ond updated throughout the year. It is anticipated that easing of lockdowns and
reopening of facilities with the increased health and safety measures required because of
COVID 19 will put considerable pressure on Council's cashflow and finances going forward.

Qutlook

The Council is fully aware that it is operating in a confinually challenging environment with
the ongoing COVID19 pandemic. The impact of COVID19 has significantly impacted on
Council's operations and finances in the current year. The future impact of COVID1? on
operations, on our rate base and on our finances is uncertain, and many assumptions are
included in our budgets for 2021-22.

Various uncertainties remain as to the impact of Brexit and the NI protocal will have on the NI
Economy and the Council. I is too early to understand the full implications of NI Protocol on
jobs and investment in the district until trade negotiations are finalised and grace periods
come to an end.

The Council continues to face a range of significant budget pressures including general
inflation, increases in demand for everyday services as the population grows, and increases
in core costs such as wage increases, the national living wage and pension contributions.
The Council will also face significant year on year increases in costs in several areas such as
waste disposal costs.
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However, the Council is committed to delivering business as usual where possible and will
continue with our ambitions for the district included within our interim Corporate Plan 2021-23.
The Council strives to deliver the highest standards and these efforts have been highlighted
below with some of Council's key achievements in the year ending 31 March 2021:

« NMDDC established the COVID19 Community Coordination hub in March 2020.
During the 17 weeks of shielding a total of 18,407 food boxes were delivered with the
assistance of 144 organisations and individuals throughout the District;

s A new Regeneration and Economic Development Strategy was launched in
November 2020, the core of which is to support local businesses and atfract
investment and jobs 1o the district;

« Hilllown and Kilclief have both seen the installation of new play parks:

+ 3 'blue flag' beaches and 4 ‘green flag' parks:

« 181 new business starts supported and 164 new jobs promoted through business start
activity;

o To support the economic recovery of the District, the Council has issued
approximately 807 letters of offer, with a combined value of approximately £1.1m to
assist local businesses as they navigate the impact of COVIDI?;

« £731k awarded to 377 projects across 16 thematic areas via Council's financial
system scheme; and

» Council received 1,177 planning applications and decided on 1,038, which is the
highest across Northern Ireland.

The Council seeks out cpportunities to pursue additional funding streams for the District,
adopting innovative appreaches to delivering services and working in partnership to ensure
the Council optimises its resources to deliver on its eight key Corporate objectives. A few of
the current significant initiatives Council are currently developing are outlined below:

1. City Deal - The Belfast City Deal is a 10-year investment, with a vision of creating
20,000 new and better paid jobs. This investment will ensure that as a Council we can
take forward and implement strategic priorities, which will position our district as a key
investment location and visitor atiraction, while praviding stimulus for new and better
employment opportunities for all.

In total, £850m has been secured to deliver the investment. In May 2020 the NI
Executive announced a £350m investment commitment to match fund the £350m
already committed from the UK government. Together with an additional £150m from
the Belfast Region City Deal partners, the total amount of £850m was achieved.

The City Deal investment in infrastructure, regeneration and tourism projects will also
help the region's economic recovery from the effects of COVIDI19. During 2020-21,
the Council has progressed comprehensive Outline Business Cases for both the Newry
City Centre Regeneration and Gateway 1o [he Moumes projects, while working with
City Deal partners on progressing regional programmes that will deliver digital and
innavation infrastructure and an employability and skills programme.

2. Full Fibre Northern Ireland (FFNI) — Fast, reliable digital connections have never been
more important, and it is crucial that our district is keeping pace. The Council is a lead
member of the FFNI Consortium, which is comprised of the 10 local authorities cutside
of Belfast and the Business Services Organisation.

The Consortium has been awarded £24m from the Department for Digital, Culture,

Media and Sport [DCMS) to implement a new collaborative programme to drive
greater investment in fibre and digital infrastructure across Northern Ireland. The
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Consortium’s phased delivery programme will manage two DCMS funded
programmes - Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN) and Rural Gigabit Connectivity (RGC). It
will also manage the delivery of further digital infrastructure initiatives and ensure a
vital local link for future digital programmes at local authority level.

This funding of £24m cims to deliver full fibre to 957 sites, which includes council
buildings, community centres, GP Surgeries, Ambulance statfions and Fire Stations by
December 2021, using the "Public Sector Anchor Tenancy" approach. This represents
Phase 1 of a proposed longer-term programme of fibre related investment.

3. The Peace IV Programme —is a cross-border initiative designed to support peace and
reconciliation in Northern Ireland and the Border region. Council has been awarded

£ 4,7m of EU funding to deliver the PEACE IV Local Action Plan - Beyond Tolerance.

As the lead partner, we are responsible for delivering those elements of the PEACE IV
Action Plan that will promote peace and reconciliation in three key areas:
 Children and Young People;
« Shared Spaces and Services; and
+ Building Peositive Relations.

COVID19 restrictions on gatherings and the ability to bring people together from
across the community have been a challenge since March 2020. The Councils PEACE
IV programme has responded by leading the way with online project delivery across
a diverse range of projects.

As part of these themes, we have been involved in a number of exciting projects
including the Cross Border Civic Leadership programme for young people, Women
and Civic leadership programme and the Growing Relations programme.

The COVID19 pandemic has had a profound impact on all aspects of life in the NMDDC
area. Through the 2021/22 the Council will adopt a pro-active approach to ensure that it
responds to the emerging needs of the residents and businesses.

In line with all other Councils in Northern Ireland and the wider public sector, NMDDC is
facing several challenges. Public finances are under increasing as a result of the pandemic,
ongoing tightening of Government spending agendas, amongst other challenges. Key risks
and planned mitigations are included in our Annual Governance Statement on Pages 21 to
35.
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Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts

The Counclil's Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland)] 2011 a council
shall make arangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall
designate an officer of the council as its chief financial officer and these arrangements shall
be carried out under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the
accounts,

These accounts were approved by the Chief Executive on 30™ June 2021,
The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations [Northern
ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's
Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows
for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

« observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom:;

e follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis, and

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
*» keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

» take reasonable steps for the prevention ond detection of fraud and other
iregularities.
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES'

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Council's Annual Governance Statement follows DfC accounts directions and where
applicable the factsheet on Governance Statements issued by NIAC in 2013, and comprises
the following sections:

o Scope of responsibility;

= The purpose of the governance framework;

» The governance framework;

* Review of effectiveness;

e Update on significant governance issues that were declared at the year-end
2019/20; and

« Significant governance issues for the year end 2020/21.

Scope of Responsibility

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiency and
effectively.

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council also has a duty under Local Government (Best
Value) Act [Northern Ireland) 2002 to make arrangements for continuous improvement in
the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the govemnance of its affairs,
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the
management of risk.

Newry, Mourme and Down District Council is required to prepare an Annual Governance
Statement which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code can be obtained from
Council's Audit Services Manager. This statement explains how fhe Council meets the
requirements of Regulation 4 of the Local Govermment [Accounts and Audit) Regulations
[Northern Ireland) 2015 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which the local govemment body is directed and controlled and its activities through
which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the authority to
maonitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led fo the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of infermal coniral is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongeing process
designed fo identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the local government
body's policies, dims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
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and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements.

The governance framework

The Council's 41 elected members and its committee and management structure ensures
sound governance, ownership and scrutiny in the decision-making process across the entire
organisation. The committee and management structure demonstrate how the decision-
making process is implemented in Council as follows:

Council's Mana gement Structure

Planning Committee

Audit Committee _t

Economy, Active and Healthy ) | Strategy, Policy
Regenerationand —  Communities — —f— Se"*_'ghb“”w and Resources
Tourism Committee Committee rvices Committee Committee

Strategic
Delivery Unit

Assistant Dircctor- | Assistant Director: Assistant Director:
—| Corporate Support Regeneration Sustainability and
e i— SETVICES Waste Management

Assistant Director:
Community
Development

I Finance and Asset
Management

Digital information

Assistant Director:

Assistant Director:

Econarmy, Growth
and Tourism

Assistant Director:

Assistant Director:
Street Scene

*Proposed Directorate Structure included within the Corporate Plan 2021-23 - not yet
operational.

In response to COVID19, the Council altered our normal decision-making processes to
ensure that we followed Public Health Agency guidance on social distancing and essential
travel while maintaining continuity of critical services.
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At a special Council Meeting on the 16" March 2020, Members agreed to amend the
Standing Orders as follows:

‘In the event of any civil emergency or any situation which urgent actions are required and
it is either nof reasonably practical to convene a meeting of Committee or Council or of
any such meetings called is in court the Chief Executive or Chief Officer nominated by her
or him may exercise all or any of the functions of the Council exceplting those which are
reserved to the Council, pursuing section 7 of the local Government Act NI 2014. Any
decisions taken pursuing to this Standing Order will be reported to the relevant Committee
or Council at the next available meeting. The Standing Order is to be read in conjunction
with paragraph 2.3 of Scheme of delegation and would happen following consultation with
political parties.’

On the 28" April 2020, Members agreed to amend the Standing Orders again fo allow for
remote meetings, this amendment had been made to the regulations by the Executive.
Members agreed to ‘amend Council's Standing Orders by the inclusion of the wording as
set out in the Appendix to the officer's report to facilitate the continued holding of ‘remote’
Committee and Council meetings unfil the necessary legislation is in force.’

On the &t July Members then approved to stand down delegated authority due to remote
Committee meeting now being operational. The record of decisions taken under delegated
autherity at Parly Reps Meetings from March 2020 - July 2020 were agreed and adopted at
this Council meeting. From é" July 2020 onwards, the normal govermance arrangements
were back in place.

Through the work of the committees, our Members oversee the work of the Council. All
Committee decisions need to be ratified by the full Council except where Committees have
been granted delegated autharity fo make decisions. The full Council, is the averarching
decision-making body.

The Enterprise, Regeneration and Tourism (ERT) Committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects directed fo the
regeneration and growth of the district in the context of the outcomes agreed in the
community and corporate plans. The ERT committee is also responsible for all matters
pertaining to policy and legislation in relation to building control and licencing issues.

The Active and Healthy Communities [AHC) Committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life
at local level in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans,

The Neighbourhcod Services [NS) Committee is responsible for the development and
implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at ensuring the
waste service is delivered across the district in the context of the outcomes agreed in the
community and corporate plans.

The Strategic Policy & Resources (SP&R) Committee is responsible for setting the strategic
direction of the Council through the development of its corporate plan and other key
corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. It will also ensure effective use of
resources and value for money for ratepayers and oversee the Council's relationship with
several key agencies and partners,

The Audit Committee provides an independent assurance on the adeguacy of the Council's
risk management framework and associated control environment. It provides an
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance, which is
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relied upon by Council, fo the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control
environment,

The Planning Committee is responsible for all the Council's planning functions, except those
matters, which are delegated to Officers or reserved to full Council.

In addifion to the committees listed above, there are also 20 Project Boards and Forums
which have been established to support the work of Committees.

The Council has an Assurance Framework in place that provides sufficient, continuous and
reliable assurance on organisational stewardship and the management of maijor risk fo
organisational success and the delivery of improved, cost effective services. The Assurance
| Framework is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee annually. The framework is
structured and provides reliable evidence to underpin the assessment of risk and control
environment for the Annual Govermnance Statement.

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set out in the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework (2014 edition). How we meet these seven core principles is
reviewed and updated annually and a summary of the key elements of our governance
framewaork are set out below:

B, Ensuring Openness

Eauncﬂandtmmmaameaﬂngsopenfethe

»
» Ee_ﬁcﬂ and Cor

minutes displayed on the Council web site

» Consultation and engagement with staff and
~ frade unions

» Annual financial report published on the
>

»

»

»

ommittee agendas and

Council's web site

Prompt Payment Stafistics published on the
website g ;
Access to Informahon Policy and Procedure
Council Mans. 'NMD Connect' published
annually

Community Plan and Local Development
Plan
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D. Optimising the achievement of outcomes E. Developing Capacity and Capability
» Corporate and Directorate plans » Organisational Development
¥ Constitution ¥ Harmonisation of policies
¥ Strategic financial planning » Development of a joint Employee Relations
» Risk Management Folicy consultation and negotiating policy
» EHected Members Development Charter/
Member Leadership Programme

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the
Senior Management Team within Council who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Internal Audit's annual report, and by

comments made by the external auditors.

Recommendations arising out of internal and external reviews are agreed with management
before finalisation to ensure that they will achieve the desired enhancement to the control
environment and are practical solutions. Registers are maintained of all outstanding
recommendations and these are circulated at Audit Committee. Assistant Directors must
update gquatletly progiess un implementing recommendations as part of the Assurance
Statement process. Follow up reviews are also reported fo the Audit Committee.

The Chief Executive has responsibility for preparing this Annual Governance Statement. In
preparing this statement, she has considered the governance framework and system of
internal contrals in place. The Chief Executive leads the Council's Senior Management Team
to collectively contribute and have oversight of the processes involved in maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework. In producing this statement, full
regard has been made to the register of interests for both Members and employees, reports
of the internal and external auditor, the Corporate Risk Register, Assurance Statements
provided by each Director and Assistant Director for year ended 31 March 2021.
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The Council itself maintains overall control of the govermnance framework and has been
involved, for example, in approving the implementation of the risk management and
statement of assurance processes. Primary responsibility for overseeing the govemnance
process is the responsibility of the Audit Committee as a standing committee of Council. The
role of the Audit Committee extends to receiving reports from the Council's internal and
external auditors to ensure that any issues raised are subject to due consideration and are
addressed by officers on a timely basis. In considering this Annual Governance Statement,
the Audit Committee have considered the review of the governance framework and system
of internal controls prepared by the Chief Executive.

The following process has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance framework:

« the Members: A committee structure is in place within Council which provides
elected Members with a democratic mechanism by which fo approve and scrutinise
Council Business. Positions of responsibility and Committee Members are appointed
as per the Local Government Act [N1) 2014 and are reflective of the broad political
makeup of the Council as elected.

The main decision-making body is full Council of elected Members who are ultimately
responsible for ensuring effective governance arangements are in place for Council
to achieve its goals and objectives. Council meets monthly in statutory meetings.
Council has established sub-Committees of Council to consider in further detail its
operations in line with specific areas of responsibility, as set out in the Constitution.
These Committees of elected members are informed by Council Officers.

Council business is governed by Council Standing Orders and Commitiee Terms of
Reference to ensure that the transaction of the business of Council and its
Committees is properly regulated and conducted in an efficient, fair and legal
manner.

« the Senior Officers: The Chief Executive ensures that all Council services and activities
are delivered in accordance with the aims of the Council's Corporate Plan. The Chief
Executive is supported by a Senior Management Team who meet weekly to monitor
strategic direction and good governance across the District. During 2020/21 a
meeting of the Corporate Management team occurred on a more regular basis due
to COVID19, however the meeting is normally monthly. Directors meet regularly with
senicr members of their Directorates to ensure that all staff are aware of Council's
pricrities and that risks are being appropriately managed.

Quarterly Assurance Statements are completed by Assistant Directors and Directors to
give the Chief Executive assurance over the controls that are in place. The Assurance
Statements also make the Chief Executive aware of any of the risks arising which may
have a negative impact on the Council.

s The Audit Committee: The Audit Committee provides an important source of
assurance to those charged with governance about the Council's arrangemenis for
managing risk, maintaining an effective control environment, and reporting on
financial and other perfermance. The Audit Committee has an Independent
Chairperson and met on four occasions during 2020/21. The Audit Committee Terms
of Reference were revised in April 2021 and sets out the purpose and the roles and
responsibilities of Committee.

The effectiveness of Audit Committee was reviewed at the Committee on 22 April
2021. This review was completed using the National Audit Office Self-Assessment
Checklist (September 2017).
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The Committee was satisfied with its overall performance when compared against
the checklist. The NAO checklist is the benchmark for best practice. The Audit
Committee Annual report 2020/21 will be presented to the July 2021 Audit Committee
to support the completion of the Annual Govemance Statement.

« By Internal Audit: The Internal Audit function is carried out by an independent firm in
accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. It provides assurance and
adbvisory services to assist Council achieve its objectives and improve the
effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance processes.

Eight internal audit assignments were carried out in 2020/21 as per the agreed
Internal audit plan for 2020/21. Internal Audit also carried out a follow up review of
the 2019/20 recommendations.

in addition, during the pre-meeting of the July 2020 Audit Committee, the Chief
Executive Informed Elected Members that given the high values of cost involved in
the use of single tender action arangements in Council, that she had commissioned
the Council's Internal Auditors to undertake an investigation into the Council's
approach to, and explanations for, the use of single tender actions. The final report
was issued on | December 2020 and 21 recommendations were agreed by
management.

The overall internal audit opinion for 2020/21 was satisfactory, withstanding the
significant issues identified in fleet management procedures, fuel management
procedures and the use if single tender actions within Council.

s Other explicit review / assurance mechanisms:

o Health and Safety: By reviews of Health and Safety by professionally qualified
officers, the Corporate Health and Safety Committee, and various Health and
Safety sub commitiees.

o Risk Management: Risk Management is embedded across all activities of the
Council and is a continuously evolving process, which is monitored closely by
the Audit Services Manager. The Corporate Risk Register is presented quarterly
to both SMT and the Audit Committes.

o External Funding: External funding throughout the year is subject fo
independent audits from the relevant funders i.e. European Court of Auditors,
Government Departments, SEUPB.

o Local Government Audit: Work carried out by the Local Government Auditor
during 2012/20 is also used by the Council as an additional assurance
mechanism. The Council's Performance Improvement Plan has also been
externally audited by the NIAO and received a satisfactory Assurance rating
in 2018/19.

o National Fraud Initiative (NFI} = Data Matching Exercise: The Council continues
to conform to the requirements of the NIAO NFI exercise. This matches
electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies o
prevent and detect fraud. Data matching compares sets of data, such as
payroll, pensions and trade creditors’ records of a body against other records
held by the same or another body. The latest batches of data matches were
released by the NIAQ February 2021 and work relating to the review and
investigation of high risk matches is due fo commence and continue over the
Summer months.

27



Back to Agenda

The Accounting Officer has also been advised on the review of effectiveness of the
governance framework by the Audit Committee and a plan to address any weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Update on Significant Governance Issues that were declared in 2019/20

Eight issues were declared in last year's Governance Statement and seven of these continue
o be declared as issues in this year's statement [Procurement and Contract Management, IT
Transformation Project (incorporating cyber risk), Economic and Political climate
(incorporating NI Protocol), Belfast City Region deal. Planning backlog, absenteeism and
COVIDI19).

An update on the remaining governance issues from 2019/20 is provided below:

1. Newry Rainbow Community Grant Funding

Council awarded £125,000 to Newry Rainbow Community to fund the UK and Ireland
Pride Event, which was hosted in Newry in August 2019.

Significant governance issues arose while verifying the first franche of £60,000 against
the Letter of Offer. Council's Fraud Response Group convened and brought a report
to the SP&R Committee highlighting the concerns Officers uncovered. Council
reversed the decision to award any further funding to Newry Rainbow Community.

When assessing all information available, an apparent overclaim for the previous
year's event by Newry Rainbow Community was discovered. Officers have sought to
reclaim this money on behalf of the ratepayer. This case is with PSNI and they are
taking forward the investigation, however this was delayed due to COVID192. PSNI
contacted Council in April 2021 to confirm that the investigation was to recommence
imminently due to relaxations in COVID1? restrictions.

2. Internal Audit - Contract Management

In 2019/20 the 'Contract Management' internal audif review received a limited
assurance. Internal Audit concluded that there are number of key controls missing
from the Council's systems for Confract management. Specifically, there is a need to:

o focus management's priorities on the completeness and accuracy of the
contract register;

o ensure that market tested contracts/procurements are in place to support
relevant spend in the Council;

o establish a separate contract management policy;

o review the approval mechanism for STAs to consider whether spend is likely to
be repeated and in these instances whether a contract should be put in
place instead; and

e to ensure performance reviews and post project evaluations are in place. Our
review also noted a need for dedicated contract management fraining for all
relevant Officers.

Significant progress has been made and out of the 12 recommendations made, 4
have been fully implemented, 7 partially implemented and 3 have nol yel been
implemented. Further detail provided within the significant govemance issue for
2020/21.
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Significant Governance Issues in 2020/21

The significant governance issues for 2020/21 were identified through the review of significant risks
within the Corporate Risk Register for the year ending 31 March 2021, consideration of significant
events / issues, internal / external audit reports and a review of the Directorate Assurance
Statements at year end.

Internal Audit conducted eight reviews during 2020/21. Six Internal Audit Reviews received a
satisfactory assurance rating and two reports received a limited assurance rating. In agreement with
the Audit Committee, Internal Audit also undertook an additional advisory review on Single Tender
Actions and the Council’s contract mapping exercise. The final report was issued on 1% December
2020 and 21 recommendations were agreed by management.

The two reports which received a limited Assurance Rating were as follows;

1. Fleet Management — Internal Audit concluded that there remain several key controls absent
from the Council’s internal control system for fleet management. Specifically, that
procedures relating to driver defect reports, safety inspections, routine maintenance checks
and the Council’s grey fleet are not being followed and there is a need to provide clarity on a
number of the current practices. Internal audit also noted that there has been limited
progress on the implementation of recommendations in a previously agreed internal audit
report and limited evidence that the implementation status of these recommendations is
being monitored by Council.

2. Fuel Management — Internal audit concluded that there are a number of key controls absent
from the Council’s systems for fuel management. Specifically, that there is a need to: clarify
roles and responsibilities in respect of fuel management and agree the draft Fuel
Management Policy and Procedure; establish a clear process for fuel stock counting and
reconciliations of fuel receipts and issues; document the physical security arrangements in
place for fuel held at the Greenbank and Strangford Road Depots; and consider whether
there should be additional fuel cards issued to replace the use of the forecourt sign off
sheets.

Internal Audit also concluded that the Council need to review the costs and benefits of the
system-based controls and reporting functionality of the Jigsaw software being used as
intended (without manual workarounds) to provide a more accurate management tool. They
also noted insufficient progress on the implementation of key recommendations made in
the Audit Services Manager's fuel audit report, dated November 2018.

Internal Audit also undertook the follow up review of recommendations made in the 2019/20
internal audit reviews including the advisory review of Health and Safety. The review identified that,
out of the 84 accepted recommendations, 24 recommendations were fully implemented, 24
recommendations were partially implemented, and 20 recommendations were not implemented. Of
the remaining 16 recommendations, 2 recommendations were no longer accepted and there were
14 recommendations which were it was not possible to test implementation, due mainly to
restrictions arising from the Council’s management of the COVID19 pandemic.

Internal Audit's Annual Opinion during the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, was that the
Council’s systems in relation to internal control, risk management and governance were, in general,
adequate and operated effectively and can provide satisfactory assurance in relation to the effective
and efficient achievement of the Council’s objectives withstanding the limited reports identified
above within the Neighbourhood Services Directorate.
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It should also be highlighted that over the last number of years, there has been a period of
significant change in senior management positions within the Neighbourhood Services Directorate.
Council have recently recruited a temporary Assistant Director of Waste Management (June 2021)
and the publicly advertised Director recruitment concluded in May 2021. There will be an acting
Director of Neighbourhood Services for one year.

The Audit Services Manager will continue to follow up on the legacy internal audit recommendations
which have not yet been implemented. The progress on the implementation on internal audit
recommendations will be reported quarterly at the Audit Committee along with an update on
outstanding external audit recommendations.

The following governance issues have been identified for the year ended 31* March 2021:
1. Procurement and Contract Management

Procurement has remained a significant risk within the Council’s Corporate Risk Register over the
past number of years. The control environment within Council has improved significantly over the
last number of years;

# The Newry, Mourne and Down District Council Procurement Policy and Procedures was
approved by the SP&R committee on 14 December 2017 and subsequently ratified by
Council on 8 January 2018. Business Case templates and procedures were approved in
February 2018 by SMT. The suite of documents was updated again on 23 June 2020,

e InJune 2018, a procurement expert delivered training to relevant staff. The training covered
drafting business cases, drafting tender documents, tender evaluation and training on the
Councils e-procurement system.

» A procurement training schedule was delivered to all staff. This commenced in February
2019 and was completed in May 2019. The five separate sessions targeted officers,
proportionate to the value of procurement exercises they regularly undertake.

s Internal Audit completed an audit of the Procurement policy and procedures in 2017/18,
with a further audit of compliance with the new policy and procedures in 2018/19. Both
reviews received a satisfactory level of assurance,

¢ Significant work has been undertaken to review all significant contract spend by Council and
to ensure appropriate contracts are in place and formulate a fully operational contract
register for future use by Council.

Even though considerable progress has been made, we are still highlighting procurement as a
significant issue as the policy and procedures continue to imbed. However, the main concern going
forward is contract management.

The Contract Management Internal Audit in May 2020 had a limited assurance rating. The report
stated that there are number of key controls missing from the Council's systems for Contract
management. SMT were concerned with the high level of spend during the first quarter of 2020/21
requiring Single Tender Action Approval. SMT directed CMT to ensure competitive procurement
processes are put in place immediately for all spend where legacy contracts have lapsed for each of
their service areas.

In July 2020, the Chief Executive informed Elected Members that given the high values of cost

involved in the use of STA arrangements in Council that she had commissioned the Council’s Internal
Auditors to undertake an investigation into the Council's approach to, and explanations for, the use

30



Back to Agenda

of single tender actions. The scope of the review also extended to considering the contract mapping
exercise being completed by the Council's Procurement Team. The final report was issued on 1%

December 2020 and 21 recommendations were agreed by management.

Following the STA review, all Directorates have prepared Procurement Action Plans to provide an
overview of all STAs and why they are necessary and when a procurement competition/contract will
be put in place. These Procurement Action Plans went to each of the Home Committees in January
and February 2021. These Directorate Action Plans will form the basis of an overarching
Procurement Plan for the organisation, which will be monitored by the Home Committee/Audit
Committee going forward.

3. IT Transformation Project

Council is currently undertaking an IT transformation project and considerable progress has been
made to date. This is a long-term project and until a time when the IT Strategy is fully implemented,
we are actively working at managing risk in this area and ensuring our current IT systems and IT
security is sufficiently robust to meet the needs of the organisation.

A key focus for Council going forward is the IT Secuirty/Cyber risk. A new risk was included within the
Corporate Risk Register in April 2021; ‘Risk of a cyber security event causing significant operational,
financial and reputational damage to the Council’. Due to COVID19, the majority of Council Officers
are remote users and are relying on their home internet services for remote working, consequently
the IT security risks are enhanced.

Council are currently progressing several actions to mitigate the IT Secuirty/Cyber risk as best we
can;
« Development of Service Area Business Continuity Plans with a focus on cyber
security/disaster recovery;
» Implementation of additional security tools including multifactor authentication, conditional
access and modern authentication where possible and appropriate; and
» Increase User resilience by continuing to engage with and follow guidance from the National
Cyber Security Centre (NCSC). Council will also continue to use Active Cyber Defence tools
from NCSC and supplement with vulnerability scans, actioning recommendations resulting
therefrom where possible and appropriate.

3. Economic and Political Climate including the NI Protocol

The financial landscape for the council is likely to remain challenging for the foreseeable future. The
added uncertainty brought about by the exit from the European Union and the implementation of
the NI Protocol will only serve to compound these issues. There is a risk that funding reductions may
continue beyond this point.

The COVID19 outbreak will also have a significant financial impact en the council in 2021/22 with the
impact then likely to be felt in future years. The council began to experience the impact of the
outbreak in March 2020 when several front-line service facilities were closed. Consequently, the
council will suffer significant reductions in income in 2021/22 and beyond due to Government
restrictions and guidelines. For further details see Significant Governance issue number 8.

The Council continues to face a range of significant budget pressures including general inflation, cost
pressures in waste and recycling, increases in demand for everyday services as the population grows,
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and increases in core costs such as wage increases, the national living wage and pension
contributions.

The major external influence on the Council’s future financial security will be the implementation of
the NI Protocol following the end of the current ‘grace periods’. Whilst still unclear what the local
implications will be, the impact of leaving the European Union (EU) may lead to increased instability
and uncertainty in respect of the financial context for councils and regions.

Warrenpoint Port is one of the three main points of entry for goods entering NI from GB. On the 1*
January 2021 GB will become a Third Country and in future high-risk foods imported into NI from GB
will be subject to Agri-Food import checks at point of entry. Required checks are being completed at
Warrenpoint Port on an on-going basis by trained and authorised staff, working flexible shifts
aligned with changeable sailing arrival times.

The EU are conducting a planned audit of the ports in NI, including Warrenpoint, from 21-30 June
2021. Threat assessments continue to be carried out by the PSNI on a fortnightly basis. Regular
meetings with relevant partners, DAERA, FSA, Border force, Seatruck, Warrenpoint Port, to continue
to share learning and work through operational issues as they arise. Officers continue to contribute
to the Project Steering group, led by DAERA, to deliver the required expanded checking capability at
NI POE's; including People, Process, IT and infrastructure to facilitate the free flow of existing trade
post transition as the NI Protocol is implemented on a phased basis.

The Special EU Programmes Body (SEUPB) have confirmed that arrangements are in place,
supported by the EU, UK and Irish Governments, providing for the continuation of the current PEACE
IV and INTERREG V Programmes. As regards a future PEACE PLUS Programme which will include both
PEACE and INTERREG activities, a considerable amount of preparatory work, research and
stakeholder engagement has taken place and SEUPB are committed to delivering PEACE PLUS by

2021.

Officers have been working closely with our businesses and stakeholders to prepare, as far as
possible for Brexit. Officers have been using social media and other business networks to raise
awareness among local businesses of the importance of acting now in Brexit preparation. A Brexit
information page has been established on NMD Business website sign posting businesses to the
main sources of information, the availability of the trader support service and financial assistance
available via i.e. Intertrade Ireland for Brexit preparedness.

It is too early to understand the full implications of Brexit on jobs and investment in the District. The
Council established a Brexit Member’s forum in March 2018. The forum consists of Senior Officers
and Members. Their role is to create contingency plans to monitor and take actions to reduce the
risks arising due to the current levels of uncertainty. The outcomes of the Forum meetings are
reported to the ERT Committee. Officers are also continuing to work across Council practitioner
groups in areas of procurement, waste, finance and legal to ascertain the impact of Brexit and will
plan for any impacts once known,

4, Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD)

The Belfast City Deal is a 10-year investment, with a vision of creating 20,000 new and better paid
jobs. This investment will ensure that as a Council we can take forward and implement strategic
priorities, which will position our district as a key investment location and visitor attraction, while
providing stimulus for new and better employment opportunities for all.
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In total, £850m has been secured to deliver the investment. The City Deal investment in
infrastructure, regeneration and tourism projects will also help the region’s economic recovery from
the effects of COVID189.

However, there is still some uncertainty around funding for specific projects until the individual
business cases are fully approved by the necessary partners. There is a risk to Council that there
could be a shortfall in funding for a specific project. Although Belfast City Council are taking the lead
in administering the programme, there are substantial running costs which are shared between
participating Councils which could also have an impact on the overall funding available for key

projects.

To help mitigate this funding risk, NMDDC have governance structures in place via Project Steering
Boards, which will have over sight on the design, development and implementation of the
regeneration and tourism capital projects which Council are the lead on. Council decisions on City
Deal initiatives will be tabled at the ERT Committee, which will be supplemented with a focused City
Deal councillor reference group. At a regional level Advisory Boards have been established under
each of the City Deal pillars, and NMDDC officials sit on the Executive Board, relevant pillar boards,
Finance Directors Group and other groups as relevant to NMDDC's projects.

As the BRCD project progresses it is essential that governance structures are kept under review to
ensure they reflect the changing demands as projects move from planning to implementation.

5. Planning Backlog

The failure to deliver timely planning decisions is highlighted as a risk within the Corporate Risk
Register. Internal Audit completed an audit of the planning function during 2017/18 and this
received a limited assurance rating. At the 15" June 2021 all 8 recommendations had been fully

implemented.

Senior Management formally commenced a Service Improvement Programme with the appointment
of an experienced planning project consultant in January 2020. The aim of the Improvement
Programme s to review and refine processes and procedures where necessary, to review team
arrangements and to improve the responsiveness of the Development Management Service,
including the time taken to determine planning applications and to bring enforcement matters to a
satisfactory conclusion.

Before COVID-19, significant progress was being made in terms of service and performance
improvement. The pandemic has introduced several additional layers of challenge to the
Development Management Service which did not exist 12 months ago.

The number of planning applications received by the Council did not subside during the pandemic
and the total number is greater than 2019/20. From 1¢ April 2020 to 31" December 2020, Council
received 1,177 planning applications and decided on 1,038, which is the highest across Northern
Ireland. Given the high number of planning applications submitted, combined with the challenges
posed by the it was not possible to reduce the overall number planning applications within the
system this year.

However, the number of applications which are in the system for 12 months or more, is still 187 (183
for 2019/20), Council had set a target of 125. The number of enforcements cases in the system for
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12 months or more has reduced from 620 (March 2020} to 551 (December 2020), however Council
have set a target of 425. Figures provided by the Department for Infrastructure, Analysis, Statistics
and Research indicated a significant reduction in the average time taken to determine local
applications from 24.3 weeks in November 2019 to 19.6 weeks for December 2020 (regional average

is 17.8 weeks).

Reducing the number of live planning applications within the system and the caseloads of Officers is
the key challenge for the next phase of the Improvement Programme. The changes implemented will
set the foundations for a more modern, efficient, resilient and responsive Development
Management Service in the longer term. They will be subject to ongoing review and they will be
complemented by further changes in line with the Improvement Strategy when conditions allow.

6. Absenteeism

In July 2019, The SMT decided to include a new Corporate Risk in relation to absence management.
Corporate Risk 10 is currently an amber risk; ‘Failure to adequately manage sickness absence
resulting in delays and an inability to deliver Council services'.

The Council's level of sickness absence is currently the greater than the Local Government average
of 13.9 days, this was highlighted in the Local Government Audit Report 2020. Management are
highlighting this on the Corporate Risk Register to put in place actions to bring the average number
of days down to an acceptable level.

For the twelve-month period ending 28 February 2021, days lost due to sickness decreased by
1,800.5; compared to the year ended 28 February 2020, representing a decrease of 12.7%. Absence
Management statistics are now provided to the SP&R Committee on a quarterly basis.

As well as reminding Line Managers of their duties in relation to absence management, Council
introduced a Managing Attendance Procedure. On 12 March 2020 the SP&R Committee agreed to
approve the recommended policy be adopted by Council for implementation. The policy replaced six
legacy absence management policies which were previously in operation and became effective on 1
April 2020.

Internal Audit completed an assurance-based review on ‘HR Policies — Managing Attendance at
Work' in April 2021. Internal concluded that that the Council has in place a documented Managing
Attendance Policy and a Managing Attendance Procedure, both dated February 2020. This Policy and
Procedure supersedes all previous attendance management procedures in operation within the
Council with effect from 1 April 2020 and is applicable to all employees. Internal Audit were content
that the Policy and Procedure documents provide an adequate set of control mechanisms for
employees and line managers to manage attendance at work.

8. coviD19

The current year has been unprecedented. The impact of COVID19 has significantly impacted on
Council's operations and finances in the current year. The future impact of COVID19 on operations,
on our rate base and on our finances is uncertain, and many assumptions are included in our
budgets for 2021-22.
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Council is continuing to follow government and public health advice. Council response to the
COVID19 situation aims to ensure we will continue to maintain a high level of corporate governance
and compliance with existing policies and procedures.

The financial impact of COVID19 is reported regularly to Members via the SP&R Committee by the
Director of Corporate Services, There were significant income losses following the enforced closures
of leisure and tourism facilities, trade waste and car parking, as well as the ongoing fixed costs of
Council (payroll, utilities etc) were highlighted as putting pressure onto the budgets agreed when the
rate was set for the 2020-21 year, as well as noting additional costs incurred by Council as a direct
result of COVID19.

However, it was also noted that there was opportunity for Council to achieve costs savings in certain
areas, as well as to avail of a number of Government schemes to assist financial pressures.

The longer-term impact of the COVID19 pandemic on Council’s financial position cannot be advised
until the various financial assistance income streams are confirmed, until we have more clarity as to
when we will be able to open up our facilities, and until the local and global impact of the pandemic
is understood. It is reasonable to anticipate at this stage that Council will not be as financially stable,
with the same level of usable reserves and the same access to external borrowings while the
pandemic is still evolving.

The full financial implications of the COVID19 pandemic will significantly impact the future of the
Council and the impact of COVID19 on Council’s risk register has been assessed by the SMT and will
remain a key focus for the organisation as we work to recover from the pandemic as a district. The
assurance reporting templates were also updated to ensure the effects of the pandemic were
captured for each Directorate.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed
CHAIR

Signed
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Leading member [or equivalent] & Chief Executive [or equivalent] on behalf of [ihe
authority]
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REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 m

INTRODUCTION

The Local Governmen! [Accounts and Audit]) Regulations (Narthern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government bodies fo
prepare aremuneralion repert as part of the statement of occounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local Government
Finance Act [Northern Ireland)] 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Nerthern Ireland)
2012, which came inlo operation on | April 2012,

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2020 were issued by the Department for
Communities on 3 April 2020 (Circular LG 08/2020). Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on

council websites.

Following local eleclions on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils for a four year term. Newry,
Moume and Down District Council had 41 councillors in 2020/2021.

SEMIOR EMFLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined
by the National Jaint Council (NJC) for Local Govemment Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the
Executive Managemeant Team/Senior Management Team,

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Goavernment Stalf Commissions’ Code of
Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open
compedtition.

Unless otherwise stated below. the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-ended.
INDEPENDENT MEMBER - AUDIT COMMITTEE

Bronag Slevin is an Independent Member and Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The role is to help promote the highest
standards in the finoncial management of the Councll and thereby ensure the accountabllity of public funds. Thisisa 4
year temporary appointment from 15 Aprl 2019 until 31 March 2023, A paymenf of £500 is paid per meeling (Ihis includes
preparation time of £250 and £250 for the meeting| plus fravel and expenses. In 2020/2021 she was paid £2,142.86 meeling
allowance plus £441.50 travel costs.



Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf Back to Agenda

ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS m

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local Govermmeni Finance Act (Northemn
Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government [Payments to Councillors) Regulafions (Northern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances pald to councillors (audited information)

Allowance 201%9/20 2018/1%
Total Allowances Number of Councillors Total Allowances Number of Counciilors
£ recelving the Allowance £ receiving the
Allowance

Basic Allowance 434,926 42 414,592 55
Special 76,334 i 73,169 29
Responsibilily
Alrvarmmro
Chairperson 20,145 2 20,165 2
Allowance
Vice Chairperson 6,293 2 6,293 2
Allowance
Mileage Allowance 7.094 18 40,303 45
Public Transport 508 2 6,072 10
and Other Travel
Incidentals
Subsistence 150 4 4,414 10
Courses/ 8175 é 4,533 a8
Conferences Visils
(registration &
ioining fees)
Dependents’ Carers 2,283 1 449 1
Allowance
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 755,930 - 789,990

Detalls of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2019/20 are published on the council website at
www . newrymourmedown.org/councillorns-allowanceas-and-expenseas
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Execulive Management Team/Senior Management Team. The lollowing
tabla provides details of the remuneralion paid 1o senior employaes:

Table 2: Remuneration (including salary)(oudited information]
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Oflficers 2020/2021 2019/2020 =
Salary (Full Bonus | Benefits in Total Salary (Full Bonus | Benefits in Total
year equivalent | Paymenis kind (to year equivalen! | Payments | kind (to
In brackets neares! £100) In brackets nearest £100)
where where
applicable) applicable)
£'000 £ £'000 £
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
95- 100 95-100
Marie Ward (110 - 115 full {(110-115
Clerk & Chiaf Executive | 119120 100 ta0-1as year i 0 full year
aguivalent] equivitent]
Michael Lipsett
Director of Active & 85-90 100 85 - 90 85-90 100 85-%0
Healthy Communities
Dorinnia Carville
Director of Corporate 85-90 100 BS - 90 85-%0 100 85-90
Services
Roland Moore
Director of 43 - 50 (85 - 50-55(85-
Neighbourhaod 20 full year 100 20 full yeor B0 -B5 400 80 -85
Services equivalent) equivalent)
{Until 02/11/2020)

Conor Mallon ggﬂé;f Il fagﬂé;? 1l
Director of Enterprise, | 85-90 100 g5-50 | ! y’e 216 M . 100 v'ear ¥
Regeneration & Tourism equivalent) equivalent]

fonathon wceride | 70-7s eo- 70 - 75 (80 -
85 full year - 200 85 full yaar &0 - 65 1200 &0 - &5
Neighbourhood Services equivalent) vivalent)
{From 02/11/2020} e
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Counclls are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneralion of the highest paid member of the Execulive
Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median remuneralion of the Council's workforce,

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team in
the financial year 201920 was £115 - £120. This was 5.2 times the median remuneralion of the werkforce, which was

£23.080.

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Execufive Management Team/Senior
Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce (audited information)

| 2020/21 2019/20
Salary Band af Highes! Paid member of the 115-120 110-115
Median Total Remuneration £23.080 £22.292
Ratlo 5.20 5.00

In 201%9/20, no employess received remuneration in excess of Ihe highest paid member of the Executive Management
Team/Senior Managemenl Team.

Tatal remuneration includes salary. bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
"Salary" includes gross salary, overtime, and any grafia payments,

Bonus Payments
Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and ore made a3 part of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate
to the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. There were no bonuses due in 2020/21,

Beneflts in Kind
The monetary value of benefils in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and frealed by HM Revenue and

Cusloms as o oxoble emolumeni.

Exit Pockages for stafi
There were no exit packoges 2020/21,

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2020/21 (audited information)

2020727 201%/20
Number of | Mumber of Tolal Telal Cost of | Numbercf | Number of Total Total Cost of
Compulsory Other Number of | Fackagesin | Compulsory Other Number of | Packages in
Severance Redundancies | deparfures Exit each Cost |Redundancies| departures Exit each Cost
Package Cost Band agreed |Packagesin Band agreed Packages Band
each Cost £'000 in each £'000
Band Cost Band

£0 - £20.000
[£20.001 - £E40.000 2 2 71.419
£40,001 - £60.000
£40.001 - £80.000 1 | 71.168)
£80.001 - E100.000
£100,001 - £150.000 1 1 146.340)
£1350,001 - £200.000
Tatal 0 0 0 [ Ll 4 288,927

EL]
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Pension Benelits m

The Lecal Government Pension Scheme [Morthern Ireland) {the Scheme] which is a funded defined benefil pension
scheme, which provides refirement benefits for councll employees on a “career average revalued eamings” basis from 1
April 201 5. Prior to that date benefits were built up on a "final salary" basis.

From 1 Aprl 2015, a member bullds up retiremen! pension al the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year, Pension
benefits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up al the rale of 1/60th pensionable
pay for each year of membership. There is ne aulomatic lump sum provided in respec! of membership after 31 March
2009. Pension benefits in relation o any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and
3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each yeor of membership up to 31 March 2009. Al retirernent, members
may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs [HMRC) limits. The conversion
rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillors have been able 1o join the Scheme since May 2011, The Scheme application s modified to reflect the fact that
councillars held an elecled office. Councillor memibpers have always accrued pension on a career average basis, Priorfo |
Aprl 2015 pension was accrued af a rate of 1/60th and thereafier at a rale of 1/4%th.

The Scheme is funded by confributions made by both employees/councillors and employers, Pricr to 1 Aprll 2009,
member's contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration [except for those who were enlifled to
confribute to the Scheme at 5% before | February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment), Tiered member
confribution rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 Aprl 2009. From 1 April
2015, the member conlribulion rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for liered confribulion rates are revised by the Department for Communifies in April each year in
accordonce with the increase applied to a pension in payment, The bands, effective from 1 April 2020, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
Main Section 50/50 Section
[ £0 - £15,000 So% 2.75%
2 £15.001 - £22.900 5.8% 2.90%
3 £22.901 - £38,300 6.5% 3.25%
4 £38.301- £46.400 6.8% 3.40%
5 £46,401 - £21.900 B.5% 4.25%
& More than £21.700 10.5% 5.25%

L
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Emplayers’ contribution rates are defermined by the fund's acfuary every three years al the triennial valuation. A formal m
triennial actuarial valualion of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 was caried out in 2019/20 and set the employer contribution
rates for the 3 years commencing 1 April 2020 as loliows:

Table é: Employer Confribution Rates

Year Employer Coniribution Rate
1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 19.50%
1 April 2021 - 31 March 20272 19.50%
1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023 19.50%

The Local Govemment Pension Scheme Regulafions (Morthern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local
Government Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations [Morthern lreland] 2014 were made on
30 June 2014, Both sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015,

Councillors have been able fo join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus
far. However, the in-year pension confribufions made by the Council for all councillers during 2020/21 was £137,217.25,

The value of pension banefits of the most senicr manogement of the Council occrued during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior stalf in 2020/21 (audited informafion)

Officers Accrued Pension at | Real increase In pension| CETV at CEIV at | Real increase in CETV
pension age as at and related lump sum at]  31/3/21 31/3/10
313/ pension age £'000
£'000 E'000 £'000 £'000
Marie Ward
Clerk & Chief 15 - 20 no lump sum 3.0-3.5no lump sum 207 165 30
Executive
Michael Lipsett
Diractor of Active 8] 40- 45 pluslump sumof | 1.5 - 2.0 plus lump sum 779 793 35
Healthy f0-75 of0.0-05
Darinnia Carville
Director of 15 - 20 no lump sum 1.5 - 2.0 no lump sum 207 179 7
Corporate Services
Roland Moore
Direct f
Neigafoﬁrmoood 15 - 20 plus lump sum of | 1.5- 2.0 plus lump sum 254 205 19
Services (Until 10-15 of0.0-0.5
02/11/2020)
Conor Mallon
Director of
Enterprise,
Regeneration & 0- 5 no lump sum 0.5- 1.0 no lump sum 9 a0 5
Tourism
Jonathon McBride
Director of
Nargsr;z?:;t:}od 0- 35 no lump sum 0.5+ 1.0 no lump sum 39 30 5
(From 02/11/2020)

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the acluarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme banefits occrued by a member al a porlicular
polnt in time, The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from
the scheme. It is a payment made by a pension scheme or omangement to secure pension banefils in another pension
scheme or orrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to ransfer the pension benefits they have
accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown reiate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of theair total membership of the pension scheme. not just their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. CETVs are calculaled in accordance with The Occupalional Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
{Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any actual or potenfial reduction to benefits resulting from Litetime
Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken,
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137

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. If takes account of the increase in accrued pension
| due to Inflation, confrioulions paid by the employee (including the value of any benelits transfered from ancther pension

scheme or arangement] and uses common market valualion factors for the start and end of the period.

Chief Executive
7 December 2020

42



Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf Back to Agenda

Cerlificate of the Chief Financial Officer m

| certity that:

(a) the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 on pages 45 to 48 hos been prepared in the form
directed by the Department for Communities and under the accounfing policies set out on pages 4% to 45.

(Bl in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash
flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31 March 2020,

Chief Financlal Officer

Date Sepl 2021

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resclution of the Council on 7 Decembear 2020,

Chalman

Date Sepl 2021
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council m
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Mewry, Mourne and Down District Councll
Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Siatement for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stateament shows the accounting cost in the yvear of providing services in occordance
with generally accepted accounting proctices. rather than the amount fo be funded fram taxation. Councils raise taxation 1o cover
axpenditure in accordance with statulory requirements; this may be difference from the accounting cost. The taxalion position is shown
in both the Expendifure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2020/21 2019/20

Service Expendiluin ‘HNoles £ i £ £ i £

Chist Execulive 2 2,611,850 [1.890,495) 721,355 2776139 (36,81 64] 2,741,323
Corporate Services 2 12.919,546 [146,482)  12.573064 14,869,015 [358,735) 14,510,280
:;Lf:ﬁ:‘se Rbganeaions 2 15,746,937 1£,463.797) 9.283,140 15,908,782 [5.248,593) 10,640,189

I

Nelghbiourhood Services 2 31,031,515 [2.449044) 28582471 78,767,326 [1,156.282) 27,431 044
Aclive & Healthy 9 17,255 B&0 (4,280,518) 12,589,342 20,385,133 [6.359 288] 14,025,845

Commmunilies

Cost of Services on Confinuing
Operations

[ 15,430, 334) 54,149 372 B2, 728,395 49,548, 681

Qiner Cpuraling Expendiwrg) - 2,790,271 [1,267.360) 1522911 : (18.940) {18,960}
Income
Financing and Investment ;

¢ 9 3,443,066 [95.537) 3347 529 3198791 (139,679 3,089,112

Income and Expanditure

[Surplus) or Defich on
Cisconfinued Operations

Share ol Operaling Resulls of
cssocialas and joint ventures

Net Operafing Expenditure 85813045 {16 793 23: 47019812 A5 7 (13,318, 353 T2 408 B33

Taxation and Non-Specific

Erin hedina 10 (74.315.733) [74.715.733) - [61.647.041) (61,647,041

85.813.045 [R1,708,948) 15.895921) BE 927,184 (74,545, 394) 10940, 752

[Surplus) /Deficit on
revalualicn of non-current 1 [2.50%.372) 15.579.349)

asels

Impairment losses on non-
current assels charged to the ll
Revaluation Resanse

Surphus/|Deficl} ansing on
revaluahon of availabla-ior- 7
sale financial assets

Ramansuramants of the Mat

( el 21 E A LRRE LA 25500
Defined Benefil Lobilly |Assei) oo
Share of Olhar
Comprehansive Fxpencktira 0

& Income of associoles and
joint veniures

Othesr Comprehentive Ineome and Expendlilure T 300,628

Tolal Comprehensive income and Expendifure | 404, 707

47



Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf

Newry, Mourne and Down District Councll
Movement In Reserves Stalement for the year anded 31 March 2021

The Moverment in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the yvear fo the end on the different reserves heldby the
autharity, analysed into 'vsable reserves’ (e, those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other
‘unusabile resarves, The Jtatemant shows how the moverments in year of the Council's reserves are broken down between gains and
lasses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjusiment required to retum to the
amounis chargeable fo council tax for the year. The Mel Increase/Decrease line shows the stalutary General Fund Balance
moverneants in the year following those adjustments.

Apdil 2019 [ 1.616.113 . 13,484,614

Bolance asaf |

Movement In reserves durlng
the year

Surplus/ (Daficil] on Ihe
Dotk OF tatvices (10.961.792) . . (10,7481,792) . [10,961,792)

Other Comprehensive

Income and Expendliure ; g (15.31) (15.6311

Telal Comprehensive Income
i = {10,961,792) 2 - (10,961, 792) [15,631) [10,977,423)

Adjustmanis bebween
occounting basis & funding 9.933.654 . . 9,933,456 19.933.458) |
under regulalions

Met increase belore fransfers
te Statulory and Other (1,028,134) - - (1.028,134) (7.74%.287T) (10.977.423)
Reserves

Translers to / from Slalutory
and Other Reserves 857,500 [847.500) =

Increase/ Decrease In yeor (140,638) [B847.500) + (1.,028,138) (7.949,287) (10,977.423)

12,456 478 922,708 54 379 187

Bolonce as ot 31 Marc h 2020
Movement in reserves during
the year

m:én rﬁfﬁ"“}. “:T'h“ 5895.92) 2 : 5895921 : 5,895,921

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expencdilure F : - - (7.300.626) {7.300.628)

Tolal Comprehensive Income
and Expendilure 5495521 . . 5,895,921 {7.300,428) (1.404,707)

Adjusimants between
accounting bosis & funding $.778.230 . . 9.778.230 |9.804 870) [26.640]

uvnder regulafions

Met Increase belore fransters

to Stotutory and Othaer 15,674,151 - - 1546741587 (17.105,498) (1.431,347)
Resarves
Transtars bo J tam Statutery (B.154,749) 8,154,749 . ] - .

and Other Reserves

Increase/ Decrease In year 7.519,402 B,154,749 - 15,674,151 (17,105, 4%8) (1.431.347)

Baolance as of 31 Morch 202
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Mewry, Mourne and Down Distrdct Council
Balance Sheet as ot 31 March 2021

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheel date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council, The net assets
of the Council [assets less liabilities) are matchad by the reserves held by the Council, Reserves are reporied in two categeries. Tha first
category of reserves are usable reserveas, l.e. those reserves thaf the Council may use to provide services, subject fo the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second cofegory of reserves is those that the Council
is nof able to use to provide servicas, This calegory of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealiced gaing ond Iosses (for exomple the
Revaluation Reservel], whare amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold
timing differences shown in the Movement in Resarves Statement line * Adjustments between agccounting basis and funding basis under
regulations'.

Mole 31 Mar 21 31 Mor 20
i W i
Fixed Assels 1 186,642,457 187 433,008
Long Term Invesimaents 14 .
Long Term Deblons 15 1 15844 107,420

LONG TERM ASSETS

Short Term Invastmaenls 14 - .
Inventordes 14 507.890 548,787
Shorl Tenm Debtors 15 ?.825.400 7,358,147
Cosh ond Cash Equivalents 25 14:224.381 B&7. 194

Assely Held for Sala I

CURRENT ASSETS 256557871 8,774,132
Bank Overdralt 25 - 766,941
Short Tesm Bormowing 17 10,415,318 15,589,508
Short Term Creditors 8 13,204,270 11,000,367
Prowisions 9 500,000 575,000
CURRENT LIABILITIES 24 120 588 27,731,838
Long Term Creditors 18 .
Pravisions 19 3,178,207 2.935,488
Long Term Borrowing 17 63,707,557 59.255.059
Other Long Tarm Liobilties 2 67,362,000 53.807.000
Donoled Assefs Account 22 E .
Capital Grants Receipts in Advonce 23
LONG TERM LIABJLITIES 136,247,764 115,997,547
MET ASSETS 52,947 Bd) 54 379187
USABLE RESERVES
Capitol Recsipls Retarve 24 -
Capital Fund 26 : £27.813
Renewal and Repais Fund 26 . -
Other Bolonces and Reserves 26 B202.342 120,000
Ganeral Fund 26 19,228,267 11,708,845
28,130,429 12,454 478
UNUSABLE RESERVES
Copital Adjustment Account 27 41797914 44.870.973
Fnancial Instumenis Adpsiment Account a7 . H
Revaluation Reserve 27 53.993.812 52,242,324
Financial Instrumants Revaivation Reserve il : -
Pensions Reserve g |69.342,000] {53,807 000)
Caopital Recelpls Defered Accounl 27 - -
Accumulaled Absences Account a7 {47%.643) 1353,643)
Landhll Regulafions Reserve 27
Prowisions Dscount Rate Reserve 27 [1.132.854) (1.029.947]

24.817.211 41.922.709
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Cash Flow Stalement at 31 March 2021

The Cash Flow Slatement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting periad. The statemant
shows how the Council generales and usas cash and cash equivalents by clossifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Council are funded by way of taxafion and grant income or lrom the recipients of services provided by the Councll. Investing acfivities
represent the extent to which cosh outflows have been made for resources which are intended to confribute o the Council's futura
service delivery, Cash fiows arising from financing activifies are useful in predicting claims on future cash llows by praviders of capital
fi.e borowing) 1o the Councll,

DR == TS s Foae [ Cl e v
nel Deficit on The provision of services |5.895,921) 10,961,792
Adjustment for non-cash mavamenis 25 18,505,093 14,282,394
Adfust for items included in the nel surplus or deficit on the provision of 25 (7.972,859) (2112870}

senvices that are investing ond linoncing aclivities

Nl cash Hows rom operating aclivities 14 428,155 1,207,632
Cash fiows from Invesling Activifies 25 2416686 {6,284, 788)
Mat Cash lows from Finoncing Activities a3 7 20.4692) 5093791

Med increase of decreass in cash and cash egquivalents

Cosh and cash aguivalents al The beginning ol the reporfing period 100,235 185,597

14,224,384

Cosh and cash eguivalents af the end of the repaifing petiod
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Mewry. Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's fransactions for the 2020/21 financial
vear and its position at the year-end of 31 March 20. The Council is reguired to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8] in the Local Government [Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northem Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS). The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial

instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from coniracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recegnised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet,

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
rmade.

- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrurnent rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the confract,

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet,
Where it is doubtful that debts will be seltled, the balance of deblors is written down and a
charge made fo revenue for the income that might not be collected.

activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received.
Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

MNewry, Mourne and Down District Council has not acquired operations (or fransferred
operations under machinery of Government arrangements) during the financial year.

The Council has not discontinued any operations (or fransferred cperations under
comkbinations of public sector bodies) during the financial year.
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fii}

iv)

v

i)

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews 147

As each of the legacy Councils had substantially completed its Single Status, Job Evaluation
and Pay and Grading Reviews, Council has not acquired an opening provision for such
matters. As the staff of the former legacy Councils and transferring in from the Department of
the Environment's Planning Service are protected by the Transfer of Protected Undertakings
Act (Narthern Ireland) 2006 (TUPE). Council has not sought to amend these Employees’ terms
and conditions of Employment. Appropriate provision wiill be made for any financial
conseguences of employees terms and conditions as and when required,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours, Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature within the agreed fime frame or less from the date of acquisifion and that are
readily convertible to known amaounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value,

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafis
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash
management.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Councll a possible
asset whose existence wil only be cenfirmed by the occumrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council,

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disciosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.

Contingent Liabilifies

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council o possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of
uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but effherit is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligafion
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Bolance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.
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wil)

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees, and are recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made
for the cost of holiday entitlernents (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) eamed by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the
next financlial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicabie in the
following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The
accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entittements are charged to
revenue in the financial year in which the holidoy absence occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination penefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an cfficer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision
to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefils and are charged on an
accruals basis fo the appropriate service segment or, where applicable. fo a corporate
service segment at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a resfructuring. Where termination benefits
involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance
o be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination
benefits and replace them with debts for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are memibers of the Northern Ireland Local Govermment Officers’
Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement
lump sums and pensions), earmed as employees worked for the Council,

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund

The Northemn Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabiiities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
melhod - i.e. an gssessment of the fulure payments that will be made in relation to
refirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates , etc, and projections of projected earmings for current
employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Emplover's liabilities.
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The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unguoted securilies - professional estimate
propery — market value

unitised securities - current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

Service cost comprising:

Current Service Cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of vears of service earned this year -
agllocated in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement to the services for
which the employees worked

Past Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statements,

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), —i.e. net interest expense for the
Council, the change during the pericd in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time charged to the financing ond Investment Income and Expenditure
line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is calculated by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the pericd to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period - taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liakility (asset) during the period as a
result of contribution and benefit payments.

Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure [Remeasurernents)

The Retum on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Inlerest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) charged fo the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from
the plan assets, fogether with redlised and unreadlised gains or losses on the plan assets, less
any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined
benefit cbligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the iast actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Parficipants — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due to
payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution increases pension
due to the employee in the future].

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme asseis due to payments info the
scheme by the employer.

In relation to refirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly fo
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transters to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirerment benefits
and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the
Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits
are eamed by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of refirement benefits in
the event of early retirements, Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted
for using the same policies that are applied to the NMorthern Ireland Local Government
Officers’ pension fund.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service(NICS) Pension Scheme

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council refained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as it it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet,

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of
Accounis is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period -
the Statement of Accounis is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicalive of condifions that arcse affer the reporting period — the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.
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The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusied up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually
the date the Local Government Auditor issues the cerlificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the itéms are to an
understanding of the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustiments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively,
i.e.in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior
period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of
transactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied refrospectively (unless stated otherwise)
by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior pericd as if the new
palicy had always been applied,

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected refrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Financial Instruments

Financial liabilifies are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly discounls
eslimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable
for the year according to the loan agreement,

However, the bonds issued by the Council in 2020/21 are caried at a lower amortised cost
than the outstanding principal, and inferest is charged at a marginally higher effective rate
of interest than the rate payable to bondholders, as a material amount of costs incumred in its
issue is being financed over the life of the stock.

56

Back to Agenda



Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assels

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics,
There are three main classes of financial assels measured at:

- ameriised cost

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). and

- fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI)

The Council's business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose
confractual payments are not sclely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assels measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subseguently measured at their amortised cost.
Annudl credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the
carnrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable |plus accrued interest]) and interest
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the
vear in the loan agreement,

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure ling in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving
ta increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require
that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the
financial year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund
Balance is managed by a fransfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to

the Financing and Investrment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement,
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Foreign Cumrency Translation

Where the Council has entered into g transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses
are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
cantributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

- the Council will comply with the conditions aftached to the payments, and
- the grants or confributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited o the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement uniil conditions attaching to the grant or contribufion have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential
must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been saftisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors, When conditions are safisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attibutable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-3pecific Grant Income [non-ring-fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Siatement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, itis posted fo
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Council as a result of past events (e.q. software licences) is capilalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible
asset to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being
available} and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset., Expenditure is capitalised where it
can be measured reliably as atfributable o the asset and restricted to that incurred during
the development phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).
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Intangible assefs are measured inifially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active
market. In praclice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are
therefore carried at amortised cost, The depreciable amount of an intangibie asset is
amorfised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s)
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on infangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and |osses are not permitted to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital
Receipts Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net redlisable value.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula.

Long-term confracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations
safisfied based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the
financial year.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods oris held for sale.

Invesiment properties are measured inifially at cost and subsequentily at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted
to the Financing and investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The same trealment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result
in a gain for the Generdl Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangemenits to have animpact on the General Fund
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landiill Allowances $cheme operates under the Landfill Alowances Scheme [Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there
are ne fradable allowances. Itis not a 'cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are
not tradable. For this recson, landfill allowances are not recognised os assefs on the Balance
Sheet,
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where o lease covers both land and buildings. the land and buildings elements are
consicdered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asseis

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception
[or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The assel recognised is
matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council
are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on enfry into o lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability, Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incumred.

Leose payments are apporficned belween:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the inferest in the property.plant or equipment — applied to
write down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)]

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset
does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual confribution is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting fransaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Staterment as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straignt-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does nol match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a reni-free period at
the commencement of the lease).
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The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written oul of the Balance Sheet os a disposal. At the commencement of
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure ling in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same ling in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal),
maiched by a lease asset (long term debior) in the Balance Sheet,

Lease rentals receivable ore gpporiioned between;

a. a charge for the acguisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease debtor together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investiment income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated
as a capital receipt, Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General
Fund Balance to the Copital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement,
Where the amount due in relation fo the legse asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals
in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred
Copital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals
are paid, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are fransfered to the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Disfrict rates, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangemenits for capital financing.
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operaling Lease

Where the Council granis an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other
Cperafing Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
Credits are made on a straighi-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match
the pattern of payments (e.g. there is g premium paid at the commencement of the lease],
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying
amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease ferm on the same
basis as rental income.
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Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as
an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs 1o sell. Where there is o
subsequent decrease fo fair value less cosls to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciaticn is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of s carrying amount before
they were classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations
that wouid have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of
the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off agalnst the camying value of the asset at the time
of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred fo the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amountis received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the
Capital Receipts Reserve, Receip!s are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movernent in Reserves Statement.

Overheads and Support Services
The cosfs of overheads and support services are not allocated 1o service segments.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acguisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment
is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of
the iterm can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an
asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.
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Measurement

Assels are initially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

c. the inifial estimate of the cosfs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assels acquired other than by purchase is deemed fo be its fair value, unless the
acquisiion does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Council]. In the latfer case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council,

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
condifionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement,

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost

- surplus assets - Revalued

- all other assets — fair value, determined as the omount that would be paid for the asset inits
existing use {existing use value — EUV)

-Infrastructure - revalued by LPS,

- Vehicles are not revalued.

Where there is no maorkel-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet af current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the
year-end, but as @ minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits
to the Revaluation Reserve fo recognise unrealised gains. Exceptlionally, gains might be
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from
the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that dafe have been consolidated
into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
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Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains),

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is wrilten down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently. the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
nof been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assels by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community
Assets) and assels that are not yet available for use [i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

-Land: Land is not depreciated as it has an infinite useful life.

-Buildings: Straight -line depreciation over useful life which depends on the type of property
and use- it normally ranges from 10 to 50 years.

-Community; No determinable useful life and not depreciated held af neminal value.
-Investment: Held at market/fair value - Not depreciated

-infrastructure: depreciation is based on a straight line basis using the remaining useful life of
the asset,

-Landfill Site: End of Useful Life

-Heritage Assets: These ore not normally subject to depreciation and are held ot either
Historic cost or insurance valuation.,

-Plant and Machinery: Straight Hine depreciation over useful life which depends on the type
of asset and ranges from 3 to 7 years.

-Vehicles: Straighf-line depreciation over 7 years,

-Information Technology: Straight-line depreciation 3 to 10 years.

-Assets Under Construction: Held at Historic Cost and are not depreciated.

-Intangibles: Software licenses and systems are depreciated over estimated useful life.

Compeonentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose costis
significant in relation fo the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated
separately.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an armount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture. The carrying amounts of heritage assels are reviewed where there is
evidence of impairment for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical
deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its authenficity. Any impairment is
recognised and measured in accordance with the Council's general policy on impairment

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be
held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of

heritage.
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Provisions

Provisicns are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a fronsfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Fer instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a setilement or the payment of compensafion.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking info account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision caried in the
Balance Sheet, Estimated setiements are reviewed at the end of each financial year -
where it becomes less than probable that a fransfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower selflement than anticipated is made), the provision s reversed and
credited back to the relevant service,

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another parly [e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council
setties the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by transterring amounts out of the General Fund
Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure $tatement. The reserve is then transfemred back
info the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the
expenditure,

Cerfain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do net represent usable
resources for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.

Charges to Revenve for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding non-current assels during the vear:

a. depreciation atfributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impaiment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off
c. amoriisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service,

66

Back to Agenda



Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf

xxvi)

xxvii)

xxix)

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual confribution
from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing reguirement [equal
to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in
accordance with stotutory guidonce]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and
amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance
[minimum revenue provision (MRP]) or the Statutory Repayment of Loans Fund Advances), by
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Statement in the vear.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, o transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

Value Added Tax

VAT payable is included os an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properfies and some of its financial instruments such as eguity shareholdings at fair value at
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liakility takes place either;

a} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

licaboility,

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or llabifity using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

wWhen measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Council uses valuation technigues thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient dato is available, maximising the use of relevant cbservable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code)
requires an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an
accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet
adopted. The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied
retrospectively unless fransifional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact
on disciosures spanning two financial years,

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts conlains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking
into account historical experience, current frends and other relevant factors. However,
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially
different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Valuations of Land and Buildings are camied out externally by Land and Property Services
(LPS], in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set outin the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors [RICS). As at the
valuation date, LPS considers that due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there is a shortage of
reliable market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. Therefore, the
valuations provided by LPS were reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty' as
per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Global Standards. Consequently, less certainty, and a
higher degree of caution, should be attached to the valuations than would normally be the
case. However, LPS advised that their material uncertainty clause serves as a precaution and
does not invdlidate the valuation.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

Estimation of the net liakility to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used. the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in refirement ages. mortality rates and expected retums on pension fund assets. A
firm of consulling actuaries AON Hewitt is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice
about the assumptlions to be applied. The pension figures disclosed in these financial
statements are sensitive to the assumptions used.
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Newry, Mowne and Down Distict Councll

Notes to the Financlal Siatemants
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

.

W Ex pendlilure and Funding Analyils

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expendilure is used and funded from resources [govemmeni granis, renls. council
tax and business rates) by local auihorilies in companson with Inose resources consumed or eamed by authorfies in accordance with
generally accepled accounting prachices. I also shows how Ihis expenditure is allocoled for decision making purposes between the
councils [directorales/ services/ departments]. Income ond expenditure accounted for under generally occepled accounling praciices is
presenled move fully In the Comprahensive Income and Expendilure Statement,

Chig! Execulive 718822 {2433} 721,355 2.742011 LaE 2,741,323
Conporale Senvices 13347 335 774271 12,573,064 14,830 792 328,012 14,510,250
Erdeprize, Regenaalion &

Touim 4,112.555 (8,1 70585 7,283,140 7.254. 973 {3.405,91 61 10,660,189
rigighbowrhoed Sarvices 2 e8.472 (4,41 2.599) 28582471 24,485,182 {945,862 27.431,044
Acthva L Heallty Commrmundios B.171.26% (4, 79B.073) 12.989.342 B919.398 15, 108, 447) 14,0285 845
{Olher Incame and Expendiure [46,013704) 4.031,58% {70.045,2%3) (57.411,019) 1,195,870 (58.606.887)

Suvpdus/ (DelicH) on General
Fund Balance In Year

7519 402

[140,438)
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Hewry, Moume and Down Dishrlct Councll
Nates to the Financlal Stotements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2

Mol o Ihe Exp 2 and Funding Analysis

Back to Agenda

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expendilure Chargeable 1o the General Fund fo amive al the amounts in the
Comprehensive Income and  Expenadilure Stotement. The relevant ransfers between reserves are explained in the Moverment in Reserves Statement

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basls

2020/21
| R A ] e e | 1| 3 —— S = =
Chiel Execulive |2.433} {2,433
Corporale Services 5352621 [4.564,000) [14.350) 774271
Enterprise. Regenaralion & Tourism 15,124,654) (45931} |5.170.585)
Neighbouhood Saervices {4.466.731) {1464.268] [4.512.597)
Aclive & Heollhy Commmunilles (4.778.128) | 19.945) 148,073
Net Cosl of Senices [¥.014.892) (4,564,000 [278,927] [13.80%.81%]
Cthar Income and Expanditure from tho 5.212,589 [1. 1810000 4,001,589
Expendiure and Funding Analysis
Differance batwesan General Fund supbus or dalficlt 3,804,303} 15.745,000) {228,927} 9.7 78,2300
and Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure
Statement Surplus o Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Adjpustmants hom General Fund o omive af The

oo T haar wome and Expendiiure

Adjustrments for
Caphal

Adjusiments betwaen Funding and Accounling Basls
2019/20

Net Change lor

Ihe Fension

Qther Stafulony
Adjustments

stofutery  adjusin

Statement & mo Purposes Ad ustments Adiusimenis _ i
3 ety 1] e ol | || i £ || eTwin ra

Chinf Exacufive 488 &BB

Corpordgte Services 5413747 15.087.000) 1,245 328,002

Enlaipise, Reganerafion & Tourdsm {3,374, 544) {11.370] |3.405.714)

MNeighbourhood Services {3, 102.371) | 56,509 [2.945.843)

Active & Heaithy Commmuniiles {5.073.443) |33,984) 15.104.447)

Net Cost ol Services (4.156.833) (5,067,000) 114,108 {11,12%,525)

Other Income and Expendilure from lhe

Expendilure and Fending Analysis 2,142,870 1947,000] 1195870

Dillerance between General Fund suplus or deflcit

and Caomprehensive income and Expendliure

Slatement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of

Services (4,013,763 [5.034,000) 114,108 (%933, 655

i)
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Adjustmenis for Capital Furposes

Adjusimants o Genaral Fund Boldnces o meel the requiraments of generally accepted accounting procfices, (his eolurmn adds In depreciation and impairrent
and revaluation goins and losses in the services line and lor:

a) Other cperaling expendiure - adiush for copilol disposals with a lransler al Income on disposal of assels and the amaounts wiltlen olf for thase assals.

b Fnoncing and Invastment income and expanditure - the stalutery charges for capital financing i.e, Minimum Revenue Pravision and olher revenus
confribulions are deducted from financing and invesiment income and expendifure os these are nol chorgeoble under generaily accepled accounling

¢ Ffaxation and Non Specific Granl Inceme and Expenditute - Capitol grants are adjusted for income nat chargeable under generally ascepted accounting
praclices. Revorwe granls are adjusted from those receivable in tha yeor to those receivable without condilions or lor which condifions were safislled thraughau
the yeat. The Taxafion and Men Specific Grant Income and Expendiiue Fne s crediied with capltal grants recaivable in the yeor without condilions or for which

condifions wera sallsfied in the yvoar.
Net change lof the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the remoeval of pansion confribuions and the addifion of A5 19 Employee Beneliis pension related expenditure and income:

For Services: this represents the removai of the emplover pension confibulions made by the aulhorly as allowed by statute and the replacemant with curant
sarvice cosls and posf senvice cosls,

For Financing and investment income and expenditure: the nel inferest an ine delined benefit fability i chorged o the CIES,

Cthar stalulory differences

Others statutory adjustments between amounts debifed/credited o the Comprahernsive Income and Expendilure Stolement and omounis payakblefrecelvable fo
be recognised under stalule;

Far Financing ond Invesiment incorne and expanditure the other statutory adjustments column recognises adjusiments o General Fund lor the fiming difterences
tor premiums and discounts.

The charge under Taxalion ond non-specific gran! income and expenditure represants the diliforence belwean whal 5 chargeable tnder stalutory regulafions far

dishict rates and NDR thot was projecied to be received af Ihe stort of fhe year and the Income recognised under generally accepted occounfing praclices in
the Code,

n



Newry, Mourne and Down Digshict Councll

Notes to the Financiol Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

4 Ssegmental Income and Expandilure

Income and expenditure on o segmeniol bosis are onalysed below:
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hiel Execulive 15,600 . = 754,063
Corporale Sarvices 264,77F 4867 | 2243888 £73.377 4.663, 203 . - 3,774,000
Enferprise. Regenerahon & Tounsm| _ 3.217.546 g = 1.775.802 3,758,773 = = 3348,852
Nelghbourhood Serices T.081.034 - = 2631029 | 14061752 - z 1,835,402
acive K Heallhy Commmriler | 3400 - ——Tm e TE . — 750
ToTal Moarna Anclyied on g
segmental basis 4,921,807 3867 | 2243888 | 7049996 | 28327097 5 : 13,488 895

2019/320

$05.853

hiaf Execulive 6.5 = . u -
Comorale Services 343,748 18875 | 2.226818 417,475 4,789 588 - - 6.206.759 |
Enlerprise, Regeneration & Toursm|  4.007.421 - - 1.789.648 6,256,658 - - 1.E04,857 |
eignbowhood Services 1.151.852 - - 2597045 | 16718371 - - G05.326
Achiva & Heallhy Commmunilias 3037851 B - 2,826,350 4,877 831 - - 2237113
[Tl ncome Analysed on g
segmental bast 8,557,757 18.875 | 2226414 7,640,538 35,550,299 - - 10,584,095
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes 1o the Financial Slalemants
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2021

LN Expandilure and income Analysed by Mature

Employes Benefits Exponses
Clher Services Expendiiure
Support Service Recharges
Depreciation, Amartisafion, Impaimeant
interest Payments

Lot on Iha Dsposal of Assels

Cther Expanditure

Totol Expendiure

Feas, Churges and olher serndee Income
Interest ond investment Income

Disirict role income

Government grants and Condribulions
Suppor! Service Income

Gain on the Disposal ol Assels

Ciher Income

Tolal Inceme

{Surplus) or Defick on the Provision of Services

{33.881.524)

{39.970,990) {37.4B6,884)

1 (6,848,412} (9341209

9 |3.424,888} {3.173.614)
8 {1.522911] -

(18,178} (25.175)

[85.444,903) [65.927.186)

16,697,696 13.159.714

] 5274 20,760
10 57,409,482 54,781,844
10 17,306,051 6,865,177
8 - 18960
70,261 118919

1,708,986 74,955,394

0431063 {10.987,792)
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2020721 201%/20

R ety Tt — e "Notes RN Yo T e ik £
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Stalement but required by stolule lo be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:
Imparmants [losses & reversal] of non-curnant
mssals I . [10.904)
Derecognilion [other than disposal) of non-current
assels 11
Revaralion increases/decreasas laken lo
Surplus/Deficlt on the Provision of Serices 1 {301,583) 1.7V, 375
Deprecialion charged in the year on non-current
assels 11 7,148,995 6,840,412 7,440,538 2.341.209
nal Revenue expendilure unded rom copital
under statule 12 7064 479 2838425
Carmying amaunt of non curant assels sold 8 2790271
Froceeds from ihe sale of PPAE. invesiment
property and infongible assels 8 [1.267,340] 1.522.911 [18.980) {18.980]

Difference between finance costs calculated on
an accounting basis and finance codts caleulaled
inaccorgance wilh statutory requirements

Nel charges mode for refrement benefits in
ocoodance with 1AS 19 21 10,721,000 11,569,000

Direc! revenue finoncing of Capital Expenditure i

Copital Granls and Donated Assals Receivable
and Applied in year

¥] (6.705,4%9] (2093.910)
Capital Granls Receivable and Unopplied in yaar

HoC
Roles Clow-Back Reserve

27
Adjustrments in ralalion o Shard-ferm compensaled
absences

24 124,020 {37,283)

Adiusimenits in relation o Lessor Amangemenis

Landflll Reguiafions Reserve Adfustment
27

Provisiors Discound Rale Reserve Adjusimeni
) 102,707 [7&.825)
Amounts not included In the Comprehensive
Income and Expendhure Stalement but required by
stotute fo be included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the
yaar

Statutory Provision tor fhe finoncing of Copital
Irvesimant 12 15,824,000 [8.04% COOY

Employers canirbulions payable lo the NILGOSC
and relkement benefils payable drec! to
pansioners 21 [4.97 6,000 [5.535.000)

7,933,654

T



£

Caopital Fund

Interes!

Frarn Copital

Cithr

Renewal and Repairs Fund
Iriterest

Olhet

Copilal Receipts Reserve
Interest

Ohher

Other Funds and earmarked reserves
Inlerest

From Other lunds

O

Unusable reserves

Capilal Adjusimant Account

24

26

28

24

&27 613

{8,782,362)

427,413

(8.782,362)

[

4,

427,500

240,000

627,500

240,000

867,500
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Pior lo Local Governmend Relorm on | Apal 2015, expendile for speciol purposes waos limiled under Saction 40 of the Locol Governmenl
Finance Act [Morthern Irelond] 2001, This secfion wos repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act [Martham Iredond} 2014,

Under Saction 79 of the Local Government Acl |Morhem Ireland) 2014, the Council has ihe power 10 do anything that individuols generdally may
do. Councils hove the power to do this wilh or wilhoul charge, The powar of competance is not limited to banefitfing the orea or ils residents
nor i i miled by existing powers,

he actual expenditiee under the power of compelence amounted 1o £ during 2020021 [(£0 0 2019/20).

[} External Audil Fees

The: Courncil hos incumad the following cosls ralating 1o the annuol audit of the Statement af Accounts, cedification af grant claims and alher
semvices provided by the Council's esternal auditorns.

Extemal Audit Fees 8,000 &7.000
Halional Fravd Iniiafive Fees 1.244 -
Ciher Faoes 5250 272 000

74.4%4 89,000

The ofher lees of £5.250 [2019/20 £22.000 | were nourad inrespoct of pedormance audil serdces prU\ritlL.‘d tay thi appointed oudibor,

Operating and Finance Leoses
Councll as Lessor

Rental income recognised in the Comprahondve Income ond Expendifure Statemenl in the curent yaar amaounis lo £284 411,

The fulure minimum lease paymanhs due under non cancellable cperaling leases in Tuture yeoars ane:

31 Mar 21 31 Mar 20
. Sradt

T TR — — - s T SR et

Mot loter thaon 1 vear ¥

Lofer thon | year and no lotar ihon 5 yaors 467 6B 436,734

Later Thon 5 yvears 268,784 ZHE 18/
749.917 ?79.438

31 Mar 21

Olher Lond ang Pauﬂcliqgs
wehicles. Piant, Furndlure and Fguipmeant - 3820

The Council is commitied o making minimum payments under these leases comprisng salllement of the long-lerm abilily lor the inferes! in the
properly acaguited by the Council and linance cosls thol wall be poyable by Ihe authority in lulure yeors whike 1he Babilly remoms sulstanding,
The minirmum lease payments are made up of the following aomounts:

6



Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf

Back to Agenda

.___3]{.'.:1(2_0_ 172

Finance leates labdikes (na! present valug of mirdmum lease

poyments];

Curment - 4,172

Mon- Current . -

Finance costs aile in future years 5097 5047
o

The mirimum lease payments will be poyable over the following penods:

Nal lnter thon one yaar

Later than one year and nofl ialer than live years
Later han five yeans

Tha [ulure minimum lease poyments due under non-cancalioble laases In fulure years are:

31 Mor 21 31 Mar 20

Mot loter than | yveor 155,892 137,610
Later ihon | year and no later than 5 years 344844 361,640
Latar Ihon 5 yaars 1.317.902 1,207,481

1.820.4641 1,704,731

The axpendilure charged 10 services in fhe Comprahensive Income and Expendilure Statement during the yeor in relotion lo-these lemes was;

Minmum inase payments
Confingen! renio - =
Less: Sublease puimenrs receivabie . .
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Fl Employes Costs and Member Allowances
51 5lalf Cosls 2020/21
£ £
Salanes and Wages 25.431.187 26,287 249
Employers NIC 2188857 2318874
Employers Superannuation 5,008,082 5,548,381
L

In addilion, agency cosls during the yeor amounted 1o £1,253.418 (2019/20 £1,625./94),

The Cowncii’s current contibufion role fo MILGOSC scheme is 19.5% .

Al lost actearial valuahon dated 315 Morch 2019 the funds ossets meel 1 12% of Fobilities ol that date [31/3/16-98%).

Average Number of Employeas - where FIE represents fullfime equivalent employees

-1 Average Number of Employees 2020721 2019720
Chial Exaculive | & 19
Comporate Sorices 110 113
Enterprise. Regeneralion & Toursm 14 177
Melghbourhood Services EEX] 4%
Achve & Healthy Commmundics 245 250

Tathal Muember a71 08

Full ime numbers employed 769 604
Parl-ime numbers employed 212 224
'3 5enior Employees’ Remunerafion 2020421 201%/20
E5D.001 1o £40,000 4 [
£60,001 1o £70,000 11 10
L0001 to £80,000 I 2
£80,001 to £90.0000 3 3
E£90,001 1o E100,000 - ]
E£100,001 1o £110,000 = =
E110.001 to £120.000 1 -
Total Mumber 20 22

[: | Mambers' Allowances

Salanes = 5
Basic ollowance 534 926 414,592
Mayors & Depuly Moyors Allowance 26,458 24,458
special Responubaly Allowonces 76,334 73,189
Dependents’ coarers allowance 2.283 A47
Frnplovar costs 190,119 187315
Mileage 7,096 &0,303
Conlerences and Courses B 175 4,533
Travel B Subustence Cosls 458 10,484
Miscelanaous Cosls 17.083 85,323
Soverance Poyments . .
963,132 1,042 528

Tatal
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Norihern Iraland C & Pansion Arrangements

As a resull of Refommn an 151 Aprl 2015, staff transferred from Central Governmeni to the Council are mambars of tha Norlhern Feland Chal Savice
Pensicn Schamae,

The Morthern reland Civil Service Pansion arangements are unfunded mulfi-employer defined benelfit schemes but Ine Dapartmant for
Communifies s unable 1o idenfily its share of the underying ossefz and liabilifies. The most up fo date octuarial valuation wos cartied out os al 3)
Maorch 214, This valuation is Then reviewed by the Schema Actuary and updated to sellecl cument conditions and rolled forwaoed to the
reporling date of the DOF Superonnualion and Other Allowances Resouwrce Accounls as al 31 March 2020,

For 2020021, employens’ confribulions of £408.308 were payable 1o the NICS pension arangements al one of lowr rates in the range 28.7% 1o
14.2% of pensionable pay, based on solory bands.

The scheme's Actuary raviews employer conlibufions every four yeors following o full scheme voluation, A new scheme lunding voluation based
on dota as al 31 March 2018 was complated by the Actuary during 2018419, This valuolion wos used 1o determine employer contribulion rales for
ihe infroduction of o new career averoge eaming scheme from Apal 2019, The conlrbution rates are set to maet the cost of the benefits
oconuing dunng 2000/21 1o be paid when the member refires, and nol the banefits paid during this penod 1o exsiing pensioners.

No persons relired early on ili-health grounds o wech Ihe actuarial cost for employees for the early paoymen) of retirement benefits wos £nil,
Ciher Clq_:.h_nr-:ﬂtng Income & Expendiure

Surplus/Defich on Non-Cuven! Assels (excl invesiment Properies)

2020/

Proceads fram sale {1.267.350) {18,540

Camying amaunt of nan-curent
ossels sold [excl Investimant
Propertias] 2.790.271 -

1,522,911 [18.740]

-] Other Dperahng Income/ Expandiure

201%/20

|Surplus) / Dehicil an Mon Cument Assets 1522911 [18.760]
Diher Operaling lIncome) / Expendilure - -

{18 940)

Financing and Invesimen! Incoma and Expandliure

Interest Payable and Similar Chorges

Llaum' n-u.'che intereas|

Bonk inferes) . .
Govemmen! Loan Inlerest 2.243.88A 2226614
Commercial Loan Infenast .
Olhar inlerast (please specily]

2,243,888 2226616

W Interest and Investmen! Income

Bank inferest 3,867 18,875
Employeea car loan interest 1.40% 1.885
NIHE Loon interes! receivoble - .

[nvesiment income on Fund Balonces
Capital Fund F .
Repairs & Rengwak Fund - -
Other Funds - .
Ciner Investment income - -

5276 20,740




Met interest on Ine nel defined
penelit Babiity {ossel]

20719520

' Surplus/ (Defichl) on krading o

Im:cme.-_ from frading

47,000

Expendiiure

[Surpius)/Deficit for Ihe yeor

Expendiiure

properties

properties sold

MNet income from investment

Surplus/daficil on sole of
Invesiment Froperiies

Proceseds from sale
Comying amount ol investmen)

(Surpius) fdelicit on sale of
linvestment Properfies:

Changes in Fair Value of
Investment Properies

{60.261]

Properiies

{88.919]

18,178

25,175

[42083)

(63.744)

(20,000)

{F2.083)
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Cheirges 2,243,888 . 2.243.888 2.226.614 - 222,414
Iintarest and investmanl Incomaes - [5,274) 15.274) {20,760 (20,7601
Persions intarest cost 1,181,000 1.181,000 947,000 = 947000
3 on g

oparalions . ' = . ¥ .
Oiher invastment income 18,178 {60261} {42.083) 25175 |BB.719) [63.744]
(Changes m o voe of

Investmant Properties {30,000 {30,000} {20,000} {30000

3443 044
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10 Taxahon and Mon Specific Gran! Income

Ll Revanue Granfs

= e b T
General 14.5994.125) | (4.551.148)
Giner {5.606,427) | [280.10])

[10.600.552)  [4.771.247)

Othar Revenue Grants relale fo Covid-19 Funding Support from the Department lor Communifias.

[1Revenue Gronts - Unopplied
The Council hos no Revenue Grants Unoppled.

[4 Captal Grants and Danatea Sitals - Applied

“r i o
Government & Other Gianis - 6,705.479)
Condilions met and applied in

(2.093.910)

yEar

Govemnmaent & Uihar Gronls
Iransler from receipts in advance
Donafad Assels - Condifions mef
Donoled Assels - Transfer rom
donated assals credilor

16,705.49%) _ [2093,710]

[:] Capital Grants - Unappied

5 Til
Condiflors mal and nol applied in
year
Other

R T e S = o e |

Currenl yaar |56.344,735) | (54,126750)

Fnalisohon - previous yeor [1.262.547] [654.514)
Transioncl Raket :
Finalisation - ather years

(57.609.68]  [54.781.864)

e - - H o T ] S v A . £
Disfrict Rale Income (57.408.683) [54.781 Bb4]
Revenue Granls (10.600.552} [4.771.267)
Capital Gronfs ond Conhibulions [6. 705,499} |2.093.5100

(&1.647,041)
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HNewry, Moumne and Dewn Disirlet Councll
Notes to the Financhal Stafements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

11 ¢ Propery. plant and equipment

Depreclation

Ther follewing uselul lives apd depreclallon rales have been used In the ealculalion of deprecialion:
Budldings - | lo &4 years straight line
- Vahicles, planl, furniture ond equipment - 5 o T yeors slraight ine
- Infrastructure - 1 o 14 yeaors straighl ine depreciofion

11 d Invesiment Properties

The lollowing llems of income and expense have been accounied for in The Fnancing and investrenl income ond
Expandiiure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura Statemenl:

Invesimen! Properiles

Rental Income fram Investimen] Aclivitles 60,261 B9
Direc! Operaling Expensss amsing fom invesimen! propanios 18, T78) 125,175
| Nel gain/(loss) 42,083 43,744

The following lobde summaories the movemen! in the falr value of investmen! properfies over Ihe yeor

Invatimant Pfropadies 2020/21 201 'F-"i'q
Balance al siarl of he yao 2,240,002 2.210,002
Addditiens - .
Disposals . .
et gains/losses bom lalr valie adjusiments 3000 30,000
Transhers faf Irom invonlodes - .
Transters lof irom properdy, plan! ond equipment 1,020,000 .
Other chonge - -

The Council's colleckon of Halltage Assels is reparied in (he Balance Shaa! al insurance valsallon o Maloric cosl, These
assals nclude museum arlalach, works of art and civie lems, Ross' Monvment s also included which s sihuofed belwaan
Rostrever and Warenpoinl.

The lollawing lable summaornses the Horftoge Assels heid by the Council:

Horllage Assals

Artelacls 531,452 524,512

Hislowical Fumiture A1.935 B1.935
Chvic Items £5.600 £5,600
Ross” Manumant 413911 413911

Paintings and Drowing 454,858 455.854
Batonce ol end of the vear 1,549,754 1.543.814




I Assels Held lor Sale
Assols Held lor Sola have bean recorded in Nota 11 ol a value of E464 440,

g long-Term Assels - Leased Assals

Agenda 8.0/ 8 - Appendix 1 NMDDC - Unaudited Accounts 30June2021.pdf

| i 1] “Vahicles]
: e | = s il =gl
Cosl orf Valuailon
(AT 1 Apil 2020 364473
Addilions " =
Disposals . . =
At 31 March 2021 364,473 38,824 401,097
[Dapraciation
Al | Apdl 2020 355,652 34,634 292,278
(2] B - .
Provided forysar 8.821 - 8,821
Al 31 March 2021 354,473 34,826 401.099
Nat Book Valve - - -
1 8 | == 1] 0 ':
= === | — = S) R
344,473
Addiflons - . =
Disposals - . .
Al 31 March 2020 344,473 34,634 401.0%%
\Dapreciation
At | April 2019 346,832 24624 383.458
Disposals = = =
Provided for year 8820 - B.820
At 31 March 2020 355,452 36,426 392.278
Het Book Value 8,821 B.821 |
h Revalualion

Yalualions ot Land and buildings are canied oul extemally by Land and Properly Services [LP3). As af the voluation date,
the LPS have advised that the oullbreck of the novel Coronavings [COVID-19), declared by the Waorld Health Qrgankalion as
a "Global Pondemic” on 1 1ih March 2020, has impacted global inoncial markets. As o corsequence LPS have reporfed
that as at the valuation dale, they consider that it is preden fo advise hal marke! evidence galhered, for comparison
purposes, has oftached o an increased level of uncertainty. The valuations are therefore reparted on the basls of ‘matedol
valualion uncerainty” as per VP3 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Globai Standaords. Comequently, less cerainty - ond a higher
degree of caution - shouvld be attached le them than would nomally be the case. Howaver, LPS advised that thedr matedal
uncerdointy clause sarves as a precaulion and does not invaidale the valualion.

Back to Agenda
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14

Capltal Expendiivre and Copllal Hnancling

The tolal amaunt of capitol expendiiure iIncumed In the year s shown in the lable balow (including Ihe value of assats
acquired under ingnce leases and PR controch], logether with the resources that have baen used o finance il. Where
caplial expenditure b o be financed in lulure yeors by choarges lo revenue os assets oo used by the Councll, the
expenditure resulls inan increase in the Caopilal Financing Requisemen! [CF], o measwe of fhe caollal expendilure incured
nistarically by he Council that is ye! lo be fingnced, The CFR is analysed in the second patt af this nole,

Coplial Expendifure

Opaening Capltal Financing Requisement §2.319.720 B9.733,221
Caplial invesiment
Properiy, Flont and Equipmen [ 4,198,849 4,445,159
Invesiment Properiies - -
Infangible Assets 225.671 1.316.385
Ravenue Expandiiure Funded from Capital under
Statule

7,984,479 2.834.425
Invesimanis - -
Ofher |59.153) 132,400
Sources of Finance
Copllal Recsipls {1,267 380 {18.740]
Govemmenl Grants gnd Other Conirlbulicns 10 16.705,477) 12.093.910}
Translers lrom Eormorked Raserves . =
Sums set aside rom Revenue:
Direct Revenue Conlributions =
Minimum Ravenue Provision [5.824.000) [6.04%,000)

Cloalng Copltal Financing Reguliemeni

LB Future Capifol Commitments

Tha Council has an ongoing programmea of capital works and the astimated cost of the schemes is os follows:

Schemet underway

70,850.727

Grant Ald

12974493

Qiher Commilmanis | |

22 BRF 250

45 450 578

Inwentories

Canlral Slores

9,576,855

201%/20
£

2020721
E

313,674

Cher 1

194,196 | 190,549

Back to Agend




Governman) Deparimeants

Oiher Councils

Public corporations and froding lunds

Boaws external lo general govemment

Employse car logns

11,279

Revanue Granis

Cﬂpﬂni Gronis

Inlerest Recelvable

Capital Dablors

Loani and advancas

A7 141

Fnonco leove debbons

Trade deblors

MIHE Loans

Hher

Impaoirmant ol loan and recahvabiles

43.000

Contracl Receivables

5] Short Term Deblicis

2019/20

E

Governmen! Deparlmenls 1,556,137 1,550,050
Ciiher Councils 130,159 356.580
Pubiic corpoarations and Irading lunds - -
Bodies extemal fo general govemment =
NIHE foars - -
Employee car loans 13,529 17,287
Ravenos Grants | B 744 2,247 880
Capilal Granls 372,019 1.320.872
interest Receivablo

Capital Deblars - -
Value Added Tax 1,366,032 1,102,768
Prepaymeanls 252,162 301,958
Finance wase debliors

Other 324,580 255,538
irade recelvables BRB.299 &07. 347
Impoirment koss - Trode receivables (322, 201) [402.531)
Coniracl Receivablas - -

Tetal Shor-Term Deblors

Talal Deblars

0825 00

7040 444

7459547

T e Y e A R

17

The Council has noinvesimonts.

Loans re-payable wilthin ene yoor

10.416.318

Finance Lease Principal

Todal Short Taenm Elnrruwinu

31 Long Tedm Bos

10,415 318

Between | and 2 years 4,342,321 4,149,071
Batween 2 and 5 years 11,811.049 11,519,559
Balween 5and 10 yeors 18,597,124 17,367,197
Inmora Ihan 10 yeos 28,957,061 26,219,232

Govemnment Loans Fund

Talal Bawrawing

&3 707 557

5%.255.05%

74 844 557

Back to Agenda
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a 8

Government Departments 1.292.517 1.0 89
Ciher Councils 386,327 400575
Publc corporations and frading funds 412380 17,555
todies axternal to general govemmant E ¥
®oles clawback -

VAT - .
Remuneralion dus fo employess 1,751,493 1,733,278
Accumulaled Absenc 479,463 J53.443
Loan Inleras! Payable .

Caopifal Crediters 4,133,482 3,324,468
Receipls in advance 555768 $23.328
Trade creditors 4. 180,494 3,434,200
Oiher 21,544 48,735
Talal Shor Term Credifoms 13,204 270 11,000 387

Tolal Creditorn 11000347

|51 Paymaent ol Invoicos

The council has o targe!, whera no olher terms are- agreed, of paying supplier inveices within 30 colendar days. Duting 1he
year the Counci poid 15207 involces lotaling £42,073,851.

The number of dapuled Involces were | 1A,

The: Council poid:

13,083 (B4%) invoices wilhin 30 calendar doys fargel;

1707 {17%) invoicas within 10 working doys lorgel: and

2.1 24 irvolces oulside of the 30 day farget.

Thi average number of days fokan lo poy supplian during the yeor was 23 doys.

Frovisions
Incraas® n Unused Interest cosl
Halonce o af 1 prowvis Utilined dwiing amounis and/or deicount Balance as af 31
April 2020 during yeor year reversed rate changes March 2021
£ i £ £ E
Landhll Closwe 2.535,4B8 314114 [71.397) . + 3.178.207
Staff Caosts 75,000 - (& 312] [17.488] . -
Reslructuring Costs 500,000 - - : 500,000
Curranl Frovisions 575,000 157, 312§ [17.688) . 500,000 |
Long Temn Provisions 2,935,488 EIFRETS [71.397) : 3,178,207

3510488 314008 [128.70%) [17,.488)

Increase ln Uriused Inferast cost Resfated
Utilised during amounts and/er discount Baolance as of 31

Balance ot af | provisian
Frovisions Apdl 2019 duving yeor wear eversed rale changes March 2020

{ £ £ : 13

l.andfill Closure 3,140,793 {7 1.3971 | 134, 108) 2.935.488
Siall Cosis 70,500 456273 [£1.123) - - 75,000
Restructuting Costs. 5000000 . - 500,000

{132 520) . (134,108} 1,510,488
Cutrenl Provisions 70,500 565423 (81,123 - - 575.000
Long Temmn Provisions 3140993 - 171,397] . 134, 108) 2.935 488

3510488

{134,108)

3.211.493 (132 520)

Landfill Closure
Ine expacted cosl of landlil closure and aflercare cosls of £3,178,207 s based on the percentoge uiiisation of the landhin

sites of both Drumonakelly ond Avghnogun ond has been recognised osa provision, Aughnagun Londfl Sile wos closed ol
Hst March 2015, Drwmanakelly Landfll Sile ceased fo take landlil on 301h Apdl 2014, Now thal the stles have closed it will
lake a petiod of lime balore thete will Be a relable trend lor closwre and atlercare cosls and gas generalion income,

Restructuring Costs
The provislon is for Planning for the Fulure' - a review of the dimctorate ond management struciures

Back to Agend
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B Fimancial Inshrumenis

Categories of Financlal inskruments

Tha following cologorios of financial instrumeonl are canied In the Balance Shoal

Financlal Assels as af 31 March 2021

Mger - C urienl C umgnd
Invesimenis & Cash and
Cash ond Cash Cash
Equivalenis Debtors Equivalanis
£ £
Fair Value through
profil of loss - 4 . :
Amorlised cost 115.844 10,222,828 1, 187.173 11,525,845
Falr Yalue thrcugh
othar comprehorsive
Income - dasignatad
eqully Instrumenls
Fair Vahse thraugh
other comprahensive
Income - Money
Markel! Funds 4,001,558 - &,001,558
Tobal Financlal Assats - 115864 14,224,384 1,187,173 17,527,423
Nan-Financial Assats - - B.A38.427 B.638 427
Tolal 1158464 16.224.386 7,825,600 24.145.850

Deblors al amonited cosl as at 31 March 2021

£ E
Trade Receivables BYB.IF9
Irade Receivables - Impairment Loss 322,201
Govemmenl Departments . 276,383
SoMt Loans 43541 3,281
Employes Car Loans 14,195 13.52%
Gas iIncome Dablor 58128 298 497
Olher . 23.385
Tatal 115864 1,187,173

Hnanclal Assets as al 31 March 2020

Mon-Curent

Investments

Fair Volue theough
prafil or loss

Amorised cost

Fair Volue lhrough
other comprehensive
income - desdgraled
equily instrumenls

Fair Yalue through
othar comprehensive
income - othar

Dablors

Invasimants

£

B&F.21E

Debtors

2

B25.237

1.793.873

Telal Financial Assels
Mon-Anancial Assety

101,420

B&T.214

825,237
6,532,910

1.793.873
4.532.910

Tolal

.

101,420

B&7.214

7,358,147

B.3256.783

Deblors ol omorlsed cost ar ol 31 March 2020

Wan-Currenl Curreni
& £
Trade Receivables S07,347
frads Receivables - Impairment Loss (402,531
Governmen! Daparimenis - 347,594
Soit Loans A7 141 3.281
Employes Caor Lodns 11,279 17387
Gas Income Debfor 43,000 23775
Cther . 18,482
Total 101,420 B25,237
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Flnancial Liablities as at 31 March 2021
MNen-Cumenl Cumment 1 8
11 Creditors Tolal

ings Creditors Borrowings
£ E

£

Falr Value Ihrough

profil or less

Amartised cosl 43,707 557 - 10,414,318 P.635,787 83,757 864
Tatal inanclai

liablifles 43.707.857 . 10,474,318 9,635,989 83,759,844
Nen-financhal

Eabililies . - - 3.568,244 3,568,244
Tolal 43,707,557 - 10,414,318 13,204 253 87,328,128

Financlal Liablifles as at 31 March 2020
Mon-Curanl Curmrent

Borrowlngs Cradtois Barrawings Creditors
£ E E £

Fair Value through

' profit or loss )

‘ Amorised cosl 59255059 . 15.589.508 B.021. 284 82,865,853
Total linancial
llabifites 59.255.059 - 15.58%.508 B.021.284 B2.845853
Hone-financial
Fobililies - - - 2,979,081 2979.081
Talal 59,255,059 - l!.!-l-?,m n.&‘ﬁ.ﬁi B5 844 934

Materlal soft loans made by the Council

Thie Councll has one histeric sofi loan bul does not consider this fo be malerial.

Employae Car Loans

The Council made loans lor car purchases at 313/2021 1o B smployees, including 2 members of the Sanior Monogemen!
Teom. who are in posts that require them to dive regularly on the Couwncil's business.

interasl s charged on ihe loons al Bank of Englond Bose Rate plus 1.5%.

2020,/21

Balance af stort af
YEO

Opening balance 28,966 50.915
Mominal voluo of nenw
loans granted in the

 £id5 16812

Fair value adjustment
on inffial recognilion

Faiir value of naw 45,378 50515
Loans repaid (17.455) |22.34%)
Impaliment losses . -
Increase in
discounted amauwnt
Diher changes »
Clasing balonce al

end of yeor 2.7 28,566

Naminal value al end
Wyes 7T 78,564

Valualien assumptions

These loans hove been valued al nominal value a3 Ihey are nol considerad materal to the Cowncil.
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Income, Expense, Golns and Losses

2020421
Suiplus ar Delicl! on the  Other Comprehensive Income
Provition ol Semvices and Expenditure

Interest revenue
Firancial assols
maeasured al
amoriised cost

3847 i
Tolal Interest revenue | 3.887 | -]
Interes! expense | 2,243,886 | -

201% 730
ar Dafich on the  Ofhey Compeehensive Incorme
sion of Services and Expendituie

Inferest revenus
Financial assois
mesured al
omortised cost

18.875 .
Total Interast revenuve | 18,875 | é |
intorast exponse | 2226414 | - 1

Falr Values of Financial Assels and Financial Liablitles

Falr Values of Financlal Assets and Finonclal Uabilitles that are not Measured at Falr Value (bul for which Falr Value
Dlsclosures are Required).

All the financial Tabiitles and financial assels held by the oulhodly are clossifled as loans ond recalvables and lang-term
debiors aond creditors and are camed in fhe Balance Shee! ol amodisaed cosl, The loi values colculated are as follows.

31 Mar 21 31 Mar 20

Canying Fok value Canying Fair value

il LiapdliNhes amouni ameuni

£ 3 E

Arancial lobdities
held al amorfised

cosl [Leans]

J41TLB7S 82,144,282 74,840,395 81,843,543
Leng-termn cradilors .
PFl and finance [ease - . 4,172 4,172
Talal T4, 023875 82,144,382 Td 844 547 B1,847.715

The majority of fhe Councii*s partfalio of loans are held with the Government Leans Fund and cany @ premalure
redemplion panalty if the loans are repaid oarly,

Oihar financial assals and lobdities including rade receivables. frade payablos and cash and cosh equivalents are carmed
al cost as ths k a fair approximation of their value.
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Falr Valuss ol Financial Assets and Financlal Labilifles thot ore not Measured at Falr Valve

31 Mar 21

s (Lev

3)

identical assels
[Lawsd 1)

Recuring lair value
measuremeants uil
Financial labiiiies
Financial lobilities
held af omorfised

cosh
Loans/borowings 82,144,252 . B2.144,382
Total . 82,144,382 - 82,144,382

FAnanclal assels
FAnoancial assets held
al omorfised cost

Soft laant to thisg

parties
74545 74,545

Olhat financial asels . 3 .
Tetal - 74,545 - 74,545

31 Mo 20

Guoted prices Orhe
inactive sigmific ant
markeds lor abservable
idenfical assets  inpul (Level
(Level 1) 2)

Signi
vnobaervable

nputs (L
3]

R ing lair value
l|1|_lg1'.,llh.'l-rl1eflli uilng:
Financial liabiilles
Financial habiities
held al amortsed

cosh
Loans/bomawings 81.847.715 - BI.B47T15
Total - 81,847,715 - 81,847,715

Fnanclol assels
Financial assels haid
at amortised cosl
Soll loams 1o fhind
partios . 78,984 . 78,988
Olher finonclal osets

Tetal . 78.988 - 78.988

The fair value for financial Tabifilies and financiol assels thal are net measured al for value included Inlevets 2 and 3in tha
table above hove been arived al using o dscaunted cash flow analysis with the most signiicant inpuls baing the discount
rate.

The fair value for finoncial lobiliies and financial assels that are net maasured af fair value can be aisessed by caleulaling
the present value of the coash Rows That will take place over the remaining erm of the insifements.

Other ingncial assels including lrade receivables and cosh ond cash aquivalents are camed of cosl as thisis a lair
appraxdmation of thair value,
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HNaoture and Extent of Risks Arising hom Finoncial Inshuments m

The Councils activities expose | 1o a variety of financial risks:

Cred|f Risk

Credit risks arses from deposils with banks and financial institutions as well os credil exposwres fo the Councils customers.
Cusfomen are auessed taking Info accownt thair linancial pesition, past expedence and ather fachors, with individual credit
lirmits boing set in accordance wih parameters sl by the Council. The provision for bad and doubliul debls reflects the
Counci's assessment of the sk of non-poyment by rode deblors and as such, fhere it no further addilional estimated
exposure fo defoult and inability o callect,

Trade Debtoog, Inciu of VAT, are analysed

Less than three months A4B2.399
thrae to six months 34,998
tix months fo one year 127,115
Mote than one yeor 548,320
Tolal 1,192,832

The above ligures include lrade debls relafing to car parking, govemment depardments and other councils disclosed
saparately in Mote 15,

Loss Allowance by Assel Class - Assels Held al Amortised Cosl

Cpening Baolonce as ab | Apdl 2020 402.531
' Decroosa [B0.330])
Closing Balance as at 31 Morch 2021 372,200

The Expected Credil Losses defaull rote lor Council trade debl has been increased by a foctor of 1.31 [2019/20 3.45) due o
the changing econamic condifions os o result of fhe Corona Yirus, The factar lakes gaccoun! of predictions by three lsading
credlt rating agoncies.

There is no hsloncal exparience of defoult in relation to deposils with bonks and ofher financiol institufions, The Couniil
manages credil risk by enswing Ihal investments are only placed with arganisalions of high ciedit quolity as set out in The
Treasury Management Sirategy.

Liquidity Risk

The Cauncil manages ils Bguidity posifion Ihrough the risk managemen! processes sel out in ils annual Treasury
mManagemenl Strategy and Prudeniia! Indicators, as wall as thiough the aclive monogement of he cash flow position. This
seels lo ensure that cash is avallable when I s needed.

As the Council has ready accass to bomowing from the Public Works Loans Board, here is no signilicant risk that it will be
unable lo ralse nance to meet its commilmenis under Financial Inslruments. The matunty analysis of finoncial Babilities is
inchuded al Mole 17 and ofher payables ore dua for paymean! within one year,

Markel Risk: Infarest Rates
the Council Is exposed o risk in ferms of ils exposwie fo inlerest rale movements on ils borrowings and investments, The

Councll isin recolpl of Inan fram Ihe Department of finance however these loans are al lixed concessionary interes! ralas
frhal dilffer fram Ihe prevalling marke! rates.

Farelgn Exchange Risk

The Councll has ne financiol asets or liabiifies denominaled in foreign curencies olner thon o bank cccount denominated
In Euro, This account is used solely 1o lecliiate the CANN Project {Collaboralive Action Tor the Malura Nelwark), The Council
does not consider this @ malerial exposure 1o loss arbing from movements in exchange rates.
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I'] Participation in the Northem Irélend Local Gaovernmen! Oficon Ponsion Fund

As part ef the lerms and condifions ol employment of its offices and other eamployees, the Council oflers rafirament
penofits. Although these benelits will nol actually be poyable unfil employees refire, the Council hos o commilment to
maks ihe poymants that need fo be disclosed at the lime thal employess eam lhair fufee antilement,

The Council paricipatas in Ihe Northem Irelond Local Governmant Cificars” Pension Fund administered by the Nottham
petand Local Government Officers' Superannualion Commilles. This is o funded schema, meaning thal the Council and
smployeas pay conirbullons Inle a fund, calculated ol 4 leval inlended lo balance the pension's Bablllies with investrnent
assals.

b Transactions refoting fo retirement benefils - Comprahensive Income and Expendilure Statement

' The Council racogrnises the cosl of rolirement panafits in the Cost of Sorvices on Confinuing Operchions when ey ore
samed by employeas. ralher than when the benelits ore evenlually paid as pensions,

Hawever, Ihe charge the Council is reguirad fo make ogains! disirle| roles is bosed on the caosh poyable in the year, and the
real cosl ol retirement benallls i reversed out In the adusiments belween accouniing bass & funding bosls wnder
reguicfions line, in the Movemant on Reserves Stalement.

The following tansactlons have been mada in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement and the adjustmeants
between occounting basis & funding biasis under regulations line. in the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year:

el cost of services:

Cumrani service cost P.484.000 10,527,000
Past service cosl/(gain) 564,000 95,000
Gains and losses on selllements or curlailments - =

Net aperaiing expendilure:
Met Infaras! on nel defined benelit Liobiity {asset] 1,181,000 F47.000

Total Post-employmeni Benellls charged o the Surplus or Deficlt en
Ihe Provilon of Services 10,721,000 11,542,000

Movemen! in Resarves Slalement:

Reverial of nel charges made lof relkement benefits in accordance
wifh 1A% 19 and the Code (10,721,000} 111,549.000)

Actual amount charged agoinit ihe genenal fund balance for
pernsions in the year:

Employes’ contribufions poyoble fo scheme 4,974,000 5,535,000

Mel adjustment o &
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The sarvice cost figures include on allowonce lor administration expentas of L1237k

Remeosurements recogniaed in Olher

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 2020421 20019/20
£ L
Liabillty qains/{losies| due to change in asumptions [46.043.000 4.567.000
Linbility gains/[losses] due 1o dua ta demagraphic changes . 7503000
Liobility expmisnce goins/[lossas) arising in the year 1987 000 | 2.389.000)
Acluarial gains/[losses) on pian assels 36,246,000 {1537 6,000
Cither : .
Total goini /{losses) recognbsed In Other Comprehansive Incame and Expendiiure {9.810.000) (5. 595 000)
[ . ab - Leng

Balance csal | Apdl 214,947,000 214.371.000
Cuirent sarvice cost 7.484.000 10.527.000
Inlires! cosl 4,952,000 5.107.000
Conhibulions by membears 1,401,000 1,632,000
Remeciuremant [gains] and loses:

Actuaral gaoins/losses arising rem changes in financlal auumplion 48,043,000 [4.567.000)

Actuorial gains/insses aking ram demographic changes - {4.503.000]

Acluaral gairs/losses arsing on kobilfies lrom experience | 1.587.000) 4. 289,000

Oiher (I opplicable) -
Past service costs/[galns] 56,000 25.000
Losses/[gains) on curlgilments - *
Ligbililies extingushed on selflemanis . -
Estimated unfunded benofllls paig [78.000) {B0.000}
Eslimoied benefits paid [5,022.000] [4.945.000)
Balance as af 31 March 273 9%6.000 214947000
Reconciliation of presen] value of the schame assals MNole
Balonce as ol 1 April 1643, 140,000 172,213,000
Inletest [ncome 3,771,000 4,150,000
Contributions by members 1,601,000 1,633.000
Confribufions by amployer 4,576,000 5,455,000
Contribuliors In fespect of unfunded benefits 78,000 80,000
Rameasuramen gain/(loss) 36,246,000 [15.376,00)
Assels ashibuled on selflements .
Unfunded benefils paid [78.000} [B0.0O0)
Benaills pold {5,022.000] [4.945.000]

163,140,000

Balance as al 31 March

The expected refum on scheme assels is defermined by considedding the expocted relurms avalable on the asels undearlying
{he cumend invesiment policy. Expecled yvields on lbed inlerast iInvesiments are based on gross redemplion yields as ol the
Balance Sheal dole. Expected relumns on equily investmanis reliect long-Jarm redal retes of relumn experenced in the

respactive markets
The aciual return on scheme assals in the yaar wos aloss o E11.2m [2018/17 goin of £1 L4m).

a Plan Asse 020 0
Equity Invesiments 74,745 542 EFATT 640
Bands 73,054,338 63,135,180
Froperty 18,212,426 16,314,000
Cash 10,845,402 7,667 580
Other 176,092 6,525,600

204,434 000 143,140,000

The above asel values are af Bld value as reguirad by 1AS 19,
Delgis of estimates maodea by the Fund Manoager when exsasiing the lair values of plan assals

The amounts inciuded in ihe lal value of plan assets for property occupled by the Councll was Enil,

57




The Councll's shore of the Nef Pension Liablllty (included in the Balance Sheet):

Seheme Hislory
Analysis ol scheme oizals and llabllifkes

Fair Valua ol Assals in pansion scheme

204,634,000

201820
£

Fair Value ol Emplayer Assets 204,634,000 143,140,000
Prasent value of fundad defined benalil abligation {272.911.000) [215,793.000)
Pension assel/ (labillly) of Funded Scheme [68.277.000) {52,653,000)
Prasen| Valie of unlunded defined benafl obiigation [1.085.000) [V,154,000)
Oithar maovermant in the Dobility (assal] (i applicabla) .
Neat assel/{liabliity} arlsing from the defined benefit cbligotion |67 342.000) {53.807.000)
Amourt in the Balonce sheel:

Linbilities [373.996,0001 (276,947 .000)
Assets 204,634,000 16,140,000

! 0

201%/20

E
183,140,000

Prasent Value of Dalined Benofit Obligation

[273,994.000)

{216,947,000)

Surplus/{defici) In the Scheme

Amount rec ognized in Other

and Expendiule

(47,342 000)

(53, B07.000)

018719
Restaled
£

Actyarial goins/ lossas) {46.056.000) §.781.000
Expected Relum on Plan Assols 36,246,000 [ 15,37 8,000]
Increase/{decrease] In irecoverable surpius from membearship fall

and othar factors -
Romeaiuremants recognised in Other Comprehensive Incomea and

Expendiiure [@,510,000) [5,595,600]
Cumulalive octuanal gains ond losses [15,405,000] [2.590.480)
Hislory of experlence galns ond losses:

Experience goins and [losses] on ossols - .
EBxperdance gains and [lossos] on liabiities {1 587.000) 2257 000

The llabliities show the underlying commilments Ihat the authority has In the long run fo pay relirement banalils. The fotal
llability a1 £274m has a substantial iImeact on the nel worth of the Councll os recorded in the Balonce Sheet resulling in a

reed Nabillly of £6%.4m.

However, stalulory arangements lof lunding Ihe delicil mean thal the linanckal posiion of the Council remains healthy. The
deficit gn the Nordhem Ireland Local Governmen! Officers’ Pansion Fund will be made goed by increased conlributions over
the remaining working iife of employees, ossessed by the scheme acluary,

I lar the year lo 31

3720210
Frojecied curent cost 13,456,000 f0.7%
Mel Interes! on the nol defined benalit labifly {asset) 1,381,000 3%
Posl sarvice cos ‘ 0.00)
Gans and losses on salllamants o curladmants . 0.0%

100, 0%

The fetol conlibutions expected lo be mode to tha Northam Ireland Local Government Olficers' Fersion Fund by the
counci in ihe yeor fo 31 March 2021 i £5,220,000.

Histary ol expenence galns and losses

The actuarial gains/losses identified as movemanis on the Pensiors Reserve 2020/21 can be analysed into the following
calegories, meqwred as o parcentoge of assels or labiifies at 31 March 2020,

Experience [goins ond (losses} on Assels 0.00% 0.00%
|Expeiience gains and (losses] an Uabiifies [ | 073% | 1.06%

Back to Agenda
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b Basls for eslimaling aisels and labilllies
Liabilifies hove been asessed on an gcluaral bosis wsing lhe projected unit method, an eslimale of the pansons thal wil
be poyable in the tuture yeon dependent on ossumptions oboul mortolity rofes, solory levaels, eic. The Counclls Fund
Eabililies have been assessed by Aon Hewill imited, an independent firm ol actuarles, estimales lor the Councll Fund being
based on dala perlaining to the latest full valuaticon of the scheme os af 31 March 2020,

Fenslon scheme assumplions

Equily invesiments 44.3%) 42.6%
Bonds 35.7%) 38.7%)
Properly B7% T0.0%|
Caih 5.3%/ 4.7%
O 8% 4.0%
Morlallty ossumptions:

Laongevily al 45 cumen! pensioners: Yean Years

Man 2.9 2LE
Women 23.3 250
Longevity al 45 for futuwe pensionars:

Man 5.1 23.2
Womon 28.5 2é.
Inflotion/Pension Increase Rate 2.70% 2.00%
Salary Incieasa Rate 4.20% 3.50%
Discoun! Rale 2.10%) 2.30%
Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.70% 2005

Ihe pansion fgures disclesed in these financial stalemants are sensilive fo the assumplions used.

The appraximate impact of changing key assumpltions on the present value of ine funded delined benafil abligoftion os al

31 March 2021 is sel oul balow,

In 2ach cose, only the assumplion noled below [s allered; all olher assumplions remain the same and are summagised in he

disciotura above,

Eunded Pamion Scheme Benefits

Discoun! Rale Assumplion

Adjustment Io discount rale +0,1%p.a. -0.1%p.0.

Present value of the folal obligafion 267,726,000 27B.076.000
‘& change in ihe present value of the total obligation -1.590% 1.90%
Projecled service cost 13,012,000 13.914.000 |
Approximale % change in projecied service cost -3.30% 3.40%
Rate of General Increase In Salares

Adijustment 1o salary increase iale +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Presenl volue of the lolal oblgalion 274,003,000 271.819.000
% chonge In the present value of the lofal obligation 0.40% -0.40%
Projecled service cosl 13,456,000 13,456,000
Approxmate % change i projected service casl 0.007% 0.00%
Rate of Increase fo Pantions in Payment and Delered Pentlon Assumpilon

Adjusimani o pension Increase rale +0,1%p.0. -0.1%p.a.

Presani volue of ihe lotal obligalion 277 005,000 248.817.000
% change In the preseni valve of tha tolal obigalion 1.50°% - |.50%
Projected sanvice cosl 13,714,000 13.012.000
Approxmate % change in prosectied service cost 3.40% -3.30%
Fost Relirement Morlallly Assumplion

Adjusimeni lo moralily age rating assumplion® -1 Year +1 Year

Present value of tha telal obligation 282,734,000 253,046,000 |
% change In {he present volue of 1he folol obligafion S60% -3.60%
Projecied sernvice cost 14,008,000 12,718,000
Approgimate % change in projeclod senvice cos? 4,10% -4,00%

* A rating ol +1 yaar means Ihal memben ore asumed o follow the mortalty pottern of the bose loble obove foran

individual that is | yeor older than Thal.

Back to Agenda
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24

Malor cofegories ol plan oisels as percentoge of folal plan assels

The Northarn relond Local Governmant Officers' Pansion Fund's assels consis! of Ihe lellowing calegories. by progordian of
Ihe talal assels hald:

Equity invasiments 42.40%
Govemmeni Bonds 16.50%
Comorale Bonds 7.00%|
Proparty 10,00%
Cash 4 70%
Olhar 4.00%
Tolal 84.80%

] Morthern reland Civil Semvice Penskon Arrangements

The Morthern Insland Civil Service Pension arangemonts are unfunded mulll-employer defined benelit schemes bul the
Cauncll s unable Io identily is share of the underlying ossefs and liablifies, The most up 1o date acluarial valvalion was
cared oul as ol 31/03/1%. This valualion Is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and vpdoled lo milect curent condilions
and rolled lorward to the reparting date of the Dof Superannualion and Other Allowances Rasource Accounts as at 31
March 2020,

Guaranigad Milumum Fension [GMF) & o potion of pension that was occruad by individeok who wers confracted oul of
fhe state pension prior lo 4 Apdl 1997, Al present there is an ineqeally of benefits belwesan male and temale members who
have GMWMP, Allhough the Government infends that GMP should be equalised, at present it is nol clear haw this equalisation
will be implemaniad, In July 2014 the Governmeani slated an intention lo develop fully considered proposak and fo publish
guidance when ihs work is completed, bul na targel dofe was given, The impact of any ligbililies refafing fo the Council is
Iheralore uncerain and no provision has been made in lhese nanclal statemants.

Donaled Awsefs Aceouni

Analysis of Donoled Asvels Account

The balance of the Donated Assals Accounl represents donalions receiverd thal have yot lo be recognised as Income. as
Ihey hove condillons allached to them, which will raquire the donoled assets 1o be relurned, if condiliens are nal mal,
During the year the Council hod no Donalod Assals,

Capilol Gronts Recelved in Advance

Analysis of Capltal Grant: Receiphs in Advance Balance

The Council has ne capilal grants received inadvance,

Thie arc 21 Joinl Commillee haos wilth the approval of thelr parficipont Councils. enterad into a Conlingent Liohdlily
undertaking with the bldding consarfium in the rocuement lor the Residual Wasle freatment Prolect and Newry, Moume
and Down Distde! Councll has agresd the legacy Down Distict Council's share of the contingen! ability, Paymeants made i
any in accorgance with this underaking will be funded by Ihe poricipating Councils. Mo furthor information on this
agreeman! con ba disclosed due to the commerciol sensiiivily of the procurament process. In addilion lo the above, The
Council s one of |he parlies 16 the successful legal aclion [October 2020), loken agaoinst HMRC, thal charges paid since
2004 by memberns of the pubdic for gocess to sports, recreation and leisure lacililies provided by NI Councils warne outide the
scope of the VAT regime and that the VAT should be repoid, The Council undenstonds that HMRC has appealed the
jrdgement, the oulcome of which will be reporied lo Ihe Councll In due counse,

Back to Agenda
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial $fatements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

I Other cash flow disclosures

I Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Back to Agenda

A0 o » L} . Ll e L) LN L L
0 O 0 o 020 ¥/20
£ £
Daepreciafion 11 7,149,995 7,640,538
Impairment & downward revaluations [& non-sale
derecognitions) 11 (271,583) 1,730,671
Amorlisafion (included with depreciation above) - -
(increase)/Decrease in inventories 14 40.899 [136.974)
(Increase}/Decrease in Debtors 15 (1,554,945 (1.552,192)
Increase/[decrease) in impoirment provision for bad debls 15 (80,330 183,128
Increcse/[Decrease) in Creditors 18 2488914 246,530
Increase/[Decrease) in Interest Creditors - -
Payments to NILGOSC 21 3,745,000 6,034,000
Carrying amount of non-cument assels sold 8 2790271 -
AUC/WIP wiitten off to Mel Cost of Services 11 59,153 (132.400)
Coniributions fo Ofher Reserves/Provisions 26727 1467.719 298,995
wMovement in value of investment properties-included
above in Impairment & downward revalualions (& non-sale
derecognitions) (30,000} (30,000)
Amounts posted fo CIES from Donated Assels Account 22 - -
16,505,093 14,282 294

Adjust for itemns included In the net surplus ar delicit on the

provision of services that are investing ond financing

2020/21

Purchase of shorl-termn [not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint venlures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from shori-term (nol considered o be cash
equivalenis) and long-term investmenis {includes
invesimenls in associotes, joint venfures and subsidiaries)

Praceeds from the sale of PPAE, investmen! properly and

intangible assets 8 [1.267.360] (18.940]
Capital granls included in "Taxafion & non-specific grant
income” 10 {6,705,499) (2093.210)
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3] Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand ond in bank and short
term deposils and investments {considered to be cash equivalents), net of oulstanding bank overdraffs. Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the
relaled ifems in the Bolance Sheet as follows:

2020/21 2019/20 2018/1%

i £ L

Cash and Bank balances 2918093 87,305 1,091,384
Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 13,304,288 779,891 12,187

Short Term Investments (considered lo be Cash Equivalents) 2 - .
Bank Overdraft - (766.,961) [(#17.975)
16,224 381 100,235 185,597
4 Cash Flow Statement: Operaling Activities 2020/21

The cash Hlows from operaling activilies include: £ £
Interast received 5374 20,760
Inferest paid 2,243,888 2,226,614

2020/21 2019/20

[i] Cash Hows from Investing Activities

£ &
Purchase of PPAE, investmenl properly ond infangible assets 11 [4,709,551) (9,590,518)
Purchase of Shorl Term Invesiments (not considered fo be
cash equivalents)

Purchase of Long Term Invesiments - =
Other Payments for Investing Activifies 3

Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, investrment property and
infangible assets 8 1,267,360 18,940

Proceeds from Short Term Investmenis {not considered to be
cash equivalents)

Proceeds from Long Term Investrments = E
Capital Grants and Conirlbutions Received 5,858,877 3,184,768
Other Receipfs from Investing Aclivities : -

2,416,684 (6.386,788)

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities

Iy Cash llows trom Financing Activities 2020/21
£ £

Cosh Receipls from Short and Long Term Borrowing 4,000,000 10,000,000
Other Receipts from Financing Activities k w
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a linance
lease and on-Balance Sheet PFl contracts

(4.172) -
kKepayment of Shart and Long Term Borrowing {4.716,520) (4,706,20%)
Other payments for Financing Aclivilies . .
Nei Cash flows from Financing Activities (720.692) 5,093,771
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LT3l Usable Reserves
-] Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capilal receipts which have originated primarily from the sole of assets which have nol yel been used lo
finance capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales ond other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These ore originally crediled o the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slolement as
part of the gain/loss on disposal and posted oul via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Receipts
Reserve, The reserve s written down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set aside to
reduce an authority's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes permilied by staiute),

apita ecelp o O ] D 020
£ £
Al 1 Aprll - -
Movement
Disposal of Mon Current Assets/Capilal Sales 1,267,360 18,960
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expendilure 3; 11 (1.,267,360) [18,940)

Al 31 March

-} Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 5é of the Local Govemment Act [MI) 1972, however this section of the act
was repealed under the Local Govemment Finance Act (Nolhem Ireland) 2011, Councils should disclose delails
where any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

Capitol Fund Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
£ £

At 1 April 627,613 1.255.113

Transiers between statutory & other reserves & the General

Fund (627,613) [627,500)

Cl & &

[q Other Bolances & Reserves

Other Balances & Reserves 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
£ £

At 1 Apnil 120,000 360,000

Transiers between stalutory & ofher reserves & the General

Fund 4 8,782 362 {240,000)

At 31 March 8,902 362 120,000

1. Election Reserve - this reserve is used to equalise (smoaoth) the cost of elections by building up a fund lo cover the
costs of fulure elections by making contributions, as and when required, fo the reserve. The balance at 31/3/21 is
£209.500 (31/3/20 £120,000).

2. Covid Funding Reserve - the Department for Communities allocaled lunding to Councils to alleviate the impact of
exceptional losses and costs incurred or estimated fo be incured as a consequence of Covid-19. This reserve was
created to ring-fence the unspent funding. The balance of 31/3/21 1s £2,459,033.

3, Covid Support Grants Reserve - the Department for Communities issued a range of Covid support grants during the
year ended 315t March 2021 for Revitalisalion and Community Support. This reserve was crealed fo ring-fence lhe
unspent funding. The balance af 31/3/21 is £2,233,829,

4. Covid Revilalisalion Reserve - this reserve hos been created lo assist with the revitalisation of the District post-
Covid, The balance at 31/3/21 is £1,750,000.
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5. FEconomic Recovery Reserve - this reserve has been crealed to assist with the economic recovery of the District

post-Covid. The balance af 31/3/21 is £2,250,000.

B i U S SRR S e 17 o Y T ——

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in occordance with generally accepled
accounfing practices, rather than the omount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

General Fund

MNotes

31/03/2021

31/03/2020

At 31 March

£ L7
Al 1 April 11,708,885 11,869,501
Applied Capital Grants 10, 12 [6,7/05,499) (2,093.910)
Unapplied Capital Granis recelved in year : =
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 - .
Depreciation and Impaiment adjustment 4 6,848,412 7.341.209
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Invesiment 4 (3,826,000} (6,049,000]
Met Revenue expenditure funded from caopital under statule
4,12 7964479 2,834,425
Surplus/{Deficit) on the Provision of Services CIES 5895921 [10.961.792)
Transfers between Statutory and Olher Reserves ond the
General Fund 4 (8,154,749) 867,500
Met movements on Pension Reserve 4,21 5,745,000 6,034,000
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 3,411, 23 1.522.911 (18.960]
Difference beltween finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis ond fingnce costs
calculaled in accordance with stalutory requirements 126,020 (37,283}
Other Movements 102,907 [76.825]
19,228.267 11.708.865
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FTE U nuseable Reserves

'] Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustrment Account absorbs the liming differences arising from the different amangements for
occounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those

assels under stalutory provisions.

Tha Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slalement, with reconciling postings

from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basis,

The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of ocquisition, construction

and subsequent cosls,

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated

assels thal have yel lo be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008, the

date that the Revaluation Reserve was crealed to hold such gains,

0 020

£ £
Al april 44,870,973 46,810,666
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 6,705,499 2093910
Unapplied Capital Gronts fransfemred fo CAA in year - -
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 =
Depreciation & Impaiment adjustment 11 (6,848,412) (9.341,209)
Statutory Pravision for financing Capital Investment 4,12 5,826,000 6,049,000
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under stalule 4,12 (7,764,479 (2.834,425)
Disposal of Fixed Assels/ Capilal Sales 4,11 {2,790,271) B
Capital Receipis used to finance capital expenditure 4,12 1,267,360 18,960
Other Movements 731,245 2074071
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance capital expenditure 12 . -
At 31 March 41797914 44 870,973

Y] Revaoluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from Increases in the value of its Properly,
Flant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assels with accumulaled gains are:

-revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

- used in the pravision of services and the gains are consumed fhrough depreciation, or

- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contfains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the reserve was created.
Accurmulated gains arising before that dale are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustrment Account,

The purpose of this account is o build up a balance based on the revaluation [upwards or downwards) of individual
assels. All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses that have been debited to Suplus/{Deficil) on the Provision
of Services are mirored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamental principle of this
account that it never becomes negative. It an asset was held al current value when derecognised, the balance

held on the Revaluation Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation Reserve

Notes

31/03/2021

31/03/2020

£ £
Al 1 April 52,242,306 48,737,027
Revaluahion & Impaimment i 2,509,372 5,579,369
Other Movements [757.886) [2.074,070]
At 31 March 53,993.812 52 242 324
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'« Pension Reserve

Pantion Resarve 0 03/20 03/2020

£ £
Al 1 Aprl {53,807,000) (42,178.000]
Met Movements on Pension Reserve 4, 21 {5.745,000] {4,034,000]
Revaluation & Impairment 21 (7.810,000) {5,9%5,000)
At 31 March (69.362,000) {53.807,000)

The: Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benetfils in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-
employment benefits in the Comphensive Income and Expenditure Staternent as benefits are eomed by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation. changing assumptions and
invasiment retums on any resources set aside to meet the costs

However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s
confiibutions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is direcily responsible. The debit balance
on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shartfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees
and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The slatutory arrangements will ensure that funding will
have been set aside by ihe fime the benefits come fo be paid.

| Accumuloted Absences Account

The Accumulaled absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
balance from oceruing for compensated absences eamed bul nol taken in the yeor e.g. staff annual leave
entillemen! canied forward al the end of the financial year. Statutory arangements are expecied to require that the
impact on the General Fund is neutralised by fransfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

31/03/2021 31/03/2020

Accumulated Absences Account

£ &
At 1 April {353.643) (390,926)
Difference between finonce and other costs and income
calculated on on accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements {126,020} a7.283
At 31 March (479.443) (353.4643)

'] Provisions Discount Rale Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rate Reserve covers the arangement, put in place by the Department under its amendment
to the 2017/18 accounts direclion (see DIC circular 17/18). to allow for mitigotion of the cosls not allowed tor by
Councils who hod odopted the HM Treasury Central Government discount rate for long-term provisions such as
Landiill costs.

Subject to agreement with the Depariment, this amongement allows a council to spread the cost of the impact of
discount rate changes over a period of not more than & years.

Pravisions Discount Rate Reserve Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
£ E
Al April {1.029.947) (1,1048,772)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

calculated in occordance with statutory requirements (102,907) 75,825

Other Movements N

Al 31 March {1.132,854) (1.027,947)
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significant Trading Operations
The Council considers its only significant trading operalion 1o be Ihe provision of car parking lacilities. The resulls for

this are disclosed in Nole 2, namely Income of £222.570 and costs of £310,989, Income was adversely impacted this
year due to Covid.

In deciding whether a frading operation is significant the Council takes both financial and non-financial criteria into
account.

Financial criteria laken intoc account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are:

- the magnitude of each individual frading operalion’s tumover.

Mon-financial criterio taken inte account in deciding whether frading operations are significant to the Council are:

- the importance of each individual frading operalion to demonsiraling the achievement of Councll targets and
improving performance.

- lhe exposure of the Council to service repulational loss risk by providing the service

- whether the praovision of the service is likely 1o be of interest to Ine Council's key stokeholders and their needs,

il Agency Services

1. Mewry BID Company Ltd - Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) were an inifiafive established through the
Department for Communities which allow lown centres to establish action plans to bring forward additional
initialives, services and projects under a BID plan. Rale paying businesses within the defined BID area Ihen vote
whether to accept the plan ornet. If the BID is approved by a majority of Ihe ballol received an addifional BID levy is
then invoiced o all businesses wilthin the BID area o implement the agreed plan. The Council provides invoicing
and debl colleclion services to Newry BID Company Lid, During the year the Council raised invoices on behall of the
company amounting lo £245,184, Payments were made lo the company of £135,000. The company also reimburses
the Councils reasonable charges and expenses which amounted to £4,047 for the financial year under review, The
balance outstanding from the BID company's debtors amounted to £343.457 at 315t March 2021, This resulted in a net
amount of debt held by the Council on behatf of the company at 315t March 2021 of £21.944, this balance is
included in Short Term Creditors, No fransactions other than thie charges noted previously have been rellected in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2. CAMNN. is the abbreviation for Collaborative Action for the Malura Network, The Group consists of eleven project
pariners. Agri-Food and Biosciences Institute, Argyll ond the Isles Coast and Countryside Trust, Armagh City, Banbridge
oand Craigavon Borough Council, Eost Border Region Lid, Golden Eagle Trush, Inslitule of Technolagy Sligo, Monaghan
County Council, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council, Scotlish Natural Heritage, Ulster University and the Ulster
Wildllife Trust. The project is funded by the Special EU Programmes Body (SEUPB). Mewry Moume and Down District
Council (NMDDC) are the lead pariners where they pay the salaries of employees and invoices. Claims for fhe
project partners are made by the the individual organisalions o SEUPB. The funding for all partners is paid inio
NMDDC's bank accouni, The Council subseguently pays this funding o the project partners. During this cument year
NMDDC received €B47.094 of grants from SEUPB on behalf of the fen project pariners aond paid €8467.096 1o the
praject partners. These ransactions are not reflected in the Council's Revenue accounls. There were no balances
owing to the other project pariners at 315t March 2021,

3. Full Fibre Mortherm Ireland (FFMI) is a consortium of all ten Councils in NI outside of Belfast and the Business Services
Organisafion. The Cansortium has been owarded £24m from the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sporfs
(DCMS) to implement a new collaboralive programme fo drive grealer investment in fibre and digital infrastructure
across Northern Ireland. The Censortium's phosed delivery programme will initially manage two DCMS funded
programmes - Lacal Full Fibre Network (LFFN) and Rural Gigabit Cannectivity (RGC). I will also manage the delivery
of further digital infrastruciure initiatives and ensure a vital local link for future digital pregrammes al local authority

level.
The funding of £24m aims to deliver full fibre 1o over 900 sites, which includes Council buildings, Community Centres,

GP Surgeries, Ambulance Stations and Fire Stations by December 2021, using the 'Public Seclior Anchor Tenancy
approach. This represents Phase | of a proposed longer-lerm programme of fibre related investment.
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The FFNI Operations Team has been faced with a series of exiremely complex and technical issues associated with
the procurement process and risks in relation to the FRNI infrastructure. The impact of this has been that additional
funding for the centralised operations team required is higher than the value originally anticipated. In December
2020 an additional request of £10,900 was made to fund operational team staft costs upfront for 8 Councils, six of
these have paid the confribution by 31 March 2021 and two after that date. It was agreed from Januray 2021 that
consultancy services would be charged on an ad hoc basis if required. Business Services Organisalion, a new
| puartner, will be inveiced £70,000 to match the Councils' contibution, Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon District

| Council left the project mid-2020.
During the year ended 315t March 2021 Newry, Moume and Down District Council received £210,403 from the other

| consortium members. Expenditure of £270.814 has been incured and £210.403 has been received, In addition
£27,577 receipts in advance hos been recaorded in Creditors at 31/3/2021.
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1|

Relafed Party Transactions

A Relaled Party Transaction is a franster of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whethera
price is charged. Relaled Parly Transaction exclude transactions with any other antity that is a reloted parly solely
because of ils economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part. A related party is
one fthat has the ability to control the ather party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. This includes cases where the related party enfity and another enfily are subject to
common control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade
Unions in the course of their nomal dealings with the Council.

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set oul below, where a
description of the nature, the amount of the fransaction and the amount of the ocutstanding balance is as follows,
Related porty relotionships where confrol exists should be disclosed irespective of whether there have been
transactions between the reloted parties.

Members of the council have direct control over the council’s financing and operating policies. The total of
members' allowances paid in 2020/21 Is shown in Note 7. During 2020/21, works and services to the value of
£3,256,087 were commissioned from companies in which individual members and senior officers had an interest. The
main recipients within this total were ARC 21 (see separote note below) and Mourne Heritoge Trust £307,172,

The Council paid granis of £78,299 fo a number of organisations in which Councillors and senior officers had an
interest. All payrments were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests.

The Council incured expenditure of £342,596 fo olher councils of which £54.771 was outstanding as af 315t March
MWV

The Council has recorded income of £495,575 from other councils of which £130,199 was outstanding as al 31st
March 2021,

Arc 21, a joint commitlee organisation. is a woste management group in Northem Ireland representing Councils in
the east of the province. The Council's contribution in the cument year was £182,842. The Council paid an additional
£2,523.436 to Arc 21 for various services provided during the year including the use of the Malerial Recycling Facility
and received income of £47,119.

Date of authorisalion for issue

The Chief Financiol Officer authorised these financiol stalements for issue on September 2021,

Back to Agenda
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Repart to: Audit Committee
Date of Meeting: 5 July 2021
Subject: Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
" Reporting Officer ‘Dorinnia Carville - Director: Corporate Services
__(Including Job Title}: | - - .
Contact Officer Kate Bingham — Head of Performance and Improvement
(Including Job Title):

"Confirm how this Report should be treated by placing an x in either:-

For decision | | For noting only _ X |
1.0 Purpose and Background

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the final version of the Performance Improvement
Plan 2021-22. This plan is supported by the Consultation and Engagement Report 2021-
22 and Delivery Plans which have been developed for each Performance Improvement
Objective 2021-22. The Performance Improvement Plan and associated documentation
was approved by the Strateqy, Policy and Resources Committee on 17 June and has been
published on the Council’s website ahead of the statutory deadline of 30 June 2021,

1.2 Part 12 of the Local Government (NI) Act 2014 sets out 2 General Duty of Improvement
for local government, whereby all District Coundils are required to put in place
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of their functions. Each
financial yvear, Councils are required to set perfarmance improvement objectives for the
services they provide., The guidance states that performance improvement is more than
quantifiable gains in service output or efficiency, or in the internal effectiveness of an
organisation. Improvement should focus on activity that enhances the sustainable quality
of life and environment for communities.

1.3 The Performance Improvement Plan is a key strategic document which drives all
improvement activity across the organisation. It features within the Business Planning and
Performance Management Framework and is directly aligned to the Community Flan,
Corporate Plan and Directorate Business Plans.

2.0 Key issues

21 In accordance with statutory requirements, the Council is required to publish the
Performance Improvement Plan by 30 June 2021. The Performance Improvement Plan
2021-22 is attached at Appendix 1, and includes the following information:

= Performance improvement objectives 2021-22

= Statutory performance indicators and standards for economic development,
planning and waste management

= Self imposed performance indicators, as outlined in the Corporate Plan 2021-23

Public Consultation and Engagement 2021-22 _
2.2 The development of the performance improvement objectives 2021-22 was based on a
robust and reliable evidence base which includes:
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« 764 responses to the Residents Survey (September 2018)
» 581 individuals engaged in the consultation on COVID-19 and draft Corporate Plan
2021-23 (September 2020)

This was supplemented by an eight weask public consultation and engagemeant process
around the proposed draft performance improvement objectives 2021-22, which took
place between 15 March — 10 May 2021 and consisted of the following elements:

« 4] responses to the survey on the draft perfformance improvement objectives
« Engagement with 100 stakeholders through the DEA Forums, Youth Coundil, Older
Persons Forums and Cedar Foundation

Overall feedback from the consultation and engagement process revealed widespread
support for the proposed performance improvement cbjectives.

Objective Delivery Plans 2021-22 i
2.3 Delivery plans for each performance improvement objective have been developed, as
outlined in Appendix 3. They seek to demonstrate how the Coundil will manage the
effective delivery of each objective, in terms of resources, risk management and
governance arrangements. These plans are a 'work in progress’ and will be reviewed and
updated on a continuous basis to support the delivery of each performance iImprovemeant

objective,
3.0 Recommendations
31 Ta note:

= The Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22 (including the five performance
improvemeant objectives), Consuitation and Engagement Report 2021-22 and
Objective Delivery Plans 2021-22.

4.0 Resource implications

4.1 There are no financial resource implications within this report.

5.0 Due regard to equality of opportunity and regard to good relations (complete
the relevant sections)

5.1 | General proposal with no clearly defined impact upon, or connection to, specific
equality and good relations outcomes

It is not anticipated the proposal will have an adverse impact upon equality of 5]
opportunity or good relations

5.2 Proposal relates to the introduction of a strategy,. policy initiative or practice
and / or sensitive or contentious decision

ves 2 no [

If yes, please complete the following:
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The palicy (strategy, paolicy initiative or practice and [/ or decision) has bean aquality E
scresnad

The palicy (strategy, policy initiative or practice and [/ or decision) will be subject to []
equality =creening prior to implementation

53 Proposal initiating consuftation

Consultation will seek the views of those directly affected by the proposal, address
barriers for particular Section 75 equality categories to participate and allow
adequate time for groups to consult amongst themsalves D

Consultation period will be 12 weeks D
Consultation period will be less than 12 weeks (rationale to be provided) E
Rationale:

At the Strateqgy, Policy and Resources Committes meeting on 11 March 2021, it was
agread to implement an sight week consultation and engagement process, in order to
meet the statutory deadline of 30 June 2021 for publishing the Performance Improvement
Plan.

6.0 Due regard to Rural Needs ( please tick all that apply)

6.1 | Proposal relates to developing, adopting, implementing or revising a palicy [
strategy / plan f designing and/or delivering a public service

ves 20 no [

If yes, please complete the following:

Rural Meeds Impact Assessment completed

B

7.0  Appendices
+ Appendix 1 — Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22

= Appendix 2 - Consultation and Engagement Report 2021-22
» Appendix 3 — Objective Delivery Plans 2021-22

8.0 Background Documents

Performance Improvement Plans 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20
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Réamhra

Seo chugat Plean
Feabhsichain Feidhmiochta
Chomhairle Ceantair an Idir,
Mhdrn agus an Duin 2021-
22. Bhi an bhliain seo caite
neamhchaosdil le bliain ar
bith roimhe seo, thainig ar
gcathair, mbailte agus
sraidbhailte chuig lanstad
agus muid ag dul i ngleic le
paindéim Covid-19 le chéile.
Bhi impleachtai na
paindéime le braith ag gach
duine, gnolachtai aitidla,
grupai pobail agus clubanna
spairt san direamh, Thug sé
dishlan ddinn
athmhachnamh a
dhéanamh ar an bhealach a
gibrionn muid, na seirbhisi a
sholathraionn muid agus an
bealach a sholathraionn
muid iad. Mar Chomhairle,
nuair a amharcann muid
siar le machnamh a
dheanamh ar an bhliain seo
a chuaigh thart, is féidir linn
a bheith broddil as an
mheéid a bhfuil bainte amach
againn.

Lean muid ag solathar
seirbhisi riachtanacha,
bailiichain bhruscair,
glanadh sraideanna, slainte
comnhshaoil agus ar georas
claruchain san aireamh,
D'oibrigh muid in éineacht
lenar gcomhphairtithe
phleanail phobail chun
18,407 daileacht bhia a chur
ar fail dar dteaghlaigh is
leochaili, Thacaigh muid e
367 gno aitidil agus fiontar
soisialta, chuidigh muid le
60 post nua a chruthd agus
bhronn muid thart ar £1.1m
chun tacd le gnathai aitidla
dul | ngleic leis an
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phaindeim. Nasc muid le
nios mé dasine na riamh
trinar n-ardain mhean
soisialta agus rinne cuid
mhdr dar goonaitheoiri
athcheangal le hailleacht
nadurtha ar gCeantar tri
chuairt a thabhairt ar ar
bpairceanna foraoise,
tranna agus sléibhte
iontacha.

Agus muid ag teacht amach
6 bhuaic na paindéime,
baineann 2021-22 le
téarnamh COVID-19. Tri
chuspadiri feabhsdchain
feidhmiochta na bliana seo,
ta pleananna curtha i
bhfeidhm againn chun dirid
ar na rudai is tabhachtai
duit - caighdean ar
bpairceanna agus ar
spasanna oscallte a
fheabhsy, an geilleagar
aitilil a thas, glaineacht ar
gCeantar a theabhsu,
acmhainn na bpobal Aitidil a
chothy, chamh maith le
feidhmiocht ar Seirbhis
Pleanala a fheabhsu. Ta
muid muinineach go
leanfaidh an Chombhairle ar
aghaidh ag feabhsy
caighdean marachtala don
phobal aitidil, agus ag togail
Cheantair gur féidir linn uilig
a bheith broddil as.

Foreword

Welcame to Newry, Maurne
and Down District Council's
Performance Improvement
Plan 2021-22. The past
year has been a year like no
other when our city, towns
and villages came to a
standstill as we collectively



responded to the Covid-19
pandemic. The pandemic
has been tough on
everyone, including local
businesses, community
groups and sports dubs,
and has challenged us to
re-think the way we work,
the services we provide and
the way we provide

them. As a Council, when
we look back and reflect on
the past year, we can be
proud of our achievements.

We continued to provide
essential services, including
refuse collection, street
cleansing, Enviranmental
Health and

Registration. We worked
alongside our community
planning partners to deliver
18,407 food parcels to our
most vulnerable
households, We supported
367 local businesses and
social enterprises, helped
create 50 new jobs and
awarded approximately
£1.1m to assist local
businesses in responding to
the pandemic. We engaged
maore people than ever
through our social media
platforms and many of our
residents re-connected with
the natural beauty of our
District by visiting our
wanderful forest parks,
beaches and mountains.

As we emerge from the
peak of the pandemic,
2021-22 15 all about COVID-
19 recovery. Through this
year's performance
improvement cbjectives, we
have put in place plans to
focus on what matters most
to you - improving the

Perfarmance Iinpravemend Plan 2021-22

quality of our parks and
open spaces, growing the
local econamy, improving
the cleanliness of our
District, building the
capacity of local
communities and improving
the performance of our
Flanning Service,

We remain confident that
the Council will continue to
improve the quality of life
for all local communities
and build a District we can
all be proud of.

Back to Agenda



Agenda 17.0 / 17 - Appendix 1 Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22.pdf Back to Agenda

Introduction

Part 12 of the Local Government Act (NI) 2014 sets out a General Duty of
Improvement for local government, whereby all district councils must put in place
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of their functions.
The Council is required to set annual improvement objectives for the services it
provides and to have in place arrangements to achieve these objectives. The
Council recognises ‘improvement’ to mean activity that enhances the sustainable
quality of life and ervironment for ratepayers and communities.

The performance improvement objectives do not describe every improvement the
Council plans to make during 2021-22. Alternatively, they provide an overview of
how the Council will address the issues which matter most to local communities.
The Performance Improvement Plan outlines the Council’s objectives for
improvement, how performance will be measured and what positive outcomes
stakeholders can expect as a result of improvement activity. It represents the
Council’s commitment to achieving continuous improvement in the delivery of key
services.

Performance Improvement Objectives 2021-22

1. We will encourage local people to lead healthy and active
lives by improving the quality of our parks and open spaces

2. We will grow the economy by supporting local businesses
and creating new jobs

3. We will improve the cleanliness of our District by
addressing littering, fly tipping and dog fouling incidents

4. We will build the capacity of local communities through the
Financial Assistance Scheme

5. We will improve the processing times of planning
applications and enforcement cases by implementing the
Planning Service Improvement Programme

These objectives have been developed within the context of the Business Planning
and Performance Management Framework. They are:

¥ | Linked to the Community Plan, Corporate Plan and Directorate Business Plans
Based on a robust and reliable evidence base, including performance trends
Aligned to the seven strategic aspects of improvement

Legitimate, clear, robust, deliverable and demonstrable

b e e

ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Performance Improvement Objective 1

We will encourage local people to lead healthy and active lives ‘
| by improving the quality of our parks and open spaces
| Why this You told us that:
miatters
= The impact of COVID-19 on mental health and well-being is one
of your top concems
= To alleviate the impact of COVID-19, the Council should provide
well maintained parks and green spaces
« 'Improving people’s health and wellbeing {and reducing health
inequalities)’ is your second highest priority for improvement
« Over the past two years, investment in local community projects,
such as parks, has become more important to you
100% of respondents to our survey agreed with this objective

The COVID-19 pandemic has reinforced the strong correlation between
healthy lifestyles and outdoor recreation. Since the lockdown restrictions |
eased in May 2020, the Council's greenways and blueways have become
increasingly popular, providing excellent opportunities for people of all
ages and abilities to lead healthy and active lives whilst enjoying the
natural beauty of our District.

However, high visitor numbers can put pressure on parks and open
spaces, particularly in relation to car park congestion, littering,
irresponsible behaviour and general wear and tear on the environment.
Promating goad visitor management will enhance the guality of the
Council’s parks and open spaces, ensuring they are welcoming, safe and
well maintained places to encourage local people to be active and

_ ~ healthy,
| Looking Back: 77 MNew counter systems installed at Kilbroney and Slieve Gullion
|V Ihat we did in Y| Forest Parks |
[ 2020-21 -

=) 3 ’'blue flag’ beaches and 4 ‘green flag’ parks

(o B4% of visitors are satisfied with Warrenpoint Park and 8%%
- agree ﬁ'_'l_E park enhances their local quality nf IEF_E ;

“-*_!__: | | 87,854 recorded visits at four community trails

Looking + Continue to develop the district’s bid to achieve UNESCO Global
Forwanrd: What Geopark designation
ve will doin = [nvest in new facilities at Kilbroney Park and Rostrevor Forest,
202122 Tyrella beach, Slieve Gullion Farest Park and Delamont Country
Park
= Retain green flag accreditation for Kilbroney Park, Slieve Gullion
Forest Park, Warrenpoint Municipal Park and Newry Canal and
heritage accreditation for Warrenpoint Municipal Park
« Apply for green flag accreditation for Delamont Country Park and
heritage accreditation for Newry Canal
« Retain blue flag acoreditation for Cranfield, Murlough and Tyrella
beaches
= Build three new play parks and upgrade two existing play parks

Ferformance Impravement Plan 20.21-22
?
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« Complete three new community trails
= Promote good visitor management across all Counal parks and

Open spaces
| How we will measure J017-14 nia-14 119-2 202 0-21 Ckab 2122 |
| SUCCESS Artual foctial Actiial | Trond rarget |
| Number of recarded visits at: _ _ _ |
| Kilbroney Park* 447 616 453,704 454,848 584,148 WA |
| Slieve Gullion Forest Park* 341,888 253,376 @ 366,444 183,712 bargets

| Carlingford Lough Greenway™* = 40,219 73,138 47005 |

U Jp NS el P - - 205,126 119,500 143,500

[y b 48,844 = 43305 47,660 87,854
| Number of parks with green 5 3 3
| flag accreditation

| Number of parks with green
| fiag heritage accreditation

| Mumber of beaches with biue 3
| flag accreditation®**

| Lewel of satisfaction with the

| Councl’s forest parks

> Db

Baseline to be established

| Number of new/upgraded play

| parkse =+ - 17 g 0 V 5|

| What you will = Improvements to the Council’s parks, beaches and open spaces |

| see by March including effective visitor management arrangements

| 2022 « UNESCO Global Geopark status achieved for the Moumes, Gullion,
Strangford

« Five green flag awards and two green flag heritage awards for
the Council’s parks
Three blue flag awards for the Council’s beaches
Five new/upgraded play parks and three new community trails _
[ Alignmient i
» Continue to improve the health and wellbeing of everyone in the |
| Corporate Plan District and reduce health inegualities
[ 2021-23 « Support sustainable forms of tourism which value our
environment and cultural heritage _ !
« Al people in Newry, Mourne and Down enjoy good health and

ks e i wellbeing
» All people in Mewry, Mourne and Down benefit from prosperous
communities _ o ,
ragramme for = We all enjoy long, healthy, active lives
| Government = People want to live, work and visit here
T B ] |
Z IIH" | rS‘I:rr amgll'..rea':gss Service quality Fairness Innovation

sEiansibie 5 = =

E;;E;: e Director: Enterprise, Regeneration and Tourism
*Mumber of recorded visits at Kilbroney Park and Slieve GuBlion Forest Park are for the calendar years
af 201720182019, 2020-21 visitor data s incomplete as new counter systems were instalied and
the annual datasets cannot be compared. The recorded number of visits at Warrenpoint Park
reduced due to the dosure of the park and reduced number of events/activities.
X 2018-19 visitor numbers for the Cadingford Lough Greemnway covers September 2018- March 2019,
xRN hilz blue Aag accreditation was awarded for the Council’s three beaches in 2020-21, [Heguard
services are not being offered at Murlough beach due ba COVID-19 restrictions.
FEEEThere were no new of upgraded play parks in 2020-21 due to the COVID-19 panderic.

Performance Improvement Flan 2021-22
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Performance Improvement Objective 2

We will grow the economy by supporting local businesses and

creating new jobs

Why this You told us that:

matters
+ The impact of COVID-19 on businesses and employment is your

top concem

» To alleviate the impact of COVID-19, the Council should support
local businesses, especially those which have been impacted most
by lockdown restrictions

« ‘Supporting local businesses, attracting investment and jobs” is
your top priority for improvement

« Investment to grow the economy, create jobs and attract tourists
is the most important form of investment

s  93% of respondents to our survey agreed with this objective

The economic impact of COVID-19 is unparalleled and forecasters predict
that economic output is unfikely to recover to pre-pandemic levels unkil
2022 at the earliest. The local sectoral concentrations of construction,
manufacturing and retail suggests that Newry, Mourne and Down is likely
to experience the fourth worst decline in terms of GVA and employment
across Northern Ireland. Furthermore, across the District, many
employees have been furloughed, there have been 500 confirmed
redundancies and the claimant count for unemployment benefit has
increased by 103% when compared to 2019,

To support the economic recovery of the District, the Council has issued
approximately B07 letters of offer, with a combined value of
approximately £1.1m to assist local businesses as they navigate the
impact of COVID-19, Through the Regeneration and Economic
Development Strategy 2020-25, the Council will also work with partner
organisations to unlock the rich potential of the District. Programmes
such as 'Go For It', 'NMD Growth', ‘Digital Growth', "Tender for Growth’
and "SEAFLAG 2" will help new and established businesses to innovate,
grow and expand, supporting the local economy to recover, reboot and
rebuild in the years ahead.

Looking ' o | | 181 new business starts supported and 164 DEW-]'I:IIJE promated
Back: TJ'IIDth business start al.'.tl"ul'lt'ﬁ"

s e i '-". | 40 soclal enterprise businesses supported and 13 new social
2020-21 = | enterprise jobs created

7y | 327 businesses supported and 47.5 jobs created through "NMD
= | Growth', "Digital Growth' and "Tender for Growth'
= | | 5,004 mentoring hours, 22 workshops and 8 thematic
(=) | pregrammes delivered through "NMD Growth', *Digital Growth' and
| "Tender for Growth'
Ty | Up to 1,000 businesses engaged in the #re:Launch Leadership
| Summit and 400 participants took part in NMD Enterprise Week
| Looking ' s Implement a District wide mar‘rzﬂi:ing carnpé:]gn to revitalise our
| Forward: local economy and safely stimulate footfall across our District

Ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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[ What we wil « Support the creation of new businesses and promote new jobs
do in 2021-22 through the NI 'Go for It' programme
+ Invest in the social economy through the Social Enterprise
programme
= Support local businesses and create new jobs through "NMD
Growth', 'Digital Growth’, 'Tender for Growth’ and 'Sales and
Trade’
= Support the creation of new jobs and businesses in coastal areas
B | through SEAFLAG 2 _ _ _
How we will measure 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | Status | 2021-22
SuUCCess Auctual Actual Aciual Actual Trend Target
Mumber of business plans ' '
approved through NI "Go For [£™ e : ai i | i _ _ 2
Mumiber of new business starts
created thraugh NI 'Go For It 67 | 24 203 18 7
Fo
Mumber of raw jobs promoted "._*_f_'_,a'
through NI 'Go For It 168 184 183 164 >155
Mumber of social enterprise start- | '
ups supported . 12 9 e o '& a
Mumber of social enterprise jobs
S 16 15 12 13 P o
Mumber of businesses supparted
through "NMO Growth' oo WL B WE S ) | 2
Mumber of jobs created through
NMD Growth' il . (O - O
Mumber of businesses supparted a0 ? 90
throwgh "Digital Growth' _ _
Number of jobs created through se < &0
‘Digital Growth’ 2 | |
Mumber of businesses supported 35 ) 81
throwgh *Tender for Growth' .
Mumber of jobs created through WS i Eaites ¢ : =
‘Tender for Growth' _ _
Number of businesses supported ) ) a0
throwgh *Sales and Trade _ _
Mumber of jobs created through ) N 40
“Sales and Trade . .
Mumber of naw jobs oreated in 7 7 } far 2323
coastal areas (SEAFLAG 21+ N _ | 50
Mumber of new businesses )
created in coastal areas (SEAFLAG ~ P'od oM ME 1 1 . |
2] . . ! | |
What you s 312 entrepreneurs supported with an approved Business Plan and
will see by =155 new jobs promoted through the NI "Go For It' programme
March 2022 » 12 social enterprise start-ups supported and 12 social enterprise
jobs created
s 379 businesses supported and 194 jobs created through the "NMD
Growth', ‘Digital Growth” and 'Tender for Growth' and *Sales and
Trade’ programmes
» The social economy and fishing dependent communities benefit
from inward investment and growth

Ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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= Maore suppaort for new and established local businesses and more
employment opportunities across the District
» The economic recovery of Newry, Mourne and Down is underway,

Alignment | S - g : : -

Carporate Plan = Invest in and support new and growing businesses, job creation

2021-23 | and employment skills

Community = Al people from Newry, Mourne and Down benefit from

Fan | prosperous communities .

Programme for = Everyone can reach their potential

Government «  Qur economy is globally competitive, regionally balanced and
carbon neutral

» People want to live, work and visit here

7 aspects of ' Strategic
improvement | effectiveness | Sarvice quality _.Sewlceavallahilrll:f_ Innovation

gﬁ:ﬁrﬁ'hh Director: Enterprise, Regeneration and Tourism
*There was a dip in performance during 01 2020-21 which is atbributed directhy to the Covid-19
pandemic.

FESEAFLAG 2 includes year on year cumulative results For each performance indicator.

ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Performance Improvement Objective 3

We will improve the cleanliness of our District by addressing
littering, fly tipping and dog fouling incidents

Why this
matters

Looking Back:
What we did in

You tald us that:

s Dog mess and dog fouling is your top perceived problem

« Rubbish or litter lying around is a problem for many of you,
particularly those living in urban areas

=  To alleviate the impact of COVID-19, the Council should continue
to keep the local environment clean, ensure dog fouling is kept to
a minimum and reduce the perceived increase in littering

= 98% of respondents to our survey agreed with this objective

Betwesn 2018-12 and 2019-20, the LEAMS® score for the District
reduced from 72 to 64, which was partially attributed to higher levels of
littering and dog fouling. Issues around street cleanliness continue to
escalate, largely as a result of the increasad number of fly Hpping
incidents reported to the Council and the prioritisation of the refuse
coliection service throughout the COVID-19 pandemic.

This approach has often resulted in the provision of 3 reduced strest
cleansing service, However, the Council remains committed ko
collaborating with partner organisations and bacal communities to address
ongoing issues around littering and fiy tipping and promate responsible
aog ownership. Iilicit dumping is a cime and the continued
implementation of the Dog Fouling Strategy and Enforcement
Improvement Plan will help generate local pride in having a cleaner,
greanar District for everyone to enjoy.

(=Y Continued to issue fixed penalty notices and support community
= | dean ups

pRERE (2] Achieved an average recycling rate of 53.3%
[+ 3 60 schools participated in the calendar poster competition and
“= /000 copies of the calendar were printed
7 15 schools attended the virtual teachers Eco-Schools Information
=4 event in December
Looking s Address issues around littering, fly tipping and dog fouling by:
Forward: What - Implementing the Dog Fouling Strategy and Enforcement
we will do in Improvement Plan
2021-22 Promoting responsible dog ownership through publicity

campaigns and dog licensas
Waorking with Louth County Coundl to raise awareness of the
impact of fly tipping along the border area
- Encouraging residents to bring properly sorted surplus
recyclable waste to our Household Recycling Centres
« Launch the ‘mobile app’ to enable officers to record incidents of
environmental crime across the District
» Support local community clean ups, in line with COVID-19
guidance

ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22

12



Back to Agenda

« Participate in the Keep NI Beautiful ‘Live Here Love Here'

How we will measure 2017-18 | 2018-19- | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | - Status 2021-22
SUCCass Arctusal Actusal Actusal Actiial Trend Tamat
LEAMS soore (Keep NI Beautiful
_Cleaniiness Iﬂ{t!as}p ?2 * A v o8
Mumber of fixed penalty notices
issued [ littering, fiy tipping and 72 54 83 52 ? ap
dog fouling)
Mumber of fixed penalty notices
paid (littering, fy tpping ard deg 58 =0 72 21 v 72
fouling) | | |
Mumber of community cean ups
il 00 100 %4 33 V 60
Mumber of "Live Here Love Here’
ot Ental poigecs 16 27 34 24 N/ Motarget
The percentage of hausehokd {v e
waste collected by District 461% | s1a% | sam | B O S0% by
Coungils that is sent for recycling 53.3% 2020
The amount of bisdegradable ooy i
Local Authority Collected 2612t | 1846t | 2131 | 1o ) " ti?ﬁi?
MIJF'IiCiP-Eﬂ Washke that is landfilled 1 v [ 2019-207%
The amaunt of Local Autharity 103
Collected Municipal Waste arisings | S35t | 82,1360 | B4,610t ! 65, 583 Mo target
What you will = Increase in the number of fixed penalty notices issued and paid
see by March « Respansible dog ownership and reduced levels of dog fouling, fiy
2022 tipping and littering
= Improved opportunities to report littering, fly tipping and dog
fouling
« Opportunities to engage in community clean ups and participate
in the ‘Live Here Love Here’ campaign
The Council achieves landfill and recycling targets
A cleaner, greener District, with improved civic and community
HLLE rzs pride
_Alignment
Corporate Plan :
212123 Enhance, protect and promote our environment

' All people from Mewry, Mourne and Down benefit from a clean
ommunity Plan _ ' ¢
: Lty quality and sustainable environment

Programme for We live and work sustainably - protecting the environment

Government _ 't s

7 aspects of Strategic Service - e
improvement  effectivensss | availability TnGyEuan Sustamatiily
Responsible - T :

Officer Director: Neighbourhood Services

*Local Ervironmental Auditing Management System which is carriad out by Keep Northern Treland
Baautiful,

**There has been a reduction in the number of fiked penalty notices isseed and community cean ups
supported due to the COVID-19 pandemic and social restrictions.

¥2+The Q1-003 2020-21 data for the statutory waste management performance indicators remains
pravisicnal and will be finalised when the year-end data Is validated and published by DAERA,
FEEEThe 2019-20 NT Landfill Allowance Scheme [NILAS) target has been included as the Council
awalts more up to date targets from DAERA,

ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Performance Improvement Objective 4

We will build the capacity of local communities through the

Financial Assistance Scheme
Why this You told us that:
matters
s The impact of COVID-19 on ‘mental health and well-being’ and
wulnerable, isolated and lonely’ residents are amongst your top
CONCEMS
s To alleviate the impact of COVID-19, the Council should support
community groups and charities
« ‘Improving community relations and safety, reducing crime and
anti-social behaviour’ Is the third highest priority for improvement
for residents
s 95% of respondents to our survey agreed with this objective

The Council remains committed to building the capacity of local
communities, enabling them to have a voice in shaping the future of
their District, Through the Financial Assistance Scheme, local
communities are empowerad to address local issues using public funds.
Since 2015-16, the Council has awarded £6.5m to 2,277 applications
across a range of thematic areas including community engagement,
summer schemes and festivals,

In recognition of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on mental health
and well being, the Council supplemented the 2020-21 Financial
Assistance Scheme with the thematic areas of "suicide prevention’,
"COVID-19 and "COVID response and recovery’. Over £10,000 was
awarded to 11 applications to support suicide prevention and a further
£76,630 was awarded to 58 applications to assist local communitias in
recovering from the impact of COVID-19. Each of the projects funded,
which inciuded "holiday hunger support’, ‘community kitchen', ‘feeding
Families” and "friendship café’, have been instrumental in building local
capacity and generating a sense of pride across Newry, Mourne and
Dowin.

Going forward, the number of projects funded may reduce as

applications are now scored and ranked, in line with the new Financial

Assistance Policy, and demand for funding generally exceeds the level of
_ funding available.

i

Looking || £731k awarded to 377 projects across 16 thematic areas

Back:
What we did in <7 | Electronic Grant Management System launched and online training
2020-21 ~ module developed

Mewry, Down and Kilkeel Leisure Centres tempaorarity converted to
- | food distribution hubs between March-August 2020

| 18,407 food parcels delivered to vulnerable households and 144
24| community organisations enhisted as volunteers

Looking s Launch 3 financial assistance calls across 19 thematic areas to
Forward: support the delivery of community led projects

) ()

I__L'._

%
i
i

{ce

) |

P
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What we will
do In 2021-22

=« Continue to promote and roll out the Electronic Grant
Management System

+ Deliver online training and capacity building to support local
voluntary and community groups in applying for financial

| == assistance . . :
How we will measure 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | e | 2021-22

_Success _Acwal | Actual Actual | Actual largel
%% of successful financial

assistance applications* B8 % 1% . T1% FFa ] _ T
%% of fimancial assstanos Pley
applications funded® % | % | M% | 0% | V| pe
Mumber af views af the anline

training module Mew performance measure 100
Mumber of online capacity
building ions deliverad Mew performance measure 2
Mumber of participants/

benaficiaries of the Financial
Assistance Scheme

What you
will see by
March 2022

Alignment

Corporate Plan |

New performance measure (baseline to be established)

= Circa £1.2m awarded to local voluntary and community groups
through the Financial Assistance Scheme

= [Improved and accessible training and support when applying for
financial assistance

» \oluntary and community groups are supported in meeting their
objectives and delivering projects across a range of themes

* Representatives from the community and voluntary sector are
empowered to have a voice and shape the future of their area

« Improved community capacity and cohesion across Newry,
Mourne and Down

« Enable and support people to engage in inclusive and diverse

2021-23 activities in their communities
Community +« Al people in Mewry, Mourne and Down live in respectful, safe
Plan and vibrant communities

Pr 0] ramme for |

= We have an equal and inclusive society where everyone is valued

Government and treated with respect
= ‘We have a caring society that supports people throughout their
lives
7 acpects of Strateqic Service . :
IMprovedment effectiveness availability Faimess Innovation
Responsible
Officer Director: Active and Healthy Communities

*The methodology for scoring specific themes within the Financial Assistance Schieme was reviewed
in 2020-21 and the success rate of the applications funded reduced as some themes were scored and
ranked, based on the funding available,

Ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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We will improve the processing times of planning applications
and enforcement cases by implementing the Planning Service
Improvement Programme !
Why this Delivering a more efficient and effective Planning Service for customers is a
matters key priority for improvement for the Council. Planning plays a significant
role in promoting sustainable development, regeneration, economic
prosperity, investment and job creation for present and future generations
of our District. 98% of respondents to cur survey also agreed with this
objective.
The implementation of the Planning Service Improvement Programme is
well underway, Despite the challenges presented by the COVID-19
pandemic, significant prograss is being made in establishing and embedding
modern, agile and responsive ways of working., However, as the number of
planning applications received by the Council continues to rise, we remain
committed to improving the processing times of local and major planning
applications and enforcement cases, and providing a high quality service to
all customers.
Looking @ Processed 39.2% of planning enforcement cases within 39 weeks,
Back: which is below the regional average of 65.2%
What we did @ Average processing time of 19.6 weeks for local planning
between April- applications, which is above the regional average of 17.8 weeks
December Average processing time of 64.6 weeks for major planning
2020 @ applications, which is above the regional average of 51.8 weeks
/o | Received 1,177 planning applications and decided on 1,038, which Is
=/ | the highest across Northern Ireland
& Reduced the number of live enforcement cases, particularly thosea in
the system for more than 12 months
Looking » Reduce the number of live planning applications and enforcement
Forward: cases which have been in the system for over 12 months
What we will = Work with agents and architects to improve the standard of planning
do in 2021-22 applications submitted
» Support employees to deliver service improvements through ongoing
training, capacity building and "planning surgeries’ .
2020-21 2021-
How we will measure success Iﬂt::.gla 22;&-;9 zgétgu:aglﬂ Q1/02/03 ﬁﬂ’; 22
- Actual Target |
Average processing time for lecal @ <15
planning applcations {weeks) 17 18 20.6 19.6 & Wik
Ma’age pmcgsi_ng tme of majar @ <30
planning applications [weeks) 127.6 76.6 94 4.6 & ek
Percentage of planning enforcement @
cases progressed within 39 weeks 59.9% 52.9% | 36.2% 39.2% & 0%
Mumber of planning apphcations in
Ehe systom ?f: 12 rgnnms ar more T = A g il

Ferformance Impravement Plan 20.21-22
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Mumber of planning applications in |
bl et e g 575 800 685 | 788 N 700
Mumber of enforcement cases in the
sysbem 12 months or more o 74 a0 i & s
What you » A more effident and effective planning service
will see by = Improved processing times for local and major planning applications
March 2022 « [mproved processing times for planning enforcement caseas

= Reduction in the number of live planning applications and

enforcement cases in the system
 An empowered and motivated workforce
» Increased confidence in the Planning system
Sustainable development and regeneration of the District

Al
Corporate Plan « Provide accessible, high guality and integrated services through
2021-23 continuous improvemeank
Commurity » Al people in Newry, Mourne and Down benefit from prosperous
Plan communities |
Programme for :
Cer ek = People want to lve, work and visit here
7 aspects of ic Sarvice
s b i availability Sustainability Efficiency
mﬂhﬁ Director: Enterprise, Regeneration and Tourism

*Annual planning fgures will be validabed by the Department for Infrastructure and published
through the Annual Report 202 1-23,

Ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Performance Corporate Community Duty of
Improvement Objective(s) Planning Improvement
Objective Outcome(s)
Wi will encourage local | Continue to improwve All pegple in Newry, Strategic effectiveness
people to lead healthy | the health and Mowirne and Down Service quality
and active lives by wellbeing of everyone | enjoy good health and | Faimess
improving the quality | in the District and wellbeing Sustainability
of our parks and open | reduce health
SPACES inequalities Al people in Newry,
Mourne and Down
Support sustainable benefit from
formes of toursm which | prosperaus
value our enwvironment | communities
and cultural heritage
We will grow the Imvvest in and suppart | All people from Mewry, | Strategic effectiveness
econmy by supporting | new and growing Mourne and Down Service quality
local businesses and businesses, job berefit from Service availahility
creating new jobs creation and prosperaus Innonation
employment skills communities
We will improve the Enhance, protect and &l people from Mewry, | Sbrategic effectiveness
cleanliness of our promote our Mourne and Down Service availability
District by addressing envircnment bernsfit from a clean, Innoevatson
littering, flv tipping and quality and sustainable | Sustainability
dog fouling incidents environment
We will build the Enable and support Al people in Mewry, Strategic effectiveness

capacity of local people to engage in Mourne and Down five | Service availahility
communities throwgh inclusive and diverse in respectful, safe and | Fairmness

the Financial activities in their vibrant communities Innowation

Assistance Scheme COmmunities

We will improve the Frovide accessibée, Al people in Mewry, Strategic effectiveness
processing Bmes of high quality and Mourne and Down Service availability
planning applications integrated services benefit from Service quality

and enforcement cases | through continuous Prosperous Efficiency

by Implementing the Ernproverment communities

Flanning Service
Improvement
_Programme

Ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Statutory Performance Indicators and Standards

Section 89 of the Local Government Act (NI) 2014 requires the Council to publish the
results of the performance indicators and standards that are set by central
government around economic development, planning and waste management.

The seven statutory performance indicators and standards, as outlined in the Local
Government Performance Indicators and Standards Order (2015), are set out below:

Ref Statutory Performance Indicator Annual
. Standard
Economic Development o

ED1 The nurnl::-elr u-f jobs promoted through business S155
start-up activity

Planning

F1 The average processing time of major planning <30 virdeks
applications

P2 The average essing time of local plannin
applicatiur?a oo ’ P ’ <15 weeks

P3 The percentage of enforcement cases processed 0%
within 39 weeks

Waste Management

Wi The percentage of household waste collected by
District Councils that is sent for recycling (including 50% by 2020
waste prepared for reuse)

W2 The amount (tonnage) of biodegradable Local < 20,954
Authority Collected Municipal Waste that is landfilled tonnes

s . _ (2019-20 target)

W3 The amount (ton of Local Authority Collected
Municipal w;ste ;:E;Jgs o B, 500 tonnes

The Council has put in place the following arrangements to monitor progress against
the standards set for the statutory performance and indicators:

= Inclusion within the Performance Improvement Plan, with progress being
monitored on a bi-annual basis by the Strategy, Policy and Resources
Committee and Audit Committee.

« [Inclusion within Directorate Business Plans, with progress being monitored on
a bi-annual basis by the relevant Council Committee.

« Data submissions to Government Departments, with reports being issued to
manitor the performance of each Council, outlining regional trends and
comparisons.

ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Self Imposed Performance Indicators

The Council has identified the following self imposed performance indicators to
measure progress in delivering the Corporate Plan 2021-23.

new and growing
businesses, job
creation and
employment skills

i Corparate Dhjactiue Measure of Success

Invest in and support | Mumber of jobs created and businesses supported

through Council programmes
MNumber of jobs promoted through business start-up
activity

Amount of investment secured by Council

Continue to improve

Number of people participating in targeted health

and cultural heritage

the health and _programmes
wellbeing of everyone | Attendance at free play sessions
in the: District and Number of attendances at Council indoor leisure facilities
reduce health
inequalities
Enhance, protect and | Level of street cleanliness across the District (Keep
promaote our Morthern Ireland Beautiful Street Cleanliness Index)
environment 65% of municipal waste recycled by 2030

Level of compliance with Sustainable Development Duty
Support sustainable Increased visitor spend
forms of tourism which | Increased overnights stays
value our environment |1 reased visitor satisfaction

Enable and support
people to engage in
inclusive and diverse
activities in their
communities

Percentage of residents who agree that their local area is
a place where people from different backgrounds get on
well together

Percentage of residents who agree that the Council
consults with and listens to the views of local people

Percentage of residents who feel they can have a say on
_how services are delivered in their jocal area

Number and percentage of financial assistance projects
funded and successfully delivered

Promote the
revitalisation of our

city, towns, villages
and rural communities

Progress against key Belfast City Region Deal projects

Mumber of public realm schemes delivered

Increased business growth and employment

Provide accessible, Increased citizen satisfaction

high quality and Compliance with the Duty of Improvement
integrated services

through continuous

improvement

ferformance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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| Advocate with others Compliance with the Duty of Community Planning /

- for the benefit of all monitor delivery of outcomes with partners

- pecple of the District | percentage of residents who are satisfied with their local
area as a place to live

The Council has put in place the following arrangements to monitor progress against
the self imposed performance indicators:

o Inclusion within the Performance Improvement Plan, with progress being
monitored by the Strategy, Policy and Resources Committee and Audit
Committee through the annual Assessment of Performance.

« Some performance indicators are included within Directorate Business Plans,
with progress being monitored on a bi-annual basis by the relevant Council
Committee,

These performance indicators are aligned to community planning outcomes, This
will ensure the Council continues to address the needs and aspirations of local
communities and deliver sustainable outcomes for all, now and in the future.

Ferformance Impravement Plan 2021-22
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Identifying the Performance Improvement
Objectives 2021-22

The performance improvement objectives 2021-22 have been developed in close
liaison with elected members, Senior Management Team, Corporate Management
Team and employees across the organisation. Each objective is underpinned by a
suite of "'supporting actions’ and 'measures of success’. They are clearly aligned to
the Community Plan and Corporate Plan 2021-23, as well as other regional and local
plans, particularly the Council’s Business Plans which have been developed by sach
Directorate. These plans influence and guide the overall direction of travel for the
organisation.

= [raft Programme for Government

» Community Plan for Newry, Mourne and Down 2017-2030, Priority Actions
Areas and District Electoral Area (DEA) Action Plans

« Mewry, Mourne and Down District Council Corporate Plan 2021-23

« Thematic plans and strategies, including the IT Strategy and Regeneration
and Economic Development Strategy

= Annual Directorate Business Plans 2021-22

The Council has also taken into consideration performance information from the
following sources to support the development of the performance improvement
objectives:

« The Northern Ireland Audit Office Audit and Assessment Reports and the
‘proposals for improvement’, which are currently being progressed

» The Assessment of Performance 2019-20, including progress against
corporate priorities, performance improvement objectives and statutory
performance indicators and standards for economic development, planning
and waste management

Ferformance Impravement Plan 2021-22
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Community Plan for Newry, Mourne and Down m

The Community Plan has been developed and agreed by the Community Planning Partnership
Board. Entitled "Living Well Together’, the Community Plan provides a framework for collaborative
waorking to deliver positive change for our communities, and sets out the following long term
‘overarching vision for the District:
‘Newry, Mourne and Down is a place with strong, safe and vibrant communities where
averyone has a good quality of life and access to opportunities, choices and high
quality services which are sustainable, accessible and meet people’s needs'.

The Community Plan sets out the following five positive outcomes:

Our Outcomes

These are the peirtve ootoomes we 2il wik o wee in cor communiiy.

Performance Impravement Plan 202322
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council Corporate Plan 2021-23

The Corporate Plan 2021-23 sets out the following mission statement and eight strategic
objectives:

Council Mission Statement

To support and advocate for a welcoming District which is progressive, healthy and
sustainable, providing better economic, environmental and social outcomes for all’

Council Strategic Objectives

[y T
. =

Invest in and support new and growing Continue to improve the health and
businesses, job creation and employment | wellbeing of everyone in the district and

skills reduce health inequalities
We will facilitate investment by new and We will halp to reduce health inequalities and
growing businesses while contributing to the improve the guality of life for all by
further development of workforce skills to contributing fully to programmes, services,
retain existing and attract new industries. facilities and amenities.
Enhance, protect and promote our Support sustainable forms of tourism
environment which value our environment and
cultural heritage
We will contribute to tackling climate We will support and advocate for increased

breakdown and reducing harmful impacts on | investment and development in tourism which
the environment while enabling residents and promotes our unique assets and increases
visitors to enjoy our rich natural and built visitor satisfaction and spend.
heritage.

Enable and support people to engage in Promote the revitalisation of our city,
inclusive and diverse activities in their towns, villages and rural communities

communities

We will encourage people to play an active We will work with residents, businesses and
part in civic life in all its forms and develop the | our partners in regeneration to further develop
capacity of communities, particularly those in desirable places to live, work, invest in and
greatest need, to attract the right support to visit across the District,
address needs and sustain valued projects and
facilites

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Y £
&' L 1™
Provide accessible, high-guality and Advocate with others for the benefit of
integrated services through continuous all people of the District
improvement
We will build a high performing Council, fit for We will lobby and campaign with
the future, that delivers efficient and effective | government and others to attract investment,
services for the benefit of all develop modern infrastructure across the
District, address neads and improve the quality
of life for all.

Alignment with the Strategic Aspects of Improvement

In accordance with the Local Government Act (NI) 2014, each performance improvement
objective seeks to bring about improvement in at least one of the following aspects:

Strategic effectiveness
Service quality
Service availability
Fairness

Sustainability
Efficiency

Innovation

The table below outlines how Newry, Mourne and Down District Council’s performance

improvement cbjectives 2021-22 are aligned with the seven specified aspects of improvement:

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Seven Aspects of Improvement

> g
5 ﬁ = 5 E = -
22123 E |2 § ¥
Performance Improvement Objective E® $ [ E E 2
w § E qﬁ
W
We will promote heaithier lifestyles by increasing / of o ’
participation in physical activiky
We will grow the economy by supporting local 7 ¥ v ¥
businesses and creating new jobs
We will improve the cleanliness of aur District by 7 o / .
reducing littering, fly tipping and dog fouling
We will build the capacity of local communities F o ’

through the Financial Assistance Scherme and DEA
Forum initiatives

We will improve the average processing times of
planning applications and enforcement cases by v v v .
implementing the recommendations from the
Flanning Service Review

The Council has also assessed the performance improvement objectives against the following
criteria, and considers them to be:

= Legitimate

e Clear

» Robust

s Deliverahble

= Demonstrable

Equality Screening and Rural Needs Impact Assessment

In accordance with the Section 75 requirements of the Northern Ireland Act (1998), whereby the
Council must carry out its functions having due regard to the need to promote equality of
opportunity and regard for the desirability to promote good relations, the Performance
Improvement Plan has been subject to an equality screening. The outcome of the equality
screening process determined that the Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22 is not subject to
an equality Impact assessment, with no mitigating measures required.

In accordance with the Rural Needs Act Northern Ireland (2016), the Council has given due regard

to rural needs by carrying out a Rural Needs Impact Assessment of the Performance Improvement
Plan 2021-22.

Performance Improvement Plan 2023-22
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Consultation and Engagement

The Council is committed to listening to local people and taking on board their views, Since 2017,
the Council has carried out extensive consultation and engagement, inviting key stakeholders,
Including elected members, residents, local businesses and community planning partners to put
forward their views on the proposed performance improvement objectives. This year, the
consultation and engagement process resulted in 41 completed surveys and engagement with 100
stakeholders. This response has been supplemented by the input of 1,345 respondents to the
consultation on COVID-19 and the Corporate Plan in 2020 and Resldents Survey in 2018,

Electronic documentation and survey on the draft performance 41 respondents
improvement objectives 2021-22 on the Council's website and
social media platforms

Engagement with the: 100 consultees

= Seven District Electoral Area Forums which are made up
of Elected Members and independent members
representing the voluntary, community and business
sectors

= Section 75 groups, including the Clder Persons Forums in
Newry and Downpatrick, Newry and Mourne Youth
Council and Cedar Foundation

Electronic survey and focus groups on the impact of COVID-19 560 respondents to
and the Corporate Plan 2021-22 (September 2020) survey

21 participants in
focus groups

Residents Survey (September 2018) 764 respondents

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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The consultation responses revealed widespread support for the proposed performance E
improvement objectives, with almost all respondents agreeing with each of the five objectives.

Agreement on Performance Improvement Objectives (2021/22)

1. Encourage lcal pesple bo lead healthy and active ives [ —
by impnoving bhe quality of cur parks and open spaces

2, Grow the emnomy by supporting local businessas and —
creabing new jobs
3. Improve: the ceanliness of our District by addressing
litbering, fiy Baping and dog foufing incidents
4, Build the apadty af lecal commmunities through the
Fnancial Assstance Scheme
. Improve bhe processing tmes of planining applicalions
Apyiidhonnd ool bbbl sty gl —
Service Tenproverment Programmme

¢ 5 10 15 W B/ W 35 4 45
u Agree @ Disagree

The areas for improvement and issues raised through the overall consultation and engagement
processes are clearly aligned to the five performance improvement objectives 2021-22, and will be

addressed through the Performance Improvement Plan, and as part of the Council’s business
planning process.

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Achieving Continuous Improvement m

Transforming and improving how the Council delivers services is a key objective within the
Corporate Plan. Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is committed to developing a "can do’
culture, where managing performance and achieving improvement is everyone’s responsibility. In
pursuing the corporate vision and objectives, the Council has identified the following three core

values:
We will be: What this means:
Accountable We will be accountable for hoe we plan for and use resources

sustainably

Callaborative We will work in partnership with others

Transparent We will be transparent in how we make decisions

The Council has put in place a number of frameworks and systems to drive forward continuous
improvement and facilitate a performance improvement culture. These include the Business
Planning and Performance Management Framework, Policy Development Framework, Equality
Scheme, Governance Framework and Risk Management Folicy.

The Council also assesses how performance compares with other Councils. Newry, Mourne and
Down District Council is working with the Assodiation of Public Service Excellence to benchmark
performance against the performance of Councils across Morthern Ireland and other jurisdictions.
This information is being used to collate a robust and reliable evidence base, in order to identify
and address future areas for improvement.

The Performance Improvement Plan underpins the Council’s overall approach to effective
performance management. It supports the Council in identifying more efficient and effective ways
of working to facilitate the achievement of community planning outcomes, corporate objectives
and Directorate objectives, which together support the implementation of the Business Flanning
and Performance Management Framework.

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Business Planning and Performance Management

PRY
Framework

The Council’s Business Planning and Performance Management Framework drives and provides
assurance that community planning outcomes, corporate objectives and performance
improvement chjectives are being delivered, with the primary goal of making life better for our
citizens.
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The Community Plan and Corporate Plan sit within a hierarchy of plans that informs the Council’s
overall direction of travel and guides all activity within the organisation. Community planning
outcomes and corporate objectives are cascaded across the organisation through thematic plans
and strategies and Directorate Business Plans. Performance indicators continue to be developed
at all levels across the Business Planning and Performance Management Framework, in order to
ensure performance is measured, monitored and evaluated on a continuous basis.

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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During 2021-22, the Council will progress the development of Service Flans and roll out of
Individual Perfarmance (People Perform Grow), both of which seek to demonstrate the 'line of
sight’ between the work of employees and how they contribute to the achievement of community
planning outcomes and corporate objectives.

Through the Business Planning and Performance Management Framework, the Council will
manage performance at all levels across the organisation, in order to ensure the necessary steps
are taken to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of functions. Each level of the
Business Planning and Performance Management Framework is, and will be, accompanied by a
relevant set of performance measures to monitor and assess the Council’s progress in improving
the quality of life for local communities.

The table below provides a description of the various plans and strategies that form part of the
Council’'s Business Planning and Performance Management Framework.

Community The Community Plan for Newry, Mourne and Down sets out the long-term
Plan vision for impraving the economic, sodal and environmental wellbeing of
the District. Developed in collaboration with partners across the
statutory, business and voluntary sectors, the Community Plan is
underpinned by Priority Actions Areas and seven DEA Action Plans, which
seek to deliver the five community planning outcomes at a local level,
Progress in implementing the Community Plan is reviewed on a biennial
basis.

Corporate Plan | The Corporate Plan 2021-23 sets out the wision, values and strategic
objectives for the Council. Each strategic objective is underpinned by
‘supporting actions’ and 'measures of success’. Progress in delivering the
Corporate Plan is reported annually through the NMD Connect Newsletter
and Assessment of Performance,

Thematic The Council has put in place a number of Thematic Plans and Strategies
Plans and to support the implementation of the Community Plan and Corporate
Strategies Plan, including the Performance Improvement Plan, Medium Term

Financial Plan and Regeneration and Economic Development Strategy.
These plans provide the strategic context for multiple programmes of
work across the organisation.

Directorate Business Plans are developed annually to demonstrate how Directorates
Business Plans | contribute to the achievement of community planning outcomes,
corporate objectives and performance improvement objectives.
Directorate Business Plans include suites of key performance measures to
measure progress and drive continuous improvement, with performance
being monitored and reviewed bi-annually by the relevant Committee.

Service Plans | Service Plans and Improvement Projects are operational and set out the

and direction for service areas across the Council. They outiine how each
Improvement | service contributes to the delivery of community planning outcomes,
Projects corporate objectives and performance improvement objectives, include

key performance measures and provide a mechanism to manage
performance consistently across the organisation.

performance Improvement Plan 2023-22
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People
Perform Grow

The Council recognises the significant role emplaoyees play in contributing
to the achievement of the Community Plan, Corporate Plan, Thematic
Plans and Strategies, Directorate Business Plans and Service Plans.
People Perform Grow will demonstrate the link between the work of
employees and how they contribute to the achievement of key plans and
strategies, as well as the outcomes experienced by local communities.

The Business Planning and Performance Management Framework is complemented by the
integrated cycle of activity outlined in the diagram below.

¥ o
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Governance Arrangements m

Reviewing performance and reporting progress to elected members and other key stakeholders is
very important, as it facilitates transparency, accountability and improvement in everything the
Coundl does, The governance arrangements to develop, monitor, report and review the Council’s
progress in implementing the Performance Improvement Plan 2020-21 are outlined below:

-"IF ity vith]
il Counctl
= Approval of the annual Performance imperovement Plan

= Mid year progeess report
2 Annyal perfonmante assessment

N
( Stratepy, Policy and Resources Commiittee N
» Scrutiny, challenge and approvad of the annual Performance impravement Plan
= Md year progeess reporn
L Annual performance assessment
N
~\

(" Audit Committee
» Providie assurance that performance management arrangements are robust and effective

« Nid year progress repart
\_* Annual performance assessment

v
~ .
senior Management Team R
= Lead the development of the annual Performance Improvement Plan
* Mid year progress report
= Anmual performance alsessment y
L

The Council must publish an Assessment of Performance by 30 September 2021 which will provide
an overview of how the Council has performed during 2020-21. The Assessment of Performance
will be published on the Council’s website and is supplemented by the Mid Year Progress Report
for the Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22,

The arrangements the Council has put in place to secure continuous improvement are subject to
an annual audit and assessment by the Northern Ireland Audit Office. The outcome of the
Performance Audit and Assessment is expected in November 2020, Subject to the General Duty
of Improvement being met, the Northern Ireland Audit Office will issue a Letter of Assurance to
both the Council and Department for Communities.

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Performance Improvement Objectives 2017-20
A snapshot of the past three years
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In 2017-18, the Council set performance improvement objectives which were medium term and
carried forward to 2018-19 and 2019-20. Many of the supporting actions and targets which

underpin these objectives, have now been achieved, and all performance improvement objectives

have therefore been reviewed and updated for 2021-22.

existing businesses and
promating Newry,
Mourne and Down as a
premier tourist
destination

enterprise jobs created

Performance Status
Improvement Key achievements 2017-20 Trend
Objective

Encourage healthy MNewry and Down Leisure Centres open and operational O

lifestyles through -

increased participation in | 12,79 increase in attendances at indoor leisure facilities A

IEISLJI‘E.I sport Et‘ltdl . / Target exceeded

recreational activities 73.5% customer satisfaction rating with indoor leisure 0
facilities N
3,516 children and young people took part in Community oy
Play and other leisure initiatives "
25,761 enrollments on Everybody Active 2020 @
Implementation of Play Strategy and Sports Facility '
Strategy well underway =
Plans to develop the Albert Basin Park, Newry are [
pruﬂressing et
The majority of residents are physically active for 30 T
minutes per week and are in good health =/

Improve economic 574 new businesses and 535 jobs promoted through the (‘"\

growth by creating new | NI Business Start Programme =

business starts, 31 social enterprise start ups created and 43 social oy

supporting the growth of ha)

198 business supported through "NMD Growth'

Employment rate increased from 65.6% to 73.6%

29 businesses supported and 133 jobs created through
the Rural Business Investment Scheme

£2.3m secured to invest in the fishing dependent
communities of Kilkeel, Annalong and Ardglass

MNewry, Mourne and Down Economic Development
Strategy 2020-25 adopted

ololo|>le

Planning application for phase 2 of the Carlingford Lough
Greenway submitted

113,357 pedestrians and cyclists used the Greenway
since September 2018

The Giant Adventure Festivals attracted over 360,000
visitors with an average satisfaction raljgg of 96%

O1©

"
II"‘-\.
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environmental awareness sessions

Decrease in tourist visitor numbers and spend YV
Deliver urban and rural | Warrenpoint Municipal Park restored and re-opened, 55
regeneration initiatives attracting 205,126 visitors in 2019-20 e
that will create a District MNewry/Warrenpoint Revitalisation Schemes and
where people want to Downpatrick/Newry Hill Street Environmental I,Tj
live, work and investin | Improvement Schemes complete =
Forkhill Greenspace Project and Derrynore Demesne
complete
45 Village Plans updated/created and 7 environmental P
improvement schemes complete =
£15m awarded to FFNI Consortium to improve digital (o3}
infrastructure® —d
Increased processing times for planning applications and V
enforcement cases
Create a cleaner, LEAMS score of 64, which is below the regional average @
greener, more attractive | of 68
District 16 community groups participated in the Cleaner, e
Greener Communities initiative el
294 community clean ups supported ":‘*
347 visits to schools and community groups to deliver @

Arrangements to monitor the refuse collection completion
rate delayed

Glass collection standardised across the District

Downpatrick Household Recycling Centre open

@

P
|4
.

Increase in blue and brown bin recyclable waste

7.6% increase in the rate of recycling, to 53.7%

86% of residents state that recycling is important to
them

18.3% increase in the amount of waste going to landfill

Encourage and empower
local communities to
participate in Coundil
engagement structures
and initiatives

Significant representation from the community, voluntary
and business sectors on Council engﬂement structures

1,310 meetings, events and programmes ook place
through Community Engagement Structures

Reduction in the number of Neighbourhood Watch
Schemes, from 177 to 95

94% of residents feel safe during the day and 87% feel
safe after dark

1,838 homes secured and 15,573 devices fitted through
the Home Secure Scheme

ole|q|olop|lo|el>

277 service users recefved 45,391 calls through the
‘Good Morning Good Neighbour Scheme’ in 2019-20

®
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£4.2m awarded to 1,385 applications through the @
Financial Assistance Scheme

47 community projects funded through four participatory r"}
budgeting schemes s
4,924 recorded visits to the Ethnic Minority Support @
Centre

*FFNI: Newry, Mourne and Down District Council hosts the Full Fibre Northern Irefand Consortium.

How to Propose New Performance Improvement
Objectives

MNewry, Mourne and Down District Council welcomes your ongoing feedback on the performance

improvement cbjectives 2021-22, as well as any suggestions you may have on how services can
be improved in the future,

The Council can be contacted in the following ways:

In writing: Kate Bingham
Head of Performance and Improvement
Mewry, Mourne and Down District Council
O'Hagan House
Monaghan Row
Newry
Co Down
BT35 8DJ

Telephone: 0300 013 2233

Email: kate.bingham@nmandd.org

Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22
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Newry, Mourne and
Down District Council

Consultation and Engagement Report on
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Introduction

The Local Government Act (NI) 2014 sets out a General Duty of Improvement,
whereby all District Councils must put in place arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the exercise of their functions and set performance improvement
objectives for each financial year. Each Coundil also has a statutory duty to consult
key stakeholders on the proposed performance improvement objectives.

Through the consultation and engagement process, five performance improvement
objectives were considered and approved by the Strategy, Policy and Resources
Committee in March 2021, This was followed by extensive consultation and
engagement activity which encouraged key stakeholders, including residents and
Elected Members to have their say on the proposed performance improvement
objectives.,

This report provides an overview of the consultation and engagement methodology
and an analysis of the responses which were received.

Consultation and Engagement Activity

Between 15 March—10 May 2021, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council carried
out an eight week consultation and engagement process with key stakeholders on
the draft performance improvement objectives 2021-22, through the following
mechanisms:

= Electronic documentation and survey on the Council’s website and social
media channels

» Public Notices in local newspapers

= Engagement sessions with the following stakeholders:

- Seven District Electoral Area Forums

Older Persons Forums in Mewry and Downpatrick
MNewry and Maurne Youth Council

Cedar Foundation

This process was further supplemented by the consultation and engagement process
which was carried out to support the development of the Corporate Plan 2021-23:

» Residents Survey (September 2018)
« Consultation and engagement on the Corporate Plan 2021-23 and impact of
COVID-19 (September 2020)

Analysis Methodology
A total of 41 completed surveys were received in response to the consultation and

engagement on the Council’s draft performance improvement objectives 2021-22.
Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed with the draft
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performance improvement objectives, If they had any comments to make regarding
each objective and to put forward their suggested priorities for future improvement.

In carrying out the guantitative and gualitative consultation and engagement, a
structured process was usad o capture responses around each of the five draft
performance improvement objectives 2021-22. This was supplementad by the
consultation and engagement process outlined below, which:

+ Provided 100 stakeholders with the opportunity to have their say on the
proposed performance improvement objectives 2021-22,

» Engaged 1,345 stakeholders through the Residents Survey and consultation
on COVID-19 and the Corporate Plan 2021-23

Consultation and Engagement Details |

Newry and Mourne QOlder Person's Forum | 30 March 2021

Mournes DEA Forum 21 March 2021

‘Slieve Gulion DEA Forum 13 April 2021

Downpatrick DEA Forum | 13 April 2021

Cedar Foundation User Forum | 13 April 2021

Newry DEA Forum 15 April 2021
| Crotheve DEA Forum | 20 April 2021

Slieve Croob DEA Forum | 20 April 2021

Down Senior Forum | 22 April 2021

Newry and Mourne Youth Council 11 May 2021

Residents Survey (September 2018) | 764 residents aged 16+ with quotas

. applied for age, gender, social class
and District Electoral Area

Consultation on COVID-19 and the 560 individuals completed the online
Corporate Plan 2021-23 (September survey / 21 residents participated In
2020) three focus groups

Consultation and Engagement Findings

Performance Improvement Objectives 2021-22

Profile of Respondents

Responses to the draft performance improvement objectives have been received
from a range of key stakeholders, with the highest number of responses submitted
by residents and local community organisations, as outlined in the following chart.
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Profile of Respondents by Consultation Group

= Elechad Member
= Local Community Crgansation
= Local Veluntary Organisation

= Reshdent

= Local Busiress

= Etatutory Organisation
s DEhar®

Analysis of Findings

There has been a positive response to the five proposed performance improvement
objectives, with almost all respondents agreeing with each objective.

Agreement on Performance Improvement Objectives (2021/22)

1. Encourage local peopie to fead healivy and active ives | E—

by improving the quality of cur parks and open spaces

2. Grow the economy by supporting local businesses and —
eraating mew by
1 Improves the cleaniness of aur District by addressing
litbering, fly tipping and dog fauling inddants
4, Build the capaciy of local commumnities through the
Financial Assistance Schema
&, Improve the processing times of plgnning applicatiors
and arforcement cases by mplemnenting the Planaing —
Service Improvement ProgrRmme

0 5 1 15 20 5 0 35 40 45
mhgre  mDisagres

Back to Agenda
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Consultation on COVID-19 and the Corporate Plan 2021-23
(2020)

These findings are endorsed by the results of the consultation and engagement on
the impact of COVID-19 and the Corporate Plan 2021-23, which reinforces the
alignment between the performance improvement objectives 2021-22 and the top
concerns identified by residents,

Specific things which the Council can do to help alleviate the impact of
COVID-19 locally

L]
i
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o
ﬂl.
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lJ'u s o Re] ] - s ] (1] b
.ru.. TR e 8 DAL

« The top concerns for residents include the impact of the pandemic on local
businesses and employment, mental health and wellbeing, economy, lack of
enforcement of COVID-19 regulations and the spread of the Coronavirus.

« To alleviate the impact of COVID-19, the Council can continue to support local
businesses, provide access to open/green spaces and support local
community groups.

Residents Survey (2018)
These findings are further endorsed by the results of the Residents Survey which

indicate that the performance improvement objectives broadly address the top
improvements identified to make somewhere a good place to live.
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Priorities for improving the local area
Supparong local busnesses, atracing investment.,
Tmproving peaple's health and wellbeing {and..
Emgirgning community relatons (Gond Relabions) and.,
Dmgmoving skils, emplowabiity and job prospects
Parks ard green spaces pretecting aur natues and..
Imnprorang our rosds infrastruchre
Mare alfordabie, good quaity heusirg

rMamaging waste, madng climate changs, Imsing.

Edhicabon Prossion

o]

204 400 0 EQL 1000 1200 1400

« The local economy, health and wellbeing, community relations, good
relations, community safety, protecting the environment and managing waste
are amongst the top 10 priorities for improvement.

= A cleaner, more attractive area, regeneration, accessible leisure centres,
tourism and participating in cultural activities are amongst the lesser priorities
for improvement.

These findings are further reinforced by the fact that residents Identify dog mess
and littering as the top perceived problems in the local area.

Perceived problems in local areas

Dog mess and fouling
Dogs barking
Paopee using or dealing drugs
Groups hanging around the strests
Car crime and unsafe driving
Rubbish or litter lying arcund
Paople being drunk or rewdy in public places
Stray [ uncontrolled dogs
Run down or deralict properties
haisy neighbours or loud parties
Vandalism, graffiti and other deliberate. .
O 100 Hifs 300 40% SO 60fe T0Sa  DO% 905 1004
m Major problem  ®Minor problem B Not a problem
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You Said, We Did - Overview of Consultation Feedback

Performance Improvement Objectives

An analysis of the results of all consultation and engagement processes indicates
that many of the issues raised will be addressed through the proposed 2021-22
performance improvement objectives, "supporting actions’ and "measures of success’,
or as part of the Council’s business planning process. An additional action and
measure in relation to community trails has been proposed as part of performance
improvement objective 1.

You Said We Did
Performance Community trails should Action:
Improvement be referenced and Complete and launch 5
Objective 1: incorporated community trails
We will encourage local
people to lead healthy Measure:
and active llves by Mumber of recorded visits
improving the guality of at community trails
our parks and open
Spaces

Suggested Areas for Improvement

As part of the survey, respondents were asked to put forward their suggested areas
for improvement for 2021-22.

Top 5 most important areas for improvement (202021 v 20217 22)

LB
16 15
14
12 11
i
B K
i
A
2
LI
Aats Condres Car Parking Cleansng Coundl Parks En'.ur':rrrru:nhsl Play Parks Wisbor
and Euseums Service and Grean | Artractions
Open Spaces

m 2020421 m2021/22
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= ‘'Parks and green spaces’ and "arts centres and museums’ are the top priorities
for improvement in 2021-22.

= Car parking was only identified as a priority for improvement in 2020-21.

« Environmental Health and Visitor Attractions have been identified as new
priorities for improvement in 2021-22.

Next Steps

Based on the feedback obtained through the consultation and engagement process,
as well as the angoing developmental work around each performance improvement
objective 2021-22, this report includes one recommendation to update the actions
and measures within the Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22,

The Consultation and Engagement report will be published on the Council’s website
by 30 June 2021, alongside the Performance Improvement Plan 2021-22. It will also

be circulated to key stakeholders to support the business planning process.
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Summary of Consultation and Engagement Feedback

Performance Imp
Older Peoples Forums

« Why does Warrenpoint beach not have a blue flag?

+ Does the Council plan to introduce car parking charges at forest parks and
Warrenpooint Car Park? If so, this may have a negative impact on tourism.

=« There is an entrance charge for Delamont Country Park and access to other
forest parks is free,

+ Derrymore Woods is an excellent regeneration project. However, it has
attracted more visitors and there is an issue with car parking along the
Derrymore Road.

+ The Council should be congratulated on the Greenway which is an excellent
asset with plenty of litter bins for visitors,

+ Clonallon Park in Warrenpoint is not referenced within this objective.
Additional seating and an outdoor gym should be considered.

Additional seating and litter bins are required on the Towpath.

The play park at Bessbrock Pond should be upgraded.

The temperature in Newry swimming pool at Newry Leisure Centre is too
low, especially for those with maobility issues.

Mournes DEA
« There has been an issue with overcrowding in parks and open spaces
during the pandemic which needs to be managed in the future.

Slieve Gullion DEA
« The issue with car parking at Derrymore Woods needs to be resolved, as
visitors are parking on the road,

Cedar

» Slieve Gullion Forest Park and access to the play park is very steep and
challenging for those who are less abled and those with mobility issues.
Car parking at Slieve Gullion is very good.

« There are not many parks in Newry City. When the Council consults on the
Albert Basin Park in Newry, disability groups should be engaged to ensure
the new park is accessible to all. Accessibility to parks and open spaces is
also dependent on transport and the transport connections from rural areas
are not freqguent enough. Accessibility and affordability may therefore
become key issues in the future.

= [Issues were raised in relation to the accessibility of Ulsterbus buses and the
need to book wheelchair access in advance, which s dependent on the
spaces available.

Downpatrick DEA
« This s a good, relevant objective. However, some villages do not have
parks and Downpatrick has no park, which raises questions around the

equal distribution of investment across the District.
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« There is an opportunity to reference community trails and links to long
distance parks, as many villages or towns in our area do not have safe
circular walking routes, As most settlements in East Down in particular have
gither the Ulster Way or the Saint Patrick/Saints Way running through them
in a linear manner, it would be fairly easy to liase with Df] to ensure that
roads and pavements were configured to ‘loop back’ to create a circular
walk, However, the emphasis needs to be ease of application. Once
community groups have applied, the system should automatically
remember items such as constitutions, health and safety and child
protection and not reguire these documents to be uploaded anew every
time, unless they have changed.

Newry DEA
= There should be more reference to the footfall and improvement works

underway at the Towpath and Greenway.

« The Council is committed to working with community groups to provide
community gardens, allotments and green spaces, as a way to support local
people throughout the pandemic.

« The Council is supporting 'no mow May' to help facilitate bee pollination.

Slieve Croon DEA
= Forest parks have been an excellent lifeline to local communities during the
pandemic and require effective management going forward.
« Emphasis on mental health and wellbeing as this will be a key issue for the
District in the future and the Council need to plan ahead accordingly.

Rowallane DEA

« This objective should make reference to Delamont Country Park as it is one
of the main forest parts across the District. Consultation was recently
carried out at Delamont and work is underway to upgrade the park, in a
three staged approach. Delamont has been a lifeline for many residents
during the pandemic and the Council should recognise the role that nature
can play in promoting wellbeing. There is also an issue with charging at
Delamont and a District wide approach to charging for entry at forest parks
is required, The Council needs to ensure that all parks remain accessible.

Newry and Mourne Youth Council
+ Parks should remain accessible and free of charge for all visitors, in order to
help ensure residents lead health and active lifestyles.
« There should be a focus on maintaining, and where required, upgrading the
smaller parks, such as Clonallon Park.

Performance Improvement Objective 2
Older Peoples Forums
= Free wifi in Newry and Warrenpoint is working.
+ Do the new jobs created include positions with zero hours contracts?

10
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= The lockdown restrictions have had a huge impact on local coffee shops as
office workers are generally working from home, Are there any plans to get
workers back to the office?

Mournes DEA
« Can we encourage residents to shop local online? Is there support
available to do this?
« fAre the economic development programmes open to all businesses across
the District and all industry sectors?

Slieve Gullion DEA
« Essential skills are lacking for some residents, in relation to maths and
English. Can the Council work with SRC to make courses more accessible
for residents?
= Is the Council delivering any programmes with DKIT?

Cedar

= Small businesses are dependent on the local economy — will they survive?

« There is a lack of diversity in businesses across Mewry, Mourne and Down.

« The Council should continue to liaise with the business community to
maintain and retain local jobs.

= Any potential loss of income will have a negative impact on accessibility to
facilities and increased community isolation.

+ The Council supported a local business to offer "Al Fresco® dining in the
market in Newry. This was an excellent, innovative initiative and
experience for customers, helping the local economy.

+ ‘Neighbourhood Food Newry' is an excellent concept to support local
businesses and encourage people to shop local.

Downpatrick DEA

+ This objective should focus on the 'Green Economy’ and jobs for the future,
similar to the progress neighbouring Councils have made in this area, which
may lead to an increase in the rates base. Suggest: 'Put a plan in place to
ensure NME&D maximises the benefit of the New Green Economy to
ratepayers in our District and maximises employment from these areas’,

= Newry should capitalise on its geographic location and Downpatrick should
focus on increasing public sector employment.

» The support to businesses should be more than the distribution of COVID-
19 grant aid.

MNewry DEA
+ This objective should focus on the support provided for social enterprises in
the District, beyond the Social Enterprise Programme.

Crotlieve DEA
« There is a need to ensure that small businesses that wish to diversify can
access the COVID-19 Revitalisation Grant Scheme to get support.

11
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= It is unclear how the NI ‘Go For It programme supports the creation of
business starts and jobs as it only provides advice.

MNewry and Mourne Youth Council
= This is a very relevant objective and the Council has been successful in
supporting local businesses during the pandemic.

Performance Improvement Objective 3

Older Peoples Forum

« Bins should be extended to rural areas, all litter bins should be emptied
requiarly and bags should be placed on top of dog fouling bins.

+ Additional education, marketing and publicity around responsible dog
ownership is required,
A toilet and additional litter bins are required at Monks Hill Cemetery.
The Belfast Road in Downpatrick does not have enough litter bins and more
bins should be provided., Does the Council have a Litter Bin Strategy and a
Dog Fouling Strategy?

Mournes DEA
« The Council should make it clear that it can only support community groups
with the necessary public liability insurance to carry out community clean
ups.
= The Mourne Esplanade has numerous dog fouling incidents. Can we target
hot spots?
« Can we educate people on environmental crime?

Slieve Gullion DEA
+ Isthere an option to provide walkers with litter picking eguipment on their
walks? This equipment could be stored in community buildings.

Cedar

= There are not enough litter and dog bins at Derrymore Woods and the bins
are over flowing.

« (Can dog fouling bags be left at dog bins in the future? Can compost bags
be left by brown bins to encourage food recycling in parks?

= Newry City is fairly clean and doesn’t seem to have much dog fouling.

« Dog fouling can be off putiing for those in wheelchairs and those with
children.

= It is positive that the Council will include information on responsible dog
ownership in dog licenses.

« Children are influential in reinforcing the requirement to recycle and not
litter.

= There should be an onus on local businesses to provide bins and clear
waste in relation to their trading and takeaway’s. Can the Council have a
recognition scheme for those businesses which help clean up the local area
responsibly? !

12
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« an the Council help promote the use of reusable cups as opposed to
disposable cups?

Downpatrick DEA
= This is a good objective and performance should be compared with
neighbouring Councils where possible, particularly Ards and North Down,
Lisburn and Castlereagh and Armagh, Banbridge and Craigavon. In
particular the statistics from Ards and North Down as they have a similar
area and population to ourselves but have always performed far better than
our Council in this area.

Slieve Croob DEA
+ Dog fouling and fly tipping are key issues for the District. Community clean
ups are an excellent initiative and have been a good support in helping to
keep the District clean. The Council should consider allocating more
resources to street cleansing.

Crotlieve DEA
« Littering is a crime and the Council can be more proactive in monitoring and
addressing litter hotspots.

Rowallane DEA
» It is positive that the Council is recognising that improvements are required
regarding littering, dog fouling and fly tipping as this is a key issue for
constituents, The Council should consider developing policies which target
offenders through fines and signage, to reduce incidents of littering and
dog fouling.

Newry and Mourne Youth Council

= There is an issue with dogs being off lead in rural areas and attacking
sheep, lambs and other livestock, which needs to be addressed.

« Fly tipping is a growing issue across the District and the Council needs to
come up with innovative ways to deter people from fly tipping and dumping
their excess waste.

= s there an opportunity for young people to get involved in community
clean ups and record the voluntary hours accrued for their CV's or get a
certificate/recognition for their participation?

Performance Improvement Objective 4

Mournes DEA
s The Electronic Grants Management System is very good and useful, and the
team has been very flexible with applicants.

Slieve Gullion DEA
+ The objective should reflect the ethos of the Council supporting local
community groups, as an enabler, not just a funder.

13
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= The Council should also provide support for those groups who may lack the
necessary skills to submit online applications.

Cedar

= Past summer schemes in Newry were very good and accessible.

= Smaller and new community groups may need more support in completing
the Financial Assistance application forms.

« The local community has become increasingly diverse and there is a need
to develop projects which enable people to integrate and learn from each
other, which could focus on community background, disability and age. Is
there an opportunity for Newry to have a MELA festival to showcase and
celebrate local diversity?

Downpatrick DEA
= There have been improvements to the Financial Assistance Scheme, and it
is guestionable whether this should be an objective. Howewver, it was noted
that further improvements are required to support community groups in
applying for funding through the Financial Assistance Scheme.
= The Council should promote the distribution of funding through the
Financial Assistance Scheme by District Electoral Area.

Newry DEA
« [t is positive that more training and capacity building will be provided to
community groups to help them apply for funding using the Electronic
Grants Management System,

Slieve Croob DEA
« The number of applicants from rural areas to the Financial Assistance
Scheme may reduce as many groups didn't apply for funding due to the
uncertainty associated with COVID-19, However, the Financial Assistance
Scheme is a lifeline for many community groups.

Crotlieve DEA
= There have been positive developments with the application process which
should be sustained going forward.

Newry and Mourne Youth Council
+ This is a good objective which supports local community groups., However,
as the Financial Assistance Scheme is so popular, the Council sometimes
allocates smaller amounts of funding towards projects which does not cover
all the required costs and good projects may therefore not be deliverad,

Performance Improvement Objective 5

Cedar
= It is positive to provide staff with the opportunity to be creative to identify
areas for improvement.

14
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« It would be useful to understand what the Planning Department is
responsible for, There may be difficulties for the less abled in navigating
the planning process and it may be useful for Planning staff to participate in
disability awareness training to understand and anticipate potential issues.

Downpatrick DEA
= This is a relevant objective as the performance of the Planning Department
needs to improve,

Slieve Croob DEA
= This is a very relevant objective as the performance of the Planning
Department needs to improve.

Rowallane DEA
« There is a clear need to reduce the processing times of planning
applications, as there are often delays to the process which could be
avoided. Consideration should be given to support the diversification of
lpcal SME's, potentially zoning industrial land for this purpose.

Other

There is no reference to Age Friendly in the objectives.

Mental health is an issue for young people. Access to Coundcil Community
Facilities to deliver youth activities/engagement is an issue, particularly in
rural areas, as the facilities remain closed.

1%
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Department for
@ Communities
An Roinn 272
Pobal

Depairtment fur

Commonities

Wy, Commun itids-nl gov.uk

Lacal Government and Housing

Chief Executive of each District Council fr*‘:t‘-u' nlaqur; Uvi;‘-u"

H 4 - 2 4 -iNance oranc
Finance Officer of each District Council Glaisadvy ay Exchange
Other Interested Parties 1-7 Bedford Street

BELFAST
BT2 TEG

Phone: 028 9082 3375
email; jeff.glass@communities-nigov.uk

Our ref; CO1-20-1609
Circular No. LG 13/2021
29 March 2021

Dear Sir/Madam

DISTRICT COUNCIL (NORTHERN IRELAND) RATE STATISTICS 2021/2022

| enclose for your information a copy of the District Council (Northern Ireland) Rate
Statistics for 2021/2022.

Yours faithfully

JEFF GLASS
Local Government and Housing Regulation

{ ™4 INVESTORS
IN PEOPLE
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Communities | Pobal | Commonities

www.communities-nl.goviuk

Department for ‘ An Roinn ‘ Depairiment fur

DISTRICT COUNCIL (NI) RATE STATISTICS

2021/2022

These tables contain summary details of the estimates of income and expenditure
received from the 11 district councils in relation to section 3 of the Local Government
Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.

Under the above legislation," in each financial year a council shall cause to be submitted
to it estimates of the income and expenditure of the council during the next financial
year..... and shall fix for the next financial year the amount estimated to be raised by
means of rates made by the council.”
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Local Governmeant and Housing
Finance Officer of each District Council Regulation Division

ce Branch

ay Exchange
1-7 Bedford Street
BELFAST

BT2 TEG

Phone: 028 9082 3375

email; jeff glass@communities-ni.gov.uk

Fina

Causew

Circular No. LG 15/2021
Qur ref: CO1/20/1655

28 April 2021

Dear Finance Officer

RECORD OF COUNCILLORS’' AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES
FUNDED BY COUNCIL 2020/2021

The attached annual return template seeks details of allowances funded by the
council under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011
and the Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Morthern

Ireland) 2018, during the 2020/2021 financial year.

Councils are statutorily obligated, in accordance with the above Regulations, to
publish a Scheme of Allowances for the payment of allowances to councillors and
committee members. At the end of each financial year councils are also obligated
to publish details of the amounts of allowances paid to each councillor and
committee member. This return provides a standard format for those details to be
recorded thus allowing comparisons of councillor allowances within a council and
also between councils.

As you will be aware legislatively councils only have to publish details of payments
made directly to councillors and committee members. If your council does not wish
to publish costs incurred by councils on behalf of councillors and committee
members, these figures should be left out and a note made on the top of the table
that these costs are not included. However, for transparency and comparison
purposes the Department would encourage councils to also include the costs
incurred by councils on councillors and committee members' behalf.

The completed template should be published on your Council website by
Friday 30 July 2021 and only the link to the published version should be
returned to this Division. However if your Council is not publishing the Support
Costs table this should be returned in pdf format to this Division. Guidance to

r;-""‘ INVESTORS
% o IN PEOPLE



enable completion of the return is provided in tab 1 of the template. Please note
that only allowances funded under Part 3 of the Act mentioned above should be
included.

The link to your Council’'s Scheme of Councillor Allowances for 2021/22
should also be forwarded to this Division by Friday 30 July 2021.

If you have any queries on the content of this return please contact Lynne McCann
via email lynne.mccann@communities-ni.gov.uk.

Yours faithfully

JEFF GLASS
Local Government & Housing Regulation

cc. Chief Executive of each District Council
Other Interested Parties

Back to Agenda
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RECORD OF COUNCILLORS' AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES FUNDED BY COUNCIL 2020/2021

Guidance Notes

Background

This annual return seeks details of allowances funded by the council under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act
(Northern Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019, during
the 2020/2021 financial year. Only allowances funded under Part 3 of the above Act should be included in this return.
Circular LG 23/2019 provides detailed guidance issued by the Department on councillors allowances and is available at the
following link:-

https:www.communities-ni.gov.uk/publications/circular-lg-232019-councillors-allowances-quidance-district-councils-narthern-ireland

General

Councils are statutorily obligated, in accordance with the above Regulations, to publish a Scheme of Allowances for the
payment of allowances to councillors and committee members. At the end of each year councils are also obligated to
publish details of the amounts of allowances paid to each councillor and committee member. This return provides a
standard format for those details to be recorded thus allowing comparisons of councillor allowances within a council and
also between councils. Currently legislation does not obligate the publishing of allowances paid by councils on behalf of
councillors or committee members 'incurred allowances’ (e.g. where a council pays a hotel bill on behalf of a councillor).
However the Department believes all details are relevant and therefore, prior to there being a statutory obligation to publish
this information, would encourage councils to publish this information.

Table 1 records all individual councillor and committee member allowances. Where councils decide not to publish
incurrred allowances' it should state on the table that these are not included.

Table 2 records all council collective councillor support services costs such as IT costs. Councils are currently not
obligated to publish this data, however councils are encouraged for transparency to publish this information.

Guidance on completion of the tables is provided below. If you have difficulty in completing the tables or need clarification
on any item, please use the contact details below.

The Council web link for the published tables for 2020/2021 and the web link for the Council Scheme of Allowances
for 2021/2022 should be forwarded to Lynne McCann (email:lynne.mccann@communities-ni.gov.uk) and copied to
Kevin McGinn (email: kevin.mcginn@communities-ni.gov.uk).

Table 1 - Individual Councillors’ Allowances

Table 1 should reflect all allowances. Where councils decide not to publish 'incurrred allowances' the note above the travel
and subsistence allowances for councillors and the note above the travel and subsistence allowances for committee
members should be amended stating that these are not included.

1. All figures in this table should reflect members' entitlement for the financial year 2020/2021 regardless of when the
payments were actually made e.qg. if a payment was made in April 2021 for 2020/2021 entitlement, that figure should be
included but payments made in April 2020 for a 2019/2020 entitlement should not be included.

2. The name of each member receiving an allowance should be stated and all figures should be rounded to the nearest
whole pound.

3. In this guidance note the term Chairperson means Chairperson/Vice Chairperson and Mayor/Deputy Mayor.

Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances

4. Figures for Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA) should be gross i.e. before tax and exclude any on-
costs such as employer's contributions,



Back to Agenda

5. A council may not pay more than ane SRA to a councillor as stated in regulation 5 of the Local Gavernment (Payments
to Councillors) Regulations (Morthern Ireland) 2019 . Any Chairperson Allowance arrangement should be considered
totally separate from SRA arrangements.

Chairperson Allowances

6. Allowances for the period of time served by all Chairpersons during the 2020/2021 financial year should be included.

7. Only personal allowances payable to each Chairperson should be recorded. Expenses such as hosting a dinner or
Chairperson contributions should not be included as these are council expenses.

8. Travel & Subsistence for Chairpersons should be treated in the same manner as all other councillor travel and
subsistence allowances and should be included as applicable under 'Mileage Allowance’, 'Public Transport and Other
Travel Incidentials, and 'Subsistence'.

Public Transport and Other Travel Incidentals

9. All travel costs, excluding mileage allowance, should be recorded under the heading Public Transport and Other Travel
Incidentals. This should include flights and items such as toll payments or car parking as well as travel related to
councillors attendance at conferences and courses.

Table 2 - Councillors' Support Services

Suppaort costs are for secretarial and administration costs and should not include costs for the Office of the Northern Ireland
Public Service Ombudsman or membership and subscription costs.

Communications and Support
10. This should include telephone equipment, IT equipment and Broadband, etc. as provided by the council.

Courses/ Conferences/Visits
11. Courses/Conferences/Visits should only include costs for registration fees and other non T&S costs. All
accommodation, subsistence and travel costs should be recorded under appropriate columns in Table 1.

Other Costs

12. Costs above £1,000 per support service incurred by the council to support councillors in carrying out council duties nat
covered in other categories in Table 2 should be specified and detailed under Other Costs. This information is collated
at council level and there is no requirement for the costs to be attributed to individual councillors.

Contact:

Lynne McCann | Local Government and Housing Regulation Division | Department for Communities
Causeway Exchange | 1-7 Bedford Street| Belfast| BT2 7EG
Contact: [~] lynne.mccann@communities-ni.gov.uk | B Tel: (028) 9082 3380 | ‘W DD: 39380
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Communities | Pobal | Commonities

W Communities-ni.gov.uk

Department for ‘ An Roinn ‘ Depairtment fur

Local Government & Housing Regulatiun
Division
P P bl Causeway Exchange
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Circular LG 08/21 - Up date Email: Jeff.glass@communities-ni.gov.uk

Your reference:

Qur reference;
Date: 24 June 2021

Dear Chief Executive

ACCOUNTS DIRECTION CIRCULAR 2020/21: NORTHERN IRELAND DISTRICT
COUNCILS

L In exercise of its powers under Article 24(2) of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005 and Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 (the Regulations), the Department
hereby directs that the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 should comply
with this direction.

2 As you will be aware the Department allocated £49.5m to councils in 2020/21 to
alleviate the impact of exceptional losses and costs that councils incurred or
estimated to be incurred as a conseqguence of COVID-19. In addition, funding of
£35.8m was allocated in 2020/21 to council reserves to support councils.

3. Given that the NI Executive agreed that the unspent funding of £39.5m should be
added to reserves, this funding should be transferred to a usable reserve and
ring-fenced for the purposes allocated. A separate disclosure should be made to
identify this unspent funding within the accounts.

4. The Department has also issued the following range of COVID support grants
during 2020/21 for the following:

« Covid-19 Recovery Revitalisation programme

¢ Covid-19 Community Support Fund (1st tranche)

e Covid-19 Community Support Fund (2nd Tranche)
« Covid-19 Financial Inclusion Fund

« Covid-19 Food Partnership Fund

« Food & Essential Supplies Fund

« Volunteering Support Fund
1



Back to Agenda

« Warm Well and Connected Fund
« Covid-19 Community Support Fund (3rd tranche)
« Covid-19 Food & Essential Supplies Transition Fund

Any amounts not expended during 2020/21 should also be transferred to a
usable reserve and ring-fenced for the purposes allocated. A separate

disclosure should be made to identify unspent COVID support grants within the
accounts.

Should you require clarification on any of the above matters, please contact me
on 028 90 823375.

Yours faithfully

\\%\m

Jeff Glass
Head of Finance
Local Government & Housing Regulation Division

CcC.

Colette Kane, Local Government Auditor, NI Audit Office
Finance Officers, District Councils



